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Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

 
Est. 

Time Item Subject 
6:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, November 5, 2019 
 2.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 3.  OPEN TIME:  (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 
  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 

listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 4.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 
 5.  MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT  
  CONSENT CALENDAR 

The General Manager has reviewed the following items.  To his knowledge, there is no 
opposition to the action.  The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as 
recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at 
the request of any person. 

 6.  Consent - Approve: Resolution Authorizing Application to the Director of Industrial Relations, 
State of CA for a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure Workers’ Compensation Liabilities          
                                                                                                                          Resolution 

 7.  Consent - Approve: Cost Sharing for 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 8.  Consent - Approve: Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair Project – Notice of Exemption 
 9.  Consent - Approve: Renewal of Horizon CATV License Agreement 
  ACTION CALENDAR 
 10.  Approve: Outside Auditor’s FY19 Report and Management Report 

 11.  Approve: Records Management Scanning Contract with BMI Imaging Systems, Inc. (BMI) 

 12.  Reject: PRE Tank 4A – Reject Bid 
   

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 
November 19, 2019 – 6:00 p.m. 

District Headquarters 
999 Rush Creek Place 

Novato, California 
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Est. 

Time Item Subject 
  INFORMATION ITEMS 
 13.  Public Communications Plan – Photo Shoot for Website Update 
 14.  Increase in Facility Location Underground Service Alerts (USA) 
 15.  Enterprise Fleet Review 
 16.  Stafford Lake Spill/Rainfall History 
 17.  FY19-20 Quarterly Progress Report – Engineering Department 
 18.  FY19-20 Quarterly Progress Report – Water Conservation 
 19.  MISCELLANEOUS 

Disbursements – Dated November 7, 2019 
Disbursements – Dated November 14, 2019 
2018 SCWA Water Supply Strategies Action Plan 
Point Reyes Station Community Meeting Workshop No. 3 – October 3, 2019 

  News Articles: 
Workshops set for two Novato housing projects 
District elections debut in Novato 
Election bullies strike again in RP 
Police chief gets city manager post- NOVATO 

7:30 p.m. 20.  ADJOURNMENT 
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 5, 2019

CALL TO ORDER

president Jack Baker called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin

Water District to order at 6:00 p.m. at the District Headquarters and the agenda was accepted

as presented. Present were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, James Grossi, Michael Joly and

Stephen Petterle. Also present were General Manager Drew Mclntyre, District Secretary Terrie

Kehoe, Auditor-Controller Julie Blue and Chief Engineer Rocky Vogler.

District employee Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance) was also in attendance.

MINUTES

Director Baker asked for a few minor revisions and on motion of Director Baker,

seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved the revised minutes from the October 15,

2019 meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GENERAL MANA GER'S REPORT

ncelled M SPS Eve

Mr. Mclntyre announced that both the NBWRA and NBWA meetings were cancelled last

week due to the recent Public Safety Power Shutdown by PG&E.

Public Records Act Request

Mr. Mclntyre stated that on October 29th the District received a public records request

from Capitol Weekly for all documents related to NMWD's redistricting under the California

Voting Rights Act. He added that Capitol Weekly is a Sacramento based nonprofit news and

information website. Mr. Mclntyre noted that we are working with our legal counsel to assemble

the applicable documents.
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Director Joly asked if Mr. Mclntyre knew why Capitol Weekly chose to request our

records. Director Petterle also was interested to know why they picked us. Mr. Mclntyre replied

that he assumes many public agencies received the same request.

Flood Control Zone 1

Mr. Mclntyre announced he and Director Grossi will attend a special Flood Control Zone

1 Advisory Board meeting on November 6th at 6:30 p.m.

Office Ren ovation

Mr. Mclntyre reported that on November 7th he and Mr. Clark will have a progress

meeting with our architects, Noll and Tam and Chris DeGabriele regarding the office renovation

project. He added that Noll and Tam is close to submitting a Master Plan report to the Board for

review.

OPEN TIME

President Baker asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response. Director Petterle commented that this is a good sign,

because that means we did a good job with handling the recent Public Safety Power Shutdown

event.

STAF F/ D I RECTO RS RE P O RTS

President Baker asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda

and the following items were discussed:

Ms. Blue announced that our internal recruitment for filling the Accounting Supervisor

position was successful with the selection of Nancy Holton. She added that the HR/Safety

Manager recruitment continues and the posting closes November 18. Ms. Blue stated that the

job is posted on Neogov, Craigslist, the HR Special District Group and our HR legal counsel

also assisted by posting it on Linkedln.

The Board expressed their appreciation to all District staff for a job well done during the

PSPS shut down event. They added that all the comments they received from the public were

positive. Director Joly thanked Mr. Mclntyre for all the PSPS updates and the staff for standing

watch so proudly. He added it was an honor to see a small utility such as ours stand tall and

deliver our product even when PG&E faltered. Mr. Mclntyre responded that it was not an easy

task and required a districtwide effort. Director Joly stated he was out of power for 72 hours in

the San Marin area and can't imagine what it would have been like if they were out of water as

well. Director Petterle stated it was good to be able to tell people they did not have to worry

about water. Director Grossi added everything went smoothly, he only heard good things and

we didn't have any problems due to the efforts of staff.
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Director Fraites commented on the newsletter noting there is a blank space on the

address section and it unfolds awkwardly. He added there should be something eye catching

on the front to entice the customer to open it. Mr. Mclntyre replied he appreciated the input.

Y FINANCIAL S TEMENT

Ms. Blue presented the Quarterly Financial Statement for Fiscal Year 2019-20' She

reviewed the Novato, West Marin, Oceana Marin, and Recycled Water budgets summarizing

net income and expenses. She noted for the first quarler, the District generated a net income of

$1.4M and noted the ratio of total cash to budgeted annual operating expense stood at 114%.

Director Joly asked about the Stafford Treatment Plant low cost of production. Ms. Blue

responded that the Treatment Plant is in full production mode right now and production costs do

not reflect ongoing fixed costs during the winter season plant shutdown. She added that as time

goes on overall Treatment Plant production costs will better reflect annual operating costs.

ACTION ITEMS

OPERATOR-IN-CHARGE S/DE LETTER WITH ASSOC'AflON

Ms. Blue explained that in order to comply with the state of California; the District's

Oceana Marin Sewer System must have an Operator-in-Charge (OlC) on record with the State

Water Resource Control Board. This agreement provides extra duty pay for the individual who

performs the additional OIC duties.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Joly the Board approved

the Operator-in-Charge Side Letter Agreement with the Employee Association by the following

vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

FLOATING Y SIDE LETTER WITH EMPLOYEE ASSOCTATTOru

Ms. Blue explained under the current MOU, floating holiday accrual has caused some

operational impacts to various deparlments. The new agreement divides the distribution of the

four floating holidays to one day per quarter and allows full{ime employees to accrue up to 40

hours of floating holiday leave.

Director Baker asked if this affected the Treatment Plant Operators more than our

Construction crew. Ms. Blue responded that it affects all our employees and noted that the new
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policy will help the District to balance the days off more efficiently. Director Grossi asked if there

was any discussion with the Employee Association (EA). Ms. Blue replied that both side letter

agreements were reviewed and approved by the Employee Association

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Joly the Board approved

the Floating Holiday Side Letter Agreement with the Employee Association by the following

vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ULTANTS ENGINEERING

AGREEMENT (CREST PUMP STATIONI

Mr. Vogler stated Kennedy/Jenks (tlJ) scope of work is to review the District's

preliminary plans and specifications and complete the design to prepare a final set of bid

documents. Director Grossi asked what the cost of the project will be. Mr. Vogler replied around

$650,000. Director Fraites asked if there is an illustration drawing depicting the architectural

style of the building. Mr. Vogler responded that he already conducted a community workshop in

the Bahia neighborhood to review the design. Director Fraites asked if we would rename the

pump station to Bahia Drive. Mr. Vogler replied that this pump station feeds Crest Tank so we

will carry that name fon¡rard. Director Fraites commented that there are no other structures in

the vicinity and he wants to be sure the pump station building fits in. Mr. Vogler responded that

we will be putting in low water use landscaping in front of the structure, however we do have

space limitations since it is a small parcel size. Director Petterle commented that we have a

history of having nice looking pump stations and we must live up to our image. Director Joly

asked how many pump stations we have in our District. Mr. Clark responded Novato has 26.

Director Joly asked how many services does Crest Pump Station supply. Mr. Clark responded

approximately 1,000.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board authorized

the General Manager to execute the Consulting Engineering Services Agreement for Crest

Pump Station with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
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ABSENT: None

PLUM STREET TANK PROPERTY EXCHANGE - GRAND DEED

Mr. Vogler informed the Board that in order to complete the transfer of District propedy

to 15 Zandra Place, the Board must approve a Resolution authorizing the execution of a grant

deed conveying 180 square feet of District property to the new owner.

Director Baker asked if this was a lot line adjustment. Mr. Vogler concurred and stated

that Dale White had worked on it. Director Baker commented that he respected Mr. White's

judgement since he has been around for a long time. Director Grossi noted there was not an

easement noted on the document, and asked where the easement was. Mr. Vogler stated he

will do further research and get back to the Board. Director Grossi said there was no need to

bring it back, just check it out.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board approved the

Plum Street Tank Propedy Exchange - Grant Deed by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

OLD RANCH ROAD TANK NO- 2 _ REOUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO CONDUCT CEAA

PUBLIC REVIEW

Mr. Vogler requested authorization from the Board to initiate the CEQA 30-Day Public

Review Period for the project and to schedule a public hearing for the January 7, 2020 Board

meeting. He added that even though it is not required, letters will go out to the owners to let

them know about a scoping meeting so they have an opporlunity to learn more about the project

and provide comment.

Director Joly asked when the District will send out the notices. Mr. Vogler replied once

he receives authorization to do so. Director Joly asked if the comments were due by December

15th. Mr. Vogler confirmed and stated that he will work with the consultant in responding to

comments. Director Fraites asked how we currently get to the tank, if there is an existing road.

Mr. Vogler responded that there is a paved road that goes to the last house on the street, then

adjacent to it is a dirt driveway that leads up to the tank. Director Fraites commented that he

noticed we will be taking out 71 trees and 62 of those are Oaks, and asked if there was any

other way to access the new tank. Mr. Vogler stated that this was the only way to provide a

suitable access road that wasn't too steep and problematic. He added that they tried to

minimalize impacts to the tree canopy and most of the trees to be removed are small in
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diameter and not heritage trees. Mr. Mclntyre added that the existing access is poor and this

new access road alignment will help address problematic site access issues, especially during

inclement weather. Director Baker noted that Wild Horse Tank is also very difficult to access.

Director Grossi asked what zone this tank is located in. Mr. Vogler replied, Zone 3. Director

Fraites asked if the road will be paved with asphalt or concrete. Mr. Vogler replied asphalt.

Director Petterle asked if it will be visible. Mr. Vogler responded that with the heavy tree canopy

and limited elevation change it will be difficult to see from afar.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

initiation of the Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 CEQA 30-Day Public Review Period and

scheduling of a public hearing for the January 7,2020 Board meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

INFORMATION ITEMS

PG&E OCTOBER 26-30, 2019 PUBLIC SAFETY SHUTDOWN RESPONSE (PSPSI UPDATE

Mr. Clark updated the Board on the recent Public Safety Power Shutdown event. He

reported that overall this was a valuable exercise for demonstrating staff's ability to work

together to meet the District's mission to provide reliable water and sewer service to our

customers. He noted that District staff provided an outstanding response to an unprecedented

event in the history of the District. Mr. Clark added that the lessons learned will be used to

improve our response for the next significant power outage or emergency event. Mr. Clark also

noted that during this event Comcast internet service was down, and we had limited service

from the District Verizon cell phones; noting he had heard AT&T was having the same issue.

He added that during the outage we were maintaining around the clock staffing using three 8-

hour shifts to make sure we maintained uninterrupted service to our customers.

Director Baker asked what would have happened if there was a local fire. Mr. Clark

replied that the tanks were all at or above 80% capacity the whole time. Director Grossi asked

what the impact was on the internet. Mr. Clark replied that we were unable to receive emails,

and we were limited in sending out information to the outside and staff. Director Grossi stated

he has point to point internet and he received uninterrupted service. Director Grossi stated that

he will give Mr. Clark the information for the carrier he uses and added they are expanding their

service territory.

Director Joly asked if our AMI system was down. Mr. Clark confirmed, adding we are
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still evaluating if any data was lost, Director Joly stated that if water use was down to 3.5 million

gallons per day, and winter use is at 5 million, what would normal use be this time of year. Mr.

Clark replied from 9 to 10 million gallons per day. Director Grossi asked if we thanked our

customers for curtailing use. Mr. Mclntyre confirmed stating that we posted thank you

messages on our website and social media. Director Joly asked if we received any feedback on

what we could do better. Mr. Mclntyre stated that all the feedback was positive. Mr. Clark also

thanked the Board for approving purchase and rental of extra generators and fuel storage tanks,

stating we did not interrupt service to our customers at any time. Director Joly asked if 72 hours

is considered a medium sized shutdown. Mr. Clark replied that PG&E said they we could lose

power from two to seven days. Director Joly asked what an additional five days off would look

like. Mr. Clark responded that we should be able to keep up but it would be more disruptive to

staff operations. Mr. Mclntyre also addressed Director Joly's question about the extension of

the event noting that another concern would be fuel. He added that the City of Santa Rosa

reporting having a harder time getting fuel to fill up their generators. Mr. Mclntyre said to Mr.

Clark's credit, we rented additional fuel tanks which gave us more control over the situation.

Director Baker stated that this topic was discussed at the October 7th WAC meeting in

Santa Rosa where everyone took turns speaking on how things went during the PSPS event

and what they would do differently next time. He added fuel did come up as an issue, and

stated that the needs of Cal Fire trumped the needs of the agencies. Director Petterle stated his

power was back on Monday night and Director Joly stated power in San Marin was back on

around 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday. Mr. Mclntyre commented that Oceana Marin power did not come

back on until Thursday, October 31st at 6:00 p.m. He added that this event essentially

impacted the entire staff, and everyone stepped up to ensure our customers had uninterrupted

service. Mr. Mclntyre stated that he appreciated all staff's efforts during this event and thanked

Mr. Clark for taking the lead in preparing for this event. Director Petterle agreed whole heartily,

and noted we need to keep in mind that an earthquake will be very different. Mr. Clark added

that we need to continue to train staff to be responders. Director Joly stated we haven't had an

earthquake of considerable size since 1989 and voiced his concern over the Roger's Creek

fault. Director Grossi added that the San Andreas Fault still remains a big concern.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements - Dated October

17,2019, Disbursements * Dated October 24,2019, Disbursements - Dated October 31,2019,

Comment Letter - Development of Water Loss Performance Standards and FY20 1st Quarter

Labor Cost Report.
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The Board received the following news arlicles: California finds widespread water

contamination of 'forever chemicals'; Point Reyes wastewater feasibility study handed off;

Annexing muddle prompts apology - Novato; Marin's big rainfall year fails to reduce fire risk

Housing for staff foiled by blooper - Housing - COLLEGE OF MARIN; Winter weather outlook:

'the probabilities tilt slightly toward warmer and drier than normal'; Discounts considered for

water fee - MARIN MUNICIPAL; lnterim director hired to oversee finance division - Novato;

FCC finds broad failure of cellular sites in Marin County; PG&E restores power to approximately

99% of customers and Editorial - Cell towers need to work during outages.

Mr. Mclntyre commented on the City of Novato hiring one of our past employees, David

Bentley, to temporarily step in and help in the finance department. Director Joly commented

that he thought that was great. Director Baker stated that it may take a while to get someone

permanently hired.

ADJOURNMENT

President Baker adjourned the meeting at 7.09 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR OcÚober 2019

November 19, 2019

Item #5

1

Novato Potable Water Prod* - RR & ST P Combined - in Million Gallons - FYTD

Month FY19/20 18/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 20 vs 19 %

July
A.ugust

September
October

317.2
283.8
280.5
281.0

341.1

300.9

255.0
265.6

227.2
235.2
210.0
298.6

331.0
303.0
292.4
273.7

310.3
299.6
302.3
202.8

-7To

-b70

10%

6%

FYTD Total 1,162.5 1,162.6 1,200.1 1,114. 971 .1 0o/o9

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

Month FY19/20 FYl B/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 20 vs 19 %

July
August
September
October

8.9
8.4
7.8

10.2
9.9
9.5
ooo.J

6.6
7.0
ô.4
6.5

9.5 7.9

8.8
8.4
7.9

7.4

6.4
5.2

-13o/o

-16%

-18%
-11o/ot,5

32.4 37.9 34.5 26.9 26.5 -15%
FYTD Total

Stafford T reatme nt Plant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
FY19/20 FY18/19 FY17/18 FY16/17 FY15/16 20vs19%Month

67.7
1 00.5
1 15.0

98.4

90.4
96.9
93.9

107.6
79.4
38.3
49.5

78.6
79.3

60.5
74.5

112.6
81.5

122.7
102.3

69. I -14%

27%

90%
32%

July
August
September
October
FYTD Total 38'1.6 292.9 419.1 351 .1 274.8 30%

Re d Water Production* - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

Month 9/20 FYl I FY17/18 6/17 FY15/16 20 vs 19 %

July
August
September
October

36.5
33.3
29.7
26.6

30.2

30.6
33.5

20.1

27.7
26.1

25.0
19.1

27.1

26.0
23.5

8.3

21.3
26.2
15.7
15.8

21%
9%

-12o/o

32o/o

FYTD Total* 126.1 114.4 ' 97.9 85.0 79.1 10%

.Excludes potable water¡nputto the RWsystem: FY19=9.2 MG; FY18=15.35MG;FY17=14MG; FY16=7.4MG

t:\ac\exceNw tr use\[production.xlsx]fy 1 9.20

2. Stafford ke Data

Rainfallthis month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevation*
Lake

October Average

1.40 lnches
1.70 lnches

181.1 Feet
509 MG

October 2018

2.11 lnches
2.11 lnches

177.4 Feet
372 MG

October 2019

0.1

1 83.
76

0 lnches
3 lnches
6 Feet
1MG

. Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet
** Lake storage less 390 ¡ylQ = quantity available for delivery

Temperature (in deqrees)

Minimum Maximum Averaqe

October 2018 Novato 49 g4 70

October 20'19 (Novato) 35 101 69

t:\gm\progress report\current progress report octotler 20'19 doc



3. Number of Services

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv Status Report (October)

5. Developer Proiects Status Report (October)

October 31

Nr vato Water: Recycled Water West Marin Water : Oceana Marin Swr

FY20 FY1 9 lncr Yo FY2O FY1 9 lncr % FY2O FY1 9 lncr Yo FY2O FY1 9 lncr %

Total meters installed
Total meters actiw
Actiw dwelling units

20,750 20,747 0.0% oÃ, 95 0.0% 791 790 oj%
20,544 20,535 0.0% 90 91 -1.1% 783 782 0.1%

24,077 24,068 0.0o/o 833 832 O.1o/o 234 234 0.0%

rrdc\o¡csl\wlr u6o\lprdúcllotr rl6rlôrv¿Ê m¡ pi

Description October 2018 October 2019

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.399 0.380

rrigation Field Discharge 1.024 0

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 7.5 6.2

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) 5.9 10.2

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1.2807.00
1.2817.03
1 .2816.00
1.2821.00
1.2824.00
1.2823.00

Hamilton Cottages
College of Marin - New Miwok Center
Oakmont Senior Living
Atherton Place
Park-A-Pup
Avesta

94
4
97
92
85
5

1

0
I
2
5
3

District Proiects Status Report - Const. Dept' (Octoberl

Job No Proiect % Complete % This month

1.6112.24
2.6263.20
L7150.00
1.7007.13
1.7123.26
1 .7183.00

Lynwood Pump Station MCC
Replace PRE Tank 4A
San Mateo Tank lnleUOutlet
DCA Replacement
PB Replace MCCE
Replace Plastic 4-inch -Scown Lane

15
5
5
5
5
5

0
0
0
5
5
5

Emplovee Hours to Date. FY l8/19

As of Pay Period Ending October 31,2019
Percent of Fiscal Year Passed = 33%

6. SafeW/Liability

FY 20 through October
FY 19 through October

Days without a lost time accident through October 31, 2019

\\nmwdserver 1\ad minist rat ion\AC\ EXC EL\Pêrsonrel\wc\WC.X LS

2

Developer
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

District
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

Construction 1,387 1,400 99% W Construction 754 3.740 20%
Enqineerinq 441 1,504 29% ffi Engineering 678 3,096 22%

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time
Liability Claims

Paid

Lost Days
OH Cost of
Lost Days

($)

No. of
Emp.

lnr,olr,ed

No. of
lncidents

lncurred
(FYrD)

Paid
(FYTD)

($)

0

6
$o

$2, 1 60
0

1

0

1

0

3
$0

$5,223

t:\gm\progress report\current progress report octobêr 2019.doc
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7. Energy Cost
October Fiæal Year-to-Date thru October

FYE
Stafford TP

Pumping
Other*

2019 Stafford TP

Pumping
Other*

2018 Stafford TP

Pumping
Other*

kwh Wh
lnformat ron not awilable
lnformation not awilable
lnformation not awilable

kwh ø/kwh
ion not awilable

lnformation not awilable
lnformation not awilable

78,764
1 39,01 9

44,942

20.0ø,

21.1ø
27.9ç,

$526
$979
$41 I

293,308
663,964
196,114

1 9.9ø

20.7ø,

26.7ø,

$475

81,124
$430

262,725 22,0ø, $1,923 1,153,386 21.5ø, $2,029

58,314
141,312

40,821

1e.7ø

22,8ø

26.6É,

$371

$1,11 1

$388

275,547
660,408
191,565

19.4ø,

21.1ø,

27.31,

$435

$1,1 34

s429
240,447 22.7ø $1 ,870 1,127,520 21.81, $1,998

.Other includes West Marin Facilities
tlac\board reports\pge\pg&e usæe\fy 19.20\[pge usage 10.2019.xlsx]m rpt

I Water Gonse lJodate

9. Utilitv Performance Metric

*Atherton Place hydrant hit by contractor. 14 services, 2 hours, unplanned

3

Month of
October 2019

FiscalYear to
Date

Program Total
to Date

Hiqh Efficiencv Toilet (HET) Rebates 16 50 4102

Retrofit Certificates Filed 16 74 6316

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out 2 7 928
Washinq Machine Rebates 1 1 6798
Water Smart Home Survey 17 41 3788

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS
(No. of Gustomers lmpacted)

October 2019 October 20lB Fiscal Year to
Date 2019

Fiscal Year to
Date 2018

PLANNED

Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 3 6 10 34

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours 96 83

Duration Greater than 12 hours
UNPLANNED
Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 15* 47 25
Duration Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours

SERVICE LINES REPLACED
Polvbutvlene 4 6 32 47
Copper (Replaced or Repaired) 0 0 I 5

t:\gm\progress reporl\current progress r€porl october 2019.doc



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Complaints & Service Orders October 2019

Type Oct-19 Oct-18
11t12t2019

Actíon Taken October 2019

Consumers' Svstem Problem,
Service Line Leaks
House Plumbing
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
Low Pressure
High Pressure

Total

Service Repair Reports
Meter Replacement
Meter Box Alignment
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc. Field lnvestigation

Iotal

Leak NMWD Facilities
Main-Leak
Service- Leak
Services-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Washer Leaks

Total

Hiqh Bill Com plaints
Consumer Leaks
Meter Misread
Nothing Found
Excessive lrrigation

Total

Water Qualitv Complaints
Taste and Odor

38
1

10
12

1

2

54
0
I

26
1

3

Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
Low pressure due to pump affected in PG&E outage
Pressure failed @ 110 PSl. HOA to replace PRV.
Pressure failed @ 110 PSl. PRV to be installed.

Replaced
Repaired
Replaced
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

Repaired
Repaired

Repaired
Repaired

Ñotified Consumer
Notified Consumer

Customer repoñed water tasting like plastic.
(W|NTERGREEN CT.)

Lab staff sampled kitchen and outside hose bibs.
No plastic taste when lab sampled. Other results
were normal for NMWD supply. Customer was
notified of results.

Customer reported strong chlorine taste & odor.
(KATHLEEN DR.)
Lab staff sampled front hose bib. Chlorine levels
were normalfor NMWD supply. Customer was
notified of results.

Customer reporled strong hose odor from inside
the house. (PIZARRO AVE)

Lab staff sampled kitchen and outside hose bibs.
Chlorine odor noted at sampling. Other results
were normal for NMWD supply. Customer was
notified of results. Referred for backflow inspection.

64 92

2
1

0

11

12

3

0
I
0
3

26 17

20 17

0
8
I
2
6

I
B

1

5

5

1

1

4
0

31

3J

I

10
2

'16

3

t6

c-1



Summarv of m nle¡nts &

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Service Orders ônfoh er 2019

Oct-18 Action Taken October 2019
11t12t2019

Oct-19

Other

Iotal
TOTAL FOR MONTH:

FiscalYTD Summarv
Consumer's System Problems
Servlce Repair Report
Leak NMWD Facilities
High Bill Complaints
Low Bills
Water Quality Complaints
Total

"ln House" Generated and
Completed Work Orders

Check Meter: possible
consumer/District leak, high
bill, flooded, need read, etc.

Chanqe Meter: leaks,
hard to read

Possible Stuck Meter
Repair Meter: registers,

shut offs
Replace Boxes/Lids
Hvdrant Leaks
Trims
Dis Outs
Letters to Consumer:

meter obstruction, trims,
bees, gate access, etc.
get meter number,
kill service, etc.

Bill Adjustments Under Board Policy:
October 19 vs. October 18

Oct-19
Oct'18

vs Prior FY

FY 19120
FY 18/19

1 0 Customer repofted stomach pain after drinking
from water fountain. (OLIVE WAY)
Lab tested water fountain and outside hose bib.

Results of analysis were normalfor NMWD supply
Coliforms absent. Customer was notified of results.

-19%
4 3

130 160

348
101

88
43

0
14

338
116
106
154

2

16

3%
-13%
-17%
-72o/o

-100o/o

-13o/o

Chanqe P rilv Due To
lncrease ln Service Line Leaks.

Decrease ln Water Off/On Due to Repairs

Decrease ln Service Leaks.

Decrease ln Nothing Found.

Decrease in Meter Misreads.

No one issue

594 9%732

91

7

2
0

29
0
0
3

2

196

10

0

0

2

0

B

24
0

134 240

$27,766
$40,055

34
47

$10,084
$1 1,281

Fiscal Year

107
143

c-2

t:\cons sruc\complãint report\lcomplain 20 official.xlsx]oct19



To:

From

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller )lô
Nancy Hoiton, Senior Accountant z //

Auditor-Controller's Monthly Report of lnvestments for October 2019

November 15,2019

Subj
t:\ac\word\invest\20\investment report 1 01 9.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amortized costvalue (i.e., cash balance)

of 922,230,557 and a market value of $22,262,895. During October the cash balance increased by

$2,389,365. The market value of securities held increased $32,338 during the month. The ratio of total

cash to budgeted annual operating expense stood at 128o/o, up 14o/o from the prior month.

At October 31,2019, 55% of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's Local Agency

lnvestment Fund (LAIF),25o/o in Time Certificates of Deposit, 9% in US Treasury Notes, 5% in the

Marin County Treasury, and 6% retained locally for operating purposes. The weighted average maturity

of the portfolio was 1 14 days, compared to 130 days at the end of September. The LAIF interest rate

forthe month was2.197o, compared to 2.28o/o the previous month. Theweighted average Portfolio rate

was2.217o, compared to 2.35% the previous month.

lnvestment Transactions for the month of October are listed below.

10t11 Sachs Bank USBank $249,105.25 TCD

10t11
10/15/2019:US
lOtlltZSlS,ÚS
10t3112019 US Bank

Gotdman SáCns aänk , Sa:+i,ätzs.ot
LA|F $400,000.00
LAIF $575,00

$soo,ooLAIF

Purchase 1.70% TCD due 10112121

Trsf to LAIF account
Trsf to LAIF account

0.00 Trsf to LAIF account

Bank
Bänk



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AUDITOR.CONTROLLER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

October 31,2019
S&P Purchase Maturity Cost 1013'|12019

Type Description

o/o of
PortfolioRating Date Date Basisr Market Value Yield2

LAIF State of CA Treasury AA- Various Open $12,142,380 $'12,163,165 2.19% 3 55%

Time
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD

US lreasury lVofes
Treas 2.250%
Treas 2.750o/o

Other
Agency Marin Co Treasury
Other Various

Ce¡tificate of Deposit
Morgan Stanley Bank
American Express Centurion
Sallie Mae Bank
Discover Bank
Wells Fargo Bank
Citibank
UBS Bank
Enerbank
BMW Bank
Bank of America
Ally Bank
Barclays Bank
CIT Bank
Reliance Bank
lberia Bank
TIAA Bank
Merrick Bank
Eaglebank
Central Bank
Morgan Stanley Private Bank
CapitalOne Bank NA
CapitalOne Bank USA
Goldman Sachs Bank USA

247,OOQ
247,O00
247,O00
247,000
248,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
249,000
246,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
249,000
247,OO0
247,000
247,000

247 247

998,723 1,002,539
001

1.75o/o 1o/o

1.90Yo lYo
2.2OYo 1o/o

2.35o/o 1%
2.55% 1o/o

2.55o/o 1%
2.70Yo 1%
2.75o/o 1%
2.75o/o lok
2.75o/o 1o/o

2.BOo/o 1%

3.00% 1o/o

3.00% 1%
2.70%o 1%
2.70o/o 1o/o

2.75Yo 1Yo

2.60%o 1%
2.60% 1o/o

2.40% 1o/o

2.40ok 1o/o

1.85% 1o/o

1.75% 1Yo

1.7jo/o lYo-2M----M

nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla
nla

11t9t17
12t5t17
1t10t18
2113118

3t28118
4111118

5/30/1 I
6118118
6115t18
8t15t18
9t28t18
11114t18
12117118
1t11t19
1125t19
1t18t19
2t8t19

3t15t19
4t18t19
5t23t19
8t21t19
916t19

10t11t19

11t12t19
12t5t19
1t10t20
2t24t20
3t30t20
4t13t20
6t1t20
5t18t20
6t15t20
8t17t20
9t28t20
11t16t20
12t17t20
1t11t21
1t25t21
7t19t21
2t8t21

3t15t21
4119121

5124t21
8123121
9t7t21

10t12t21

247,O00
247,000
247,O00
247,OOO
248,000
246,000
249,O00
249,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
246,000
249,000
246,000
246,000
249,000
249,000
249,000
247,000
247,OO0
247,OO0

4%
5%

nla
nla

AAA Various Open
nla Various Open

TOTAL IN PORTFOLIO

$1,080,210 $1 ,080,210 2.37%

2.560/0

2.75o/o

2.660/0 9Yo

5%o

0.41Yo 6To-zzq; --rõ0%

lnterest
Rate
2.40o/o

1.00%
Contingent

7t26t18
3t5t19

3t31t20
9t30t20 1

1 1

Weighted Average Maturity = 114 Days

nO.

TCD: Time Certificate of Deposit, ïreas: US Treasury Notes with maturity of 5 years or less.
Agency: STP State Revolving Fund Loan Reserve.
Other: Comprised of 5 accounts used for operating purposes. US Bank Operating Account, US Bank STP SRF Loan

Account, US Bank FSA Payments Account, Bank of Marin AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petty Cash Fund.
1 Or¡gìnal cost less repayment of principal and amortization of premium or discount.
2 Yield defined to be annual¡zed interest earnings to maturity as a percentage of invested funds.
3 Earnings are calculated daily - this represents the average yield for the month ending October 31, 2019.

Loan Maturity Original Principal
lnterest Bearing Loans Date Date LqqnAmount Outstanding

StoneTree Golf Loan 6/30/06 2128124 $3,612,640 $1 ,006,078
Marin Country Club Loan 111118 1111147 $1,265,295 91,198,371
Employee Housing Loans (4) Various Various 714,200 714,200

TOTAL trurERESr B EARTNa TOAwS @
The District has the ability to meet the next six months of cash flow requirements.

I laccounta nts\inveslm enls\20\f 1 0 1 9.xlsl mo rpt





Item #6

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

November 15,2019To:

From W
Subject: Approve Resolution Authorizing Application.to the Director of lndustrial Relations, State of CA' 

for a Certificate of Consent to Self-lnsure Workers' Compensation Liabilities
tlac\boârd roports\board msmos\2o'1g\os¡p - consgnt to self insure - board memo docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution Authorizing Application to the Department of lndustrial

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Relations

None

The District recenily placed its 71112019-4l1l2O2O Workers' Compensation insurance cóverage

with California Mutuals Joint Powers Risk and lnsurance Management Authority (JPRIMA), an insurance

pool governed by California's Office of Self-lnsurance Plans (OSIP). The OSIP requires that members of

pools acknowledge that the pool itself is self-insured. This is not equivalent to the District itself being

self-insured, as the coverage is written first-dollar with the pool, and the pool is fully reinsured through

Zenith lnsurance Company. Zenith is responsible for all costs through the life cycle of a claim, as is the

case in a typical first-dollar program'

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board approve resolution authorizing application to the Department of lndustrial

Relations to self-insure workers' compensation liabilities'

Approved by

Date I



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 1

State of California
Department of lndustrial Relat¡ons

OFFICE OF SELF-INSURANCE PLANS

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT
TO SELF-INSURE AS A PUBLIC AGENCY EMPLOYER SELF-INSURER

All questions must be answered. lf not applicable, enter "N/4".

To the Director of the Department of lnclustrial Relations: The public agency employer ìdentified
below submits the following information to obtain a Ceftificate of Consent to Self-lnsure the payment of
workers' compensation under California Labor Code Section 3700.

LEGAL NAME OF APPLICANT (Show exactly as on Charter or other official documents):

North Marin Water District

Address: 999 Rush Creek Pl.

City: Novato State: CA zip + 4. 94948

Federal Tax lD # of Group 94-6002892

CONTACT - Who Should Correspondence Regardrng This Applicant Be Addressed To:

Name: Jim Byerrum/Myra Malner t,,,u. President/Assistant Secretary

Company

Address:

Name; Californja Association of Mutual Waler Companres Joinl lrowers tìisk and lnsurance Management Authõrity

15505 Whittier Blvd.

City Whitiier State Zip+4 90603

Phone: (562) 947-3811 E-Mail

TYPE OF PUBLIC ENTITY (Gheck one):

I City and/or County I Scnoot District f] police and/or Fire District I Hospilal District

n ¡oint Powers Authority M Othut (describe) Special District

TYPE OF APPLICATION (Check one):

I t'tew Application I Reapplication (Merger/Unification) ff Reapplication (Name Change)

n Otfier (describe)

Daie Self-lnsurance Program will begin; July 1 ,2019



Form: A-2 (L-2016) | Pase 2

lÌI IRT¡FNT W'ìRKFRS' PENSATION PROGRAM

I Currently lnsured with State Fund Policy # Expiration Date: _
fl Currently Self lnsured, Certificate #

E Oti,er (describe) Self lnsured for first $1M, Excess Workers' Compensation through

New York Marine & General lnsurance; Policy #WC2018EPP00464; Exp Date of July 1 ,2019
nt 

^tMq
STRÂTIC,N

Who will be administering your agency's workers' compensation claims? (Check one)

fl tpn witl administer

I fnirO Party Administrator, TPA Certificate #

f] RuOtic entity will self-administer

Name of Third Pañy Administrator:

Name: LouÌse Levine

I lnsurance Carrier will administer

Title:

Company Name: Zenith lnsurance Company

Address: 21255 Califa Street

City: Woodland Hills State: CA zip + 4' 91367 5005

phone; (B1B) 713-1000 E-Mail

# of claims reporting locations to be used to handle Agency's clarms; l--
Does applicant currently have a California Certificate of Consent to Self-lnsureZ K yes fl ¡to

lf yes, what is the current Cerlifìcate Number, 7905-00

Total Number of Affiliate's California employees to be covered by Gror-rp 52 Full Time & 10 Part Time

AGENCY EMPLOYER _--
52 Full Time & 10 Part Time 

^Current # of Agency Employees: # of Public Safety Employees (police//fire): ' _
lf school District, lÉ of certificated employees 0

Wll all Agency employees be covered by this self-insurance plan? [| Yes n No

lf 'No', explain who ls not covered and how workers' compensation coverage will be provided to the
excluded employees:



Form: A-2 (1-2016) | Page 3

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

Will applicant be a member of a JPA for workers' compensation ?

Zl yes fl ¡ro (lf 'yes', complete the following)

Effective date of JPA Membership: July 1 ,2019 JPA Certificate # 5820

Name of JpA: California Associat¡on of Mutual Water Companies Joint Powers Risk and lnsurance Management Author¡ty

AGENCY trTV PRôfìPÂM

Does the Agency have a written lnjury and lllness Prevention Program (llPP)? X yes n ¡lo

lndividual responsible for Agency workplace safety and llPP program:

Name: Robert Clark Title: erations/Maintenance Su rintendent

Company Name: North Marin Water District

Address: 999 Rush Creek Place

City Novato State: CA Zip + 4. 94945

phone: (415)897-4133 E-Mait: rclark@nmwd.com

SUPPLEMENTAL COVERAGE

1.) Will your program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under a STANDARD
workers' compensation insurance policy? [ ves Ø ruo (lf 'Yes', complete the followìng):

Name of Excess Pool/Carrier: N/A

Polìcy #: N/A Effective Date of Coverage

2.) Wlll your prolJram be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage u¡nder a SPECIFIC
EXCESS workers'compensation insurance policy? L__l 

yes L4 t'¡o (lf 'Yes', complete the following)

Name of Excess Pool/Carrier: N/A

Policy #. N/A Effective Date of Coverage

Retention Limits:

3.) Will your program be supplemented by any insurance or pooled coverage under an AGGIEGATE
EXCESS (stop loss) specific excess workers' compensation insurance policy? [ Ves l-¿] ruo

(lf 'Yes', complete the following).

Name of Excess Pool/Carrier: N/A

Policy #: N/A

Retention Limits

Effective Date of Coverage



Form: A-2 (1-20L6) | Page 4

RESOLUTION GOVE RNING RôÂRT)

Attach a properly executed Governing Board Resolution. See attached sample resolution on page 5.

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned on behalf of the appl¡cant hereby applies for a Certificate of
Consent to Self-lnsure the payment of workers' compensation liabilities pursuant
to Labor Code Section 3700. The above information is submitted for the purpose
of procuring said Certificate from the Ðirector of lndustrial Relations, State of
California. lf the Gertificate is issued, the applicant agrees to comply with
applicable Galifornia statutes and regulations pertaining to the payment of
compensation that may become due to the applicant's employees covered by the
Certiflcate.

X -ûu0;¿, &únø rtlS lnDATE
St{9Þ: Àuthorized Official / Representative

Julie Blue
Printed Name

Auditor-Controller
Title

North Marin Water District
Agency Name



Form: A-2 (1-20L6) | Page 5

RESOLUTION NO.: DATED: November 19 2019

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZ¡NG APPLICATION
TO THE DIRECTOR OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR A CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT TO SELF-INSURE
WORKERS' COMPENSATION LIAB¡LITI ES

At a meeting of the Board of Directors
(Enler Name of the Board)

of the North Marin Water District
(Enter Name of Public Ascncy, Dishct, Etc.)

¿ Special District organized and existing under the
(Enter Type of Agency, i.e., County, City, School DÌstrict, etc.)

laws of the State of California, held on the 19th day of November 20 19 ,

the following resolution was adopted:

RESOLVED, that the above named public agency is authorized and empowered to
make application to the Director of Industrial Relations, State of California, for a
Certificate of Consent to Self-lnsure workers' compensation liabilities and
representatives of Agency are authorized to execute any and all documents
required for such application.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I HAVE SIGNED AND AFFIXED THE AGENCY SEAL

DATE: November 19,2019
SIGNED: Board Secretary or Chair

Theresa Kehoe
Printed Name

District Secretary
Title

North Marin Water District
Agency Name

Affix Seal Here





Item #T

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer

November 15,2019

f''/
Subject: Cost Sharinglor 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update

tlgm\uwmp 2020\letter agreemênt bod memo.doc

R E c o M M E N D E D Ac' o N : 
âi^ äff :¡ T:iiy ï:3:' [ "ffi å'':"" h:l''ii.ä' ::"Jì:* ï$
ffiå:H' ä :f' : : :3'wü"?ti"i: Hili 

""g:i"5ii 

oTå5'

FINANC¡AL IMPACT: $29,931 plus $2,933 contingency (lncluded as Part of $50,000
Budget in FY20 and FY21)

Section 2.7 of the Restructured Agreement with the Sonoma County Water Agency states:

"The Agency shall periodically prepare a draft regional Urban Water Management Plan pursuant to

the Water Code for consideration by the water contractors," The next Urban Water Management

Plan (2020) is due for submittal to the Department of Water Resources by June 30, 2021.

Again, as was done in 2010 and 2015, the Water Contractors have banded togetherto enlist

a consultant to update the Water Demand Analysis and Water Gonservation Measures for the 2020

Urban Water Management Plan. The City of Santa Rosa has agreed to be the project manager and

contracting entity for the consultant's work.

A Letter Agreement between the City of Santa Rosa and the participating Water Contractors

to share the cost of the contract with the consultant, EKI Environment and Water (Burlingame, CA)

is attached. For North Marin the cost share for the work is $29,931. The Board is requested to

authorize the General Manager to execute the Letter Agreement with Santa Rosa.

The consultant's analysis will provide the District with an updated water demand and

updated estimate of water conservation savings consistentwith methodology used by allof the other

contractors. Once the demand and water conservation information is available, the District will

complete its own Urban Water Management Plan with input from SCWA. Any final Urban Water

Management Plan will be reviewed by District staff and our legal counsel prior to request for Board

adoption.

Recommendation:

Board authorize GeneralManagerto execute a LetterAgreementwith the Cityof Santa Rosa

to share cost of EKI's work to update Water Demand and Water Conservation Analysis for the 2020

UWMP in the amount of $29,931 with a 10% contingency ($2,933).

Approved by G

Date



Letter Agreement

Letter Agreement

Between and Among City of Santa Rosa

And

Cities of Rohnert Park, Petaluma, Sonoma, Cotati, Town of Windsor

And

Marin Municipal Water District, North Marin Water District and Valley of the Moon Water District

For

Funding Consulting Services for Preparation of the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

Water Demand Analysis and Water Conservation Measures Update

1. General

The City of Santa Rosa and other Parties to this Letter Agreement (Cities of Rohnert Park,

Petaluma, Sonoma, Cotati, Town of Windsor and Marin Municipal, North Marin and Valley of the

Moon Water Distrlcts) cooperatively prepared the Scope of Work for Consulting Services for

Preparation of the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Water Demand Analysis and Water

Conservation Measures Update. The City of Santa Rosa has agreed to contract with EKI

Environment & Water ("EKl") for this work. The Parties now desire to establish a cost sharing

arrangement whereby the Parties willjointly fund the work administered by the City of Santa Rosa.

2. Aqreement for Professional Services and Scope of Work

The Agreement for Professional Services with EKI for Preparation of the 2020 Urban

Water Management Plan Water Demand Analysis and Water Conservation Measures Update

("Services Agreement") including the collectively prepared Scope of Work is attached as Exhibit

A to this Letter Agreement and establishes the work to be undertaken by EKI and administered

by the City of Santa Rosa.

3. Cost Share

The Parties agree that the base cost of the work pedormed under the Services Agreement

shall be shared fifty percent (50%) on an equal basis and fifty percent (50%) on a pro-rated basis

based on the number of water service connections existing in each Pady's service territory as of



Letter Agreement

July 2019 (collectively "Cost Share"). Parties that have requested an upgraded, more detailed

report will pay an additional flat fee. Said Cost Share for each Party is shown on Exhibit B attached

to this Letter Agreement and incorporated by this reference,

4. Cost for I Scooe of Work

No increased scope of work shall be authorized under the Services Agreement without

the consent of all Parties to this Letter Agreement, and any cost for said increased scope of work

shall be shared among the Parties in the same manner as described in Section 3 in this Letter

Agreement.

5. Pavment

Payment to the City of Santa Rosa by each Party pursuant to the Cost Share identified in

Section 3 shall be made as follows:

1. Fifty percent (50%) of Cost Share made within thirty (30) days of receipt of an

invoice from City of Santa Rosa subsequent to EKI executing the Services

Agreement.

2. Remainder payment within thirty (30) days upon receipt of invoice subsequent to

EKI completing the work (anticipated to be on December 31, 2020). Payments

shall be made payable to the City of Santa Rosa and mailed to the attention of

Colin Close at 69 Stony Circle, Santa Rosa, CA 95401.

6. Miscellaneous

The Parties agree to execute this Letter Agreement by December 2,2019, which shall be

the effective date of this Letter Agreement. lf all Parlies have not executed this Letter Agreement

by said date, the Parties who have executed this Letter Agreement agree that the cost share will

be recalculated among participating Parties as described in Section 3 and the Services

Agreement will be amended to only include participating parties. The City of Santa Rosa will notify

each Party of the recalculated cost share in writing.

7. Letter Aqreement Authorization

¿



Letter Agreement

This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties

and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parlies with respect to all

or any parl of the transaction discussed in this Letter Agreement. This Letter Agreement may be

signed in counterparts. By signing below, the Parties signify authorization to enter into this Letter

Agreement.

Jennifer Burke
City of Santa Rosa

Date

Darrin Jenkins
City of Rohnert Park

Date

Peggy Flynn
City of Petaluma

Date

Cathy Capriola
City of Sonoma

Date

Damien O'Bid
City of Cotati

Date

J



Letter Agreement

Ken MacNab
Town of Windsor

Bennett Horenstein
Marin Municipal Water District

Drew Mclntyre
North Marin Water District

Alan Gardner
Valley of the Moon Water District

Date

Date

Date

Date

Atiachments Exhibit A - Professional Services Agreement
ExhibitB-CostShare
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environment
& urcfer 577 Airpori Blvd. Suite 500

Burlingome. CA 94010

l6so) 292-910o
ekiconsull.com

22Oclober 2OI9

Colin Close

City of Santa Rosa Water Department
69 Stony Circle
Santa Rosa 95401-

Su bject 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Water Demand Analysis and Water Conservation Measures

Update for Retail Agencies of the Sonoma-Marin Saving Water Partnership
(EKr Be-13s)

Dear Mr. Close

EKI Environment and Water, lnc. (EKl) has prepared the attached "Scope of Work" exhibit to summarize the major

work efforts and key assumptions associated with development of the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

Water Demand Analysisond Woter Conservation Measures lJpdote. We have also included an updated schedule

and cost estimate based on our understanding that three of the Water Contractors would like Detailed Reports

and that six of the Water Contractors would lil<e Streamlined Reports.

We are happy to provide any additional requested information and look forward to working with you.

Very truly yours,

EI(I ENVIRONMENT & WA INC.

Lt t.(

Anona Dutton, P.G., C.Hg.

Vice President

Kath L.W ng

Senior Water Resources Planner
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Exhibit A

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Tqsk I * Preliminory Work

This task consists of initial preparatory work to set up and manage the project, with an emphasis on transparency

and coordination. To streamline coordination efforts, we have assumed that there will be one main contact person

designated for each Water Contractor. As shown in Table 1-, costs for this task are the same irrespective of the

type of reports being generated.

Subfosk l.l * Kick-off ond Dofo Needs Meefing ønd Proiecl Monogemenl

A key means to ensure that Water Contractor staff input is incorporated throughout the process, and that the

project schedule, budget, and expectations are well managed, is through frequent and organized communications.

EKI will work with the City of Santa Rosa (City) and designated Water Contractor staff to identify mutually

beneficial means and frequency of communication and have identified the following key items that will provide

the scaffolding for efficient project management:

. One (L) in-person project kickoff meeting to introduce key members of the project team and to review

project scope and objectives, as well as data needs to support development of the 2020 UWMP Water

Dema nd/Conservation Reports;

¡ Provide an anticipated schedule for each task, which will be updated as needed so that the Water

Contractors are adequately informed of project progress and status;

o Provide monthly invoices to the City supported by progress status repor-ts, which will be broken down by

tasl< and subtask as identified in this proposal; and

. Conduct routine communications and other project management tasks.

Subfosk 1.2 -- Develop Project Timeline

EKI will prepare a detailed project schedule that will include: (L) a timeline for Water Contractors to submit data;

and (2) a detailed timeline for the preparation of the 2020 UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Reports, including
project milestones. All project work is anticipated to be completed by December 3L,2020.

Task 1 Deliverables

. Project kicl<-off meeting, with agenda and meeting notes

. Task-based project schedule, updated as needed

. Monthly invoices and task-based progress status reports

Tosk 2*lnlormolion qnd Dqlo Colleclion

This task consists of collecting and reviewing relevant data. Pertinent information needed to prepare the 2020

UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Reports shall be collected and reviewed. As shown in Table 1, costs for this

some elements of this task vary with the type of reports being generated.

Subfosk 2.1 * Submil Doto Requesf

EKI understands that the Water Contractors have access to a significant amount of data (i.e., customer billing and

water conservation program data) that can be applied forthis project. EKI will submit a detailed data request to

the Water Contractors immedlately following the project kick-off meeting. Data will be requested in electronic

format, such that it can be readily incorporated into a project database (see Subtask 2.5). For example, per the

RFP, Water Contractors will be responsible for providlng annual historicalwater conservation program participant
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I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

data in an Excel or equivalent format. We note that the data request to the Water Contractors may include a

request for information from other agencies, such as detailed property characteristics from the Marin and Sonoma

Cou nty assessors' offices.

Subfosk 2.2 * Review ond Summorize Previous DWR Commenfs

DWR reviewed, and in some cases provided comments on the UWMPs prepared by the Water Contractors in 201-5.

To the extent applicable, EKI will compile and review DWR comments on the demand and conservation section of
the 2015 UWMP for each of the Water Contractors.

Subfosk 2.3 -^ Summorize New DWR Requiremenfs

EKI will summarize the new DWR requirements related to demand analysis and water conservation for the 2020

UWMP and provide a summary of the new requirements that need to be addressed and any recommended

changes to the scope of work for review by Water Contractors.

Sublosk 2.4 * Review Plonning Documenls

As part of the data request (Subtask 2.1), EKI will provide a summary list of the planning documents that are

needed from the Water Contractors. We have assumed that the Water Contractors will provide EKI with the latest

General Plan and relevant background reports and other planning documents in the timeframe specified in the
agreed-u pon project schedule.

EKI will review the Water Contractors' General Plans and other relevant planning documents to establish

forecasted growth to 2045. lf specific forecasts are not available for all Water Contractors, we have assumed that
the individual Water Contractor will instruct EKI to use an alternate source, such as projections made by the
Association of Bay Area Governments.

Subfosk 2.5 *-Conduct Doto Review

EKI will collect and review the data received in response to the data request (Subtask 2.1-), provided the data are

received within the timeframe specified in the agreed-upon project schedule. To the extent that data are missing

or not provided in a timely manner, EKI will contact the individual Water Contractors and seek direction regarding

potential alternative data sources.

To facilitate the analyses conducted herein, EKI will build a worl<ing relational database in Microsoft Access to
manage and mine program participation and other data. This project database and other files summarizing

analytical results (Excel worl<bool<s and GIS files) will be provided to the Water Contractors at the completion of
the project.

Subfosk 2.6".- Prepore Technicol Memorqndum #I

Following the review of the data provided by the Water Contractors, EKI will prepare a brief technical

memorandum (TM)to documentthe data assimilation effort (TM #1-). This memorandum will: (1) summarize the

available historical demand and water conservation program data, (2) summarize the relevant aspects of DWR's

review and new requirements, and (3) document growth projections based on planning documents.

EKI will provide the draft TM #1 to the Water Contractors for review and comment. To the extent applicable,

Water Contractor comments wlll be incorporated into the portions of draft TM #1 that will be included in the 2020

UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Reports, described under Tasl< 4.
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I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 2 Deliverables

r Detailed data request
. Draft TM #1: Summary of Available Data, Key Data Gaps, Potential Data Gap-Filling Approaches, and

Summary of DWR Comments and New Requirements

Tosk 3 * Develop Updoted Regionql Conservol¡on Meosures

The goal of this task is to update the suite of common regional conservation measures that was developed and

used by the Water Contractors in 2015 and will be considered for implementation in the future. As shown in Table

1-, costs for this some elements of this tasl< vary with the type of reports being generated.

Sublosk 3.1 * Anolysis of Posl Progrom Psrlicipalion

As part of the basis for estimating the remaining potential forfuture conservation programs and savings, EKI will

summarize historicalparticipation in all conservation program offerings. ln addition, for a selected group of Water

Contractors, EKI will perform a detailed evaluation of past customer participation for each Water Contractor in up

to five (5) signature conservation programs,l such as Cash for Grass/Mulch Madness, smart irrigation controller

retrofits, hot water recirculation system rebates, Water Smart home evaluations, and public irrigation education

classes.2 Each of the sets of analyses described herein will include the development of compelling maps, charts

and graphics that will support visualization of the results and conclusions and make them accessible to a broad

a ud ie nce.

Past Progra m Participøtion

EKI will summarize the total participation and device distribution from past program participation for the five

signature programs within each Water Contractor's service area, based on the data provided in Task 2.

Participation will be evaluated relative to key geographic, property, and customer demographic characteristics.

More specifically, program participation will include breal<down and comparisons by:

. Neighborhood-level median household income, rate of home-ownership vs. rentership, and household

member age, based on Census data (for residential programs);

¡ Age of building stocl< based on County Assessor parceldata (for residentialand Cll programs, as

appropriate);

. Building, lot, and or irrigated area size, based on County Assessor parcel or other information made

available (for residential and Cll programs, as appropriate); and

o Distance customers travel to attend educational classes (as applicable).

This analysis will also lool< at temporal trends in conservation measuref program participation, with a particular

focus on changes in program parlicipation before, during, and following the recent drought and in connection

with specific marl<eting and outreach campaigns. This approach can be utilized for both intervention-based

programs, and also for more education-based programs (e.9., worl<shop attendance), and as shown in Figure 2,

can provide important insights into reasons for program performance or lacl< thereof.

1 ln EKI's experience, performance of the analysis on a smalìer number of key programs can yield very compelling results. lf desired,

additional programs can be assessed for additionaì cost, Like-programs may be grouped together (e g, by device) or separately (e.g., to

evaluate the difference in participation ìn rebate versus no-cost programs).
2 Analysìs of public educatìon classes assumes that that the Water Contractors can provìde specific informatìon on customers who

attended the programs.
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I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

G eosp ati a I P ø rtí ci pati o n De n sity An ø lysi s

For a selected group of water contractors, EKI will perform geospatial analyses of program participation to identify

program participation density for the five identified programs within each Water Contractor's service area. This

analysis will be used to identify statistically significant areas of high and low participation density (participation

"hot" and "cold" spots) for residential conservation programs. These results will be summarized and presented by

Water Contractor which: (1) will allow for a comparison of the relative program saturation between Water

Contractors; and (2) can be used to inform future program targeting and marketing efforts. Maps will be produced

showing hot and cold spots based on Water Contractor service areas, for each program and customer type. These

data can also be provided to the Water Contractor as GIS files.

Subfosk 3.2 * Anolyze ond Quonlify Woler Sovings Achieved by Post Progroms

ln orderto analyze and quantify actualwater savings achieved due to past program participat¡on, EKI proposes to

utilize a "cohort analysis method", sometimes called a "Differences-to-Differences Method" to measure program-

specific water savings at the account-level based on billing history and program participation data for a selected

group of water contractors.3

To quantify water savings achieved by a given conservation measure/program, EKI will compare water use before

and after implementation of a given intervention for program participants to the water use at geographically-

stratified cohort accounts who have not participated in the same or other programs in the given time frame.a The

incrementalvolume of water saved by program participants compared to that of the cohod can then be attributed

to program participation, as all other factors are normalized.

Specifically, for residential water users, comparing the change in participating account water use to a non-

participating cohort located in the same geographic area (e.g., Census Block Group) effectively controls for factors

that can influence water use including, climate, house and yard size, generalsocio-economicfactors, etc. As with

the above analyses, programs will be grouped to limit the overall number of analyses to those that are most

meaningfulfor planning purposes (e.g., by fixture or educationaloutreach type).

Subfosk 3.3 - Regionol Conservotion Meosure Workshop

Following the results of the above analysis, EKI will work with the City to convene a worl<shop with representatives

of the Water Contractors to review the results of the analyses - with particular emphasis on conservation

measure/program performance, observed savings, and potential remaining opportunities.

During the worl<shop, EKI will also review the current state of the industry and identify the conservation measures

that have and could provide the most water savings value for the region, including conservation measures that

will support compliance wilh Making Conservation o California Way of Lit'e and identifying those measures that

most likely will be phased out if they are redundant to requirements imbedded in building and plumbing codes

and state law.

Subfosk 3.4 - Regiono, Conservalion Meosure Codificolion

Following the completion of the program water savings analysis and measure ranking, EKI will prepare a draft TM

to document the methods and results (TM #2). TM #2 will describe the source of the data, technical approach,

water savings by selected conservation measures/programs, and total water savings by customer sector,

3 We have assumed that the Water Contractors will be able to provìde such customer-level billing data in a standardized format so as to

facilitate efficient incorporation ¡nto the project database,
a To be included in the analysis, participant accounts cannot have part¡cipated ìn any other program during this timeframe and all

accounts included in the analysis rnust be active (i.e., occupied and demonstrat¡ng a minimum level of annual water use).
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I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

home/account level, and Water Contractor. TM #2 will also describe the regional ranking process and the cost and

water savings associated with each conservation measure. TM #2 will include compelling maps, charts and

graphics that will support visualization of the results and conclusions and make them accessible to a broad

audience.

EKI will provide the draft TM #2 to the Water Contractors for review and comment. To the extent applicable,

Water Contractor comments will be incorporated into the portions of draft TM #2 that will be included in the 2020

UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Reports, described under Task 4.

Task 3 Deliverables

. Workshop agenda, slide deck, and other materials

. Draft TM #2: Historical Water Efficiency Program Participation and Water Savings Achieved and Program

Ra n king

Tqsk 4 * Demond Anolysis ond Wqler Conservqtion Meosures Updole

This task consists of preparing updated water demand analyses through 2O45 for the Water Contractors. The

update shall reflect adopted General Plan population and employment and land use projections, changes in water

use and/or demand hardening patterns, and savings from current and future water conservation measures. As

shown in Table 1, costs for this some elements of this tasl< vary with the type of reports being generated.

Subfosk 4.1 -* Anolyze Demogrøph¡c Dalo

ln response to the data request (Subtasl< 2.1) it is assumed that the Water Contractors will provide data on: (1) the

number of historical and existing customers and associated water use over time broken down by customer

category; and (2)the future connections, population, dwelling units, land use, and employment based on the most

recently adopted applicable General Plans, or other appropriate source(s). This demographic and water use

information shall serve as the basis for evaluating water use demands and trends for a selected group of water

contractors. Changes since 2015 in the sphere of influence and proposed sphere of influence of each incorporated

municipality and water district within the study area shall be identified. Each Water Contractor will also specify

the demographic forecast to be used or concur with the analysis before work proceeds on the subsequent

subtasks. To the extent applicable, EKI will incorporate the provided data into the database developed pursuant

to Subtask 2.5 and describe it in TM #1 (Subtask 2.6).

Subfosk 4.2 -" Develop Woler Use Choroclerislics

Based on the data provided, the existing and historicalwater use within each Water Contractor's service area will

be defined in terms of annualtotal production and consumption by user class (residential, commercial, industrial,

institutional, parks, other, as per the billing systems of each Water Contractor). Unit water demands

(gallons/account/day) for each major user class (residential, commercial/industrial, public), and estimated indoor

and outdoor water use will be presented. Recent account-level water billing data (Subtask 2.5) will be reviewed,

as available, to determine appropriate water demand factors for the demand analysis. This review will include

evaluating and selecting a baseline year that is comparable to current conditions, absent the influence of drought,

economic recession, and other key drivers. Changes in water demand will be evaluated by sector over time to

identify evaluate and incorporate demand hardening into the selected water demand factors. By evaluating the

changes in per account water use over time, demand hardening can be observed and incorporated into future

water projections.

Unit water use trends will be evaluated to define the different (higher or lower) unit water use factors to apply

for future conditions. Therefore, if supported by the data, different water demand factors may be established for
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]. SCOPE OF SERVICES

new construction than applied for existing customers.

Subfosk 4.i * Eslimole Fulure Woler Demonds

ln order to evaluate the potential for future water savings and programs, and to inform the conservation program

scenarios described below, EKI proposes to evaluate current water use by Water Contractor customers by

customer sector. ln addition to total water use, as described below, this evaluation will: (1) quantify indoor versus

outdoor water use; (2) identify the maximum savings potential by customer sector; and (3) apply an industry-

standard model to conduct the demand and conservation forecasting. As shown in Table 1,, costs for this some

elements of this task vary with the type of reports being generated.

lndoor vs. Outdoor Water IJse

lndoor versus outdoor water use will be estimated to the extent that data are available. Outdoor water use

remains the biggest "knob" to be turned with respect to WUE. ldentifying the percentage of water use that

remains dedicated to landscape irrigation provides a focused target for the implementation of WUE programs and

provides an estimate for water savings potential.

Populate AWE Model

The Alliance for Water Efficiency (AWE) has developed a model that is an industry standard for projecting the cost-

benefit and potential savings associated with water conservation.

EKI proposes to apply the AWE model to estimate the baseline demand projections inclusive of: (1) water savings

through pre-20L4 as well as through 2014-2019, (2) impacts of the current and future approved CALGreen Codes,

and (3)appliance/fixture standards already in place.

The AWE model will then be applied to project water demands inclusive of post-201-9 water savings estimates for
complying with the State's new urban efficiency standards, to the extent they have been defined. EKI will provide

each Water Contractor with their own model for future use.

Subfosk 4.4 - Woler Conservotion snd Economic Anolysis

As part of Subtask 2.1,, EKI will work with the Water Contractors to collect data to quantify the costs and water

savings of the various conservatlon measures/programs in each service area. Based on this information, EKI will

conduct an economic evaluation of selected water conservation measures using the model customized for each

WaterContractor. Specifically, the costs of the water conservation measures shall be summarized and the dollar

savings from reduced water demand shall be quantified yearly and based on avoided costs provided by each

participating Water Contractor (which reflects their own individual options for obtaining additionalwater supply,

if needed).

Water savings from each of the water conservation measures/ requirements shall be estimated and expressed for
each 5-year increment to 25 years.

EKI preliminarily proposes to evaluate the conservation program implementation scenarios described below. EKI

willwork with the Water Contractors to define the specific programs to be included under each scenario,

Scenario L - Business as Usual Model: This scenario will reflect a business-as-usual model with

conservation programs offered to customers under normal supply conditions. This approach will include

a suite of cost-effective programs open to all customers on a voluntary basis, with the goalof being easily

sustained with minimalto moderate staff resources. This scenario will include a mix of indoor and outdoor
programs.
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I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

. Scenario 2 - Outdoor Water Use Efficiency Only Model: This scenario will reflect a conservation program

that focuses all efforts on outdoor water uses. Like the Business as Usual model, this scenario will focus

on programs open to all customers on a voluntary basis and minimalto moderate staff resources.

. Scenario 3 - Targeting Under-Represented Market Sectors Model: This scenario will reflect a

conservation program that focuses on reaching the customer groups and market sectors identified under

Task 3 as having been under-represented by participation in programs to date. This scenario willconsider

both indoor and outdoor programs and, based on consultation with the Water Contractors, may include

programs that have eligibility limitations for participation.

. Scenario 4 - Aggressive, Water Shortage-Driven Model: This scenario will reflect the implementation of

more aggressive conservation programs during drought conditions or supply shortages that require

greater than2O% water demand reduction. This scenario will reflect conservation programs that require

an increased level of staff resources and more aggressive targeting of specific customer groups.

ln developing the above scenarios, EKI will included higher performance technologies that are currently or likely

available in the near-term (e.g., <l gallon perflush toilets, new leak detection and water loss controltechnologies,

etc.) as well as behavior-based measures (e.g., adjustment of irrigation watering schedules and timing, and use of

membrane filtration cleaning for swimming pools in lieu of draining and refilling). As applicable, the hot and cold

spot participation density analysis and the demographic and property characteristic analyses described under

Subtask 3.1will be used to identify any customer groups that are currently under-represented by participation in

past programs. The findings of this evaluation will be used, in particular, to inform Scenario 3.

Subfosk 4.5 * Prepore Drafl Reporfs

EKlwill prepare one draft technical repoft (i.e., the 2020 UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Report) for each

Water Contractorthat can stand alone separately from their respective 2020 UWMPs or be formatted to serve as

an appendix to the 2020 UWMP, at each Water Contractor's option, Each Water Contractor's report will have the

same template with individualized tables and graphs. As shown in Table 1, costs for this some elements of this

task vary with the type of reports being generated. However, each report will include, at a minimum, the following

information:

a. Table of contents
b. Summary of demand analysis update results

c. Methodology and assumptions

d. Results and conclusions

e. Data and information collected for analysis

f. Detailed description of water conservation
measures analysis

g. Demographicsprojections

h. Historical water use patterns

i. Water demand projections for the next

twenty-five years in five-year increments
j. Additional (future) water savings from

existing and additional conservation

measures and legislative requirements

k. References and list of contacts
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Subfosk 4.6 * Aliend Revíew Meefings

EKI will attend up to a total of two (2) in-person meetings with each Water Contractor, for a total of L8 separate

meetings. As shown in Table 1-, costs for this task are the same irrespective of the type of reports being generated.

The first set of individual meetings with each Water Contractor will be held to discuss the basis of the demand

projections and the preliminary results, and the second set of individual meetings will be held to present the draft

2020 UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Report to each Water Contractor for comments.

ln an effort to be efficient, EKI will strive to hold all 18 meetings within four (4) total days (i.e., two days per each

set of meetings). EKI will coordinate with the City to identify days and locations for the meetings.

Additional communication will occur as needed in person at EKI's office or by email or telephone conference calls

(up to three per Water Contractor).

EKI will provide each Water Contractor with a draft electronic copy of their respective 2020 UWMP Water

Demand/Conservation Report. Based on the RFP, up to two (2) revisions of the demand projections and water
conservation and economic analysis per Water Contractor may be made.

Sublosk 4.7" Prepare Finol Repods

EKI will revise each 2020 UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Report one time based upon a single, compiled set

of comments received from each Water Contractor in electronic (e.g., red-line) format. lt is assumed that all

comments will be resolved within changes to the report and no separate response to comments will be issued.

One (1) hard copy and one (1) electronic copy in WORD of the final report for each Water Contractor will be

provided. As shown in Table L, costs for this some elements of this task vary with the type of reports being

generated.

Task 4 Deliverables
. Draft 2020 UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Reports

. Final 2020 UWMP Water Demand/Conservation Reports and associated electronic files

Mojor Assumplions

The following key assumptions have been made to support the estimate scope, schedule, and budget for this

effort.

. All requested data will be provided in electronic format, and in accordance with the project schedule.

. All reviews will be conducted in a timely and coordinated fashion, and comments will be relatively minor.
¡ Meetings and workshops will be scheduled by the City to occur as described herein.

. Communications will be coordinated with a single representative from each Water Contractor and

pursuant to the hours and meeting counts described herein.

. WaterContractorswill notchangetheirmindaboutwhichanalyses,programs,ortypeof reporttheywant
once a decision has been made and direction provided to consultant.s

s Such changes could be addressed under a separate scope of worl<. However, the estimated budgets to address such

changes would need to be examined at that time and costs may be higher than reflected herein due to efficiencies that may

have been lost due to the timing of such decision.
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2. SCH EDU LE

EKI is prepared to start work on this project immediately upon authorization to proceed. A general schedule for the project is presented below. We will inform

the City and the Water Contractors of any issues that arise that may affect the schedule for completion or impact the anticipated level of effort.

Task L - PreliminarvWork

Sr¡btasi 1.1 - Kl;k-off ðrrd Data Ñeeds Meeting

Subtask 1.2 - Ðevelop Project Tinreline

Subtask 1.3 - Project Managerïent

Task 2 - ìnfo¡m¿tion and Data Collectio¡

5ul¡task 2.1- Subniit Däta Reqi"ìest

Subtask 2.2 - Revìev¡ and 5ur¡rÌarize Previous ÐWR Comnìëuts

Subtask 2.3 * Su¡¡niarize t'letr DWR Requirements

Subi.-.sk 2.4 - Revierv Plirnning Documents

Subt¿sk 2.5 - Co¡'rduct Dåta Revìew

Subtask 2 5 - Prepare Technicei Meirtor¿ndurn {TMJ $1

3 - Deve dated

Sulitask 3,1 - Analysis o{ Pasî Progran,' Participatiorr

Subtask 3.2 - Analyze tnd QLraritify Water Savings Achieved by Pasl Progiams

Subtask 3-3 - Regional Cotrs¿r'",alior-r lv{eas¡-ire Workslrcpr

Subtàsk 3.4 - Regional Conservation Measure Codification (TM#2)

and

...|::

NW
RÑN$ÑN

.i. ri. ..

ffi.\
,W

ffi

5ubtask 4.i - Analyze Demographic Data

Subt.lsk 4.2 - Develop water Llse Char¿cterisiics

Subtask 4.3 - Estiniatè Future W¿te:' Denla¡rdi

Subtask 4.4 - Water Conseruatioli a¡d Eco¡romic Analysis

5ul-¡task 4.5 - Pr epare Draft ffeporls

Subt¡sk 4.6 -,Atj:end Revie,,r.¡ Meetiirgs

Tivo in Person Meetings per Water Contractor (18 iri Total)

Eniailr¡Teleï-.hone Confere¡ce Calis {Up to Three per VJater Cûnllacto*
ReviseAnalysisanclProjection ..r I r,..,,',,,,,;..'

Subtask 4.7 - Prepare Final Reports

WW

æffiæffi
. ,. ..:.1..,,' , :,r,:.,:.1.,.'r'.....,1- ....1.,,.

:: ...,: .1

CITY OT SANIA ROSA
2020 Urban Woler ¡"4onogement Pion Waler Demond Anolysis ond Wofer Conservolion
Meosures Updote for Reioil Agencies of the Sonomo-Morin Soving Woler Podnership *kS envrro¡r.lrenî



Exhibit B

3. PROPOSED FEE

Fee Schedule

A complete 201"9 Rate Schedule, inclusive of the 5% labor rate discount, is included herein.

llemized Cost Summory

A detailed cost estimate for the above proposed scope of work is presented below. The costs are identified as (L)

costs to develop nine streamlined "base reports", (2) "add-on" costs to develop the more detailed reports for

three agencies, and (3)total project costs. The total project costs to develop nine reports, includingthree detailed

reports, are estimated to be 5226,845.

Table L - Budget Estimate for Proposed Scope of Work

TASKS

ESTIMATED COSTS

Base Report
Costs

(9 Reports)

Detailed
Report Add-

On Cost
(3 Reports)

TOTAL

(s) (5) (s)

Task 1- Preliminarv Work

Subtask 1.1 - Kick-off and Data Needs Meetlng

Kick-off Meeting Ss,rt2 So 5s,rt2

Subtask L.2 - Develop Project Timellne

Detailed project schedule s1,2s0 5o s 1,2s0

Subtask 1.3 - Project Management $e,s08 $o $e,s08

Subtotal $1s,e3o 5o $1s,930

Task 2 - lnformation and Data Collection

Subtask 2.1 - Submit Data Request $e67 so 5961

Subtask 2.2 - Review and Summarize Previous DWR Comments $3,340 $o s3,340

Subtask 2.3 - Summarize New DWR Requìrements 53,oee So s3,oee

Subtask 2.4 - Review Planning Documents

Review and establish forecasted growth for 9 Water Contractors 54,s57 $ 1,s38 s6,oes

Subtask 2.5 - Conduct Data Review

Corrpile Project Working Database $3,08s so $3,08s

lncorporate Demand Data Ss,17s so 5s,17s

lncorporate Conservation Program Data Ss, rzs So $s,17s

Subtask 2.6 - Prepare Technical Memorandum (TM) #1

Summarize Historical Demand and Conservation Data 5s,37s $o ss,37s

Summarize DWR's Review and New Requirements

Summarize Growth Projectìons based on Planning Documents

Ss,37s $o Ss,37s

5s,37s 5o ss,37s

subtota I $4t,s23 s1,s38 s43,061

Task 3 - Develop Updated Reqional Conservation Measures

Subtask 3.1 - Anâlysis of Past Program P¡rticip¡tìor)

Evaluate participat¡on relative to selected Census data 5o S 1,8 19 $1,81e

Evaluate participation relative to property characteristìc and age data $o 5L,649 $1.,649

Geospatlal Participation Density Anaìysis so 52,360 S2,360

Subtask 3.2 - Analyze and Quantify Water Savings Achieved by Past Progranrs 5o $2,s31 $2,s31

51 ,682 $o 51 ,682Subtask 3.3 - Regional Conservation Measure Workshop

Subtask 3.4 al Conservation Measure Codrfication

CITY OF SANTA ROSA
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TASKS

ESTIMATED COSTS

Base Report
Costs

(9 Reports)

Detailed
Report Add

On Cost
(3 Reports)

TOTAL

(s) (s) (s)

Prepare Draft TM #2 59,ss6 So ss,ss6

Subtotal
Task 4 - Demand Analvsis and Water Conservation Measures Update

$17,238 $8,3se s2s,s97

Subtask 4.1- Analyze Demographic Data 54,682 s173 s4,Bss

Subtask 4.2 - Develop Water Use Characteristics $3,s68 $1,18s 54,7s8

Subtâsk 4.3 - Est¡mate Future Water Demands

Estimate lndoor vs. Outdoor Water Use $o 52,294 52,294

Populate AWE Model for each Water Contractor 57,e72 s87e s8,7s1

Subtask 4,4 - Water Conservation and Economic Analysis 5i,646 s8so s8,49s

Subtask 4.5 - Prepare Draft Reports 540,s97 s4,s11 54s,ro7

Subtask 4.6 - Attend Review Meetings

Two in Person Meetings per Water Contractor (1.8 in Total) s 13,997 s13,e97

Email/Telephone Conference Calls (Up to Three per Water Contractor) $ 1 1,929 see4 5L2,ez3

Revise Analysis and Projections S 16,382 $1,36s 517,747

Subtask 4.7 -Prepare Final Reports s2 1,78s s1,81s s23,601

subtotal $128,032 5r4,226 S142,2s8

TOTAL: 5202,723 5z4,tzz 5226,B s

3. PROPOSED FEE

Table 1 - Budget Estimate for Proposed Scope of Work

(1) A communications charge of 4% of labor costs covers e-mail access, web conferencing, cellphone calls, messaging and data

access, file sharing, locaì and long distance telephone calls and conferences, facsimile transm¡ttals, standard delivery U.S. postage,

and incidental in-house copying.
(2) "Other Direct Costs" includes direct expenses, as listed below, incurred ìn connect¡on with the work and will be reimbursed at

cost plus ten percent (IO%I for items such as:

a. Maps, photographs, reproductions, printing, equipment rental, and special supplies related to the work.

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, drillers, laboratories, and contractors.

c. Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistetrce.

d. Special fees, insurance, permits, and lìcenses applìcable to the work.

e. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary programs purchased forthe work.

CITY OF SANTA ROSA
2020 tJrlton Wclr:r Mcrrrcrr,;cnrenl f'lcrn Wcrler l)erìrond Arrcrlysis lrncl Wt¡ii:r (lonsr,:rvrLlion

Meosrles tJl)(1crle for Rclcril Aqcncies of Ihr: Sonc¡nrcr-Mcrin S(rvirìll Wolr-'r f'orlrìershil:)
," .,r1*'i ','.,,í r:; 

j i r''..-"È'\! .i t'.,:; ;



SCHEDULE OF CHARGES FOR EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER. INC

3. PROPOSED FEE

2 lanuarv 2019

Personnel Classification

Officer and Chief Engineer-Sclentist

Principal Engineer-Scientist

Supervising l, Engineer-Scientist

Supervising I l, Engineer-Scientist

Senior l, Engineer-Scientist

Senior ll, Engineer-Scientist

Associate l, Engineer-Scientist

Associate I l, Engineer-Scientist

Engineer-Scientist, Grade L

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 2

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 3

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 4

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 5

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 6

Technician

Senior GIS Analyst

CADD Operator / GIS Analyst

Senior Administrative Assistant

Ad mi nistrative Assistant

Secreta ry

Direct Expenses
Reimbursement for direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work will be at cost plus fifteen percenl (1'5%) for
items such as:

a. Maps, photographs, reproductions, printing, equiprnent rerrtal, and special supplies related to the work.

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, drillers, laboratories, and contractors.

c. Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistence.

d. Special fees, insurance, permits, and licenses applicable to the work.

e. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary prograrrs purchased for the work.

A Communication charge for e-mail access, web conferencing, cellphone calls, messaging and data access, file sharing, local and long

distance telephone calls and conferences, facsimile transr¡ittals, standard delivery U,S. postage, and incidental in-house copying will

bechargedatarateof 4%oflaborcharges. Largevolumecopyingof projectdocuments,e.g.,boundreportsfordistributionor

project-specific reference files, will be charged as a project expense as described above.

Reimbursement for company-owned automobiles, except trucks and four-wheel drive vehicles, used in connection with the work will

be at the rate of sixty cents (50.00¡ per mile. The rate for company-owned trucl<s and four-wheel drive vehicles will be seventy-five

cents (50.75) per mile. There will be an addìtional charge of thirty dollars (530.00) per day for vehicles used for field worl<.

Reimbursement for use of personal vehicles will be at the federally allowed rate plus flfteen percenl (L5%).

CADD Computer time will be charged at twenty doìlars (520.00) per hour. ln-house nraterial and equipment charges will be in

accordance with the current rate schedule or special quotation. Excise taxes, if any, wìll be added as a direct expense.

Rate for professional staff for legal proceedings or as expert w¡tnesses will be at a rate of one and one-half times the Hourly Rates

specified above.
The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the Agreernent for the Services of EKI Environment & Water, lnc. and may be

updated annually.

Hourlv Rate

286

275

265

255

243

230

219

205

1,91,

180

165

146

129

113

L04

133

118

130

103

B5

5% Discounted

272

261,

252

242

231

21,9

208

195

181

1,71

157

139

L23

1,07

99

1"26

112

124

9B

B1
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Exhib¡t B

2020 UWMP Demand Analysis and Water Conservation Measures Update Work Cost Split

Base Report and Optional Upgrade

Base Report Estimated Total Cost

50% Share equal basis (S101,362 + 9 contractors)

Optional Upgrade - Flat Fee per agency

s

$

$

202,723

t]-,262

8,041

Totalwith
Contingency

52,557

!7,91,0

1.3,952

L6,663

1.5,027

24,5L1.

58,104

32,924

11,882

s

s

s

s

s

)
s

s

S

5 249,529

1.0%

Contingency

4,778

1.,628

1,,268

1,5 15

1,366
2,228

5,282
.) 002

r,626

Þ

)
s

s

s

$

$

s

s

$ 22,684

Tota I

47,779

1.6,282

12,684

15,148

L3,66I
22,283

52,822

29,931

16,256

s

s

s

s

)
$

þ

)
5

5 226,945

Optional

Upgrade

S 8,0+t

)
s

8,041

8,041.

5 24,122

Base Report

Only

39,738

16,282

12,684

1,5,1,48

13,661

22,283

44,781,

21_,890

1.6,256

$

s

þ

s

5

$

s

s

)
5 2o2,iz3

Base Report

50% Share

P rorated

$

)
5

s

s

5

s

s

5

28,476

5,020

1,,421.

3,886
? ?qq

1.1,020

33,518

L0,628

4,993

S 101,362

Base Report

50% Share

Fqual Basis

s

$

s

$

s

)
s

)
5

1,1,,262

1L,262

1.1.,262

1,1,,262

1,1,262

11.,262

1.r,262

11,,262

11,262

5 101,362

No. Services

(July 2019)

52,635
q )1q
) G)1

1,1,83

4,434
20,310

6 1,956

19,645
q r?q

187,358

Contractor

Santa Rosa

Rohnert Park

Cotati

VOMWD

Sonoma

Peta lu ma

MMWD

NMWD

Windsor

Total





Item #8

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Subject

&/
Board of Directors

Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer

November 15,2018

Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair Project - Notice of Exemption
R:\Foldêrs by Job No\6000 jobs\6600 STP lobs\6600.96 Leveron¡ Crêek Embankment Repa¡r\BOD M6mos\NOE BOD Mêmo 1 l-15-19.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Approve Filing Attached Notice of Exemption

None - lnformation

Staff recommends the Board approve filing the attached Notice of Exemption for the

Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair project.

The Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair project is included in the District's adopted FY

19-20 Capital lmprovement Projects Budget. Leveroni Creek's left bank downstream of the 8-

foot diameter culvert outfall plunge pool is slowly eroding, threatening the structural integrity of

the Statford Treatment Plant and lndian Valley Golf Course access road (see Attachment A),

With the assistance of Prunuske Chatham, lnc., a similar project was completed in 2012 to

protect the right bank of Leveroni Creek near the Stafford Treatment Plant's centrifuge and

reclamation basins across from the current project location. Leveroni Creek provides habitat for

steelhead (a federally-listed salmonid) and other species, and the project requires permit

approvals from the US Army Corps of Engineers, California Department of Fish and Wildlife,

RegionalWater Quality Control Board and the County of Marin,

A feasibility study was prepared in 2017 to evaluate potential repair options. On July 16,

2019, the Board approved a consulting services agreement with PCI to provide design and

permitting services for the current project. PCI so far has prepared a 650/o design, project

description, monitoring plan, and hydraulic and hydrologic analysis for submittal as a Joint

Aquatic Resource Permit Application to the Regional Water Quality Control Board, California

Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the US Army Corps of Engineers.

Similar to the 2012 pro¡ect, it has been determined that Leveroni Creek Embankment

Repair project qualifies for a Class 4 exemption under Section 15304 (minor alterations to land)

of the CEQA Guidelines. The previous environmental review did not identify any significant

effects that would occur from the project, and the exceptions listed in Section 15300.2 of the

CEQA Guidelines were found not to apply to the project,

Staff recommends that the District file a Notice of Exemption with the County of Marin at

this time. The Notice of Exemption is provided as Attachment B.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve filing of the attached Notice of Exemption
Approved by

Date
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flsotice of ËxemPtion

To: Office of Planning and Research
P,O. Box 3044, Room 113
Sacramento, CA 9581 2-3044

County Clerlt

County of:
3501 Civic

Marin

From: (Public Agency)
999 Rush Creek Pl

NoÉh Marin Water District

Novato, CA 94945

(Address)
Center Dr #234

San Rafael, CA 94903

Leveroni Creek Culvert and Bank Stabilization Project
Project Tille

Project Applicant: None

Project Location - Specific:
Locâted in Novato, south of Novato Blvd, approximately 1,5 miles west of San Marin Drive, beneath and

adjacent to the access road that leads to lndian Valley Golf Course and the Stafford Treatment Plant,

Project Location - City: Novato Project Location ^ County: Marin

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project;
T¡tu prb;u.t will stabilize an eroding creek banl< on Leveroni Creel< which supports a 96-inch culvert underneatlr

the sole access road leading to the NMWD Stafford Treatment Plant and lndian Valley Golf Course. lf erosion

continues, the over-steepened lranl< could fail and jeopardize access to the Plant and Golf Course.

Name of Public Agency Approving Project: North Marin Water District

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project

Exempt Status: (check one);

North Marin Water District

Ministerial (Sec. 21 080(b)(1 ); 1 5268);

Declared Ernergency (Sec. 21 080(b)(3); 15269(a));

Emergency Project (Sec, 21 os0(bX4); 15269(b)(c));

Categorical Exemption, Slate type and seclion number: Sec., 15304, Minor Alterations to Land

Statutory Exemptions. State code number

Reasons why project is exempt:
The project ii å rnjnor alteratiòn of land that will affect a section of creel< banl< less than 35 feet long and wlll

not change the clraracter of the environment, The proJect will generate no significant adverse impacts on

resources of lrazardous or critical concern pursuant to CCR section 15300.2,

Lead Agency
Contact Person:

Rocky Vogler, PE Area Code/Telephone/Extension
415"761-8945

lf liled by applicant:
1, Attach certified document of exenlption findìng'

D

tr
tr
tr
tr

2, Has

Signature:

a No{ice of n been filed by

tr Signed by Lead Agency D Signed by Applicant

Authority oited: Sections 21083 and 21 110, Public Rosources Code.
Roference: Soctions 21108,21152, and 21 152.1, Public Resourcos Code

tlre public agçncyÊpproving the

ou,r,, /lll//f ,u,u,

project?.trYes DNo

Cûr"Ê fn+f r'^nur&".

lìevised 201 I

Date Recoived lor filing at OPR:
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MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

Renewal of Horizon CATV License Agreement
x:\mâint sup\2o l g\bod\bod hor¡zon ext mêmo 1 1.1 5.1 9.doc

Item #9

November 15,2019To:

From

Subj:

Vttl/

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve one year extension

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $5,304.50 annual income

The Horizon CATV license agreement with the District allowing use of PRE tank site #4

to place a 40' high antenna, 5' x 7' equipment shed and a propane tank and emergency

generator expired on October 31 . The antenna was first moved to this site in 1995 after the Mt'

Vision fire. Horizon has requested to exercise its' current agreement option to extend the

contract.

Horizon is a small company, with a current cable TV subscriber base in West Marin from

Stinson Beach extending to Dillon Beach. Their customer base is in large part the same as

North Marin Water District, although the number of Horizon customers has been shrinking due

to competition with satellite TV dish companies, Historically the license fee paid to the District

by Horizon had been 1o/o of Horizon's annual basic revenue generated from its total number of

cable customers served by the antenna at the PRE 4 tank site. Basic revenue is the monthly

minimum charge levied for the basic service package, and did not include premium charges for

additional channels or features. This complicated annual adjustment to the agreement was

revised last year to a $5,150 annual fee with an annual increase of 3o/o moving forward.

The District requires that Horizon limit the extension term to one year so that the District

can conclude the design impacts from the new PRE 4 water tank design. Staff, proposes the

renewed license agreement be for one year from November 1, 2019 to October 31 ,2020.

RECOMMENDATION

Board approval renewal of license agreement with Horizon CATV for a one year

extension term.

Approved by

Date





Item #10

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors November 15,2019

From: Julie Blue, Auditor/Controller ¡ft
Subject: Accept - Outside Auditor's FY19 Report and Management Report

t:\f¡nance\audit\auditl g\bod accept outside auditor's 201 I report.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept FY19 Financial Report and Management Letter

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None with this Review. AnnualAudit Cost is $16,280.

Chris Brown of Fedak & Brown LLP will attend the meeting to present the Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (CAFR) (Attachment 1) and the Management Report (Attachment 2).

The key statement in the lndependent Auditor's Report found on page I is that: "ln our

opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material aspects, the

financial position of the North Marin Water District as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively,

and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America." This "unmodified

opinion" is the best, or highest, opinion that an outside auditor can issue on an entity's financial

statements.

The Management Report (Attachment 2) states that the auditor did not identify any

deficiencies in the District's internal control that might result in material misstatement of the

District's financial position. The independent auditor did not have any comments or

recommendations regarding internal controls.

Accounting adjustments were made by staff after submitting the general ledger to the

outside auditor and are disclosed on the last six pages of the Management Report. The number

of adjusting entries decreased from the prior FY from 31 to 13 (51%o decrease). The following

changes make up the majority of the adjusting entries:

1) A GASB 68 increase in pension expense of $1,675,531 and a decrease in the Pension

Liability of $214,564 to $12,560,160.

2) A GASB 75 increase in other post-employment benefits (OPEB) expense of $315,924 and

an increase in the OPEB Liability of $396,599 to $4,520,164.

Staff has reviewed the audited financial report and finds it acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept the Outside Auditor's FY19 Financial Report and Management Letter
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lt is our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the North Marin Water District

wEB (District) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, following guidelines set

wurw.nmwd.com forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. District staff prepared the data
incorporated in this financial report. The District is ultimately responsible for both the
accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of presentation, including all
disclosures in this financial report. We believe that the data presented is accurate in all
material respects. This report is designed in a manner that the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board believes necessary to enhance your understanding of the District's
financial position and activities.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the financial statements in
the form of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the t\4D&A and should be read in conjunction with
it. The District's MD&A can be found on page 10 of this report.

District Structure and Leadership

The District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority of
Division 12 of the California Water Code. The District has been providing water service
to its customers since 1948. The District is governed by a five-member Board of
Directors, with each Director elected from one of five geographical areas from within the
District's service area. The General Manager administers the day-to-day operations of
the District in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of
Directors. As of June 30, 2019, the District employed 52 regular employees, plus
temporary and seasonal employees as the workload dictates. There are currently 22
office positions and 30 field positions. The District's Board of Directors meets on the first
and third Tuesday of each month. Meetings are publicly noticed and citizens are
encouraged to attend.

Dístrict Services

. The District provides water service to the greater Novato area and to areas of West
Marin (Point Reyes Station, Olema, Bear Valley, lnverness Park and Paradise Ranch
Estates). The District provides sewer service to the Oceana Marin subdivision adjacent
to Dillon Beach.

The District provides water service to approximately 61,000 residents in the greater
Novato area through 20,546 potable water service connections and g1 recycled water
connections. The District also provides water service to approximately 1,800 residents in
the Point Reyes service area of West Marin County through 783 service connections
and sewer service to approximately 500 residents in the Oceana Marin service area of
West Marin County through 234 service connections.
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District Servlces, contin ued

Residential customers comprise approximately 93% of the District's customer base and
consume approximately B0% of the water produced annually by the District. The District
purchases approximately 75% of its Novato water supply from the Sonoma County Water
Agency (Agency) with the balance derived from the District's Stafford Lake Reservoir and some
recycled water. The District purchased approximately 1.9 billion gallons of water in fiscal year
2019 and 2.0 billion gallons in 2018 from the Agency.

Economic Condition, Outlook and Major Initiatives

The District carries out its Mission with a highly-motivated and competent staff empowered to
conduct the District's business by placing customer needs and welfare first. Each day, District
employees strive to carry out their work mindful of these basic principles: Good Water, Good
Service, Good Value, and A Safe Place to Work.

The Russian River water delivery system operated by the Agency typically provides 75o/o of
Novato's water supply. Novato rainfall in fiscal year 2019 totaled 38.75" which was aboul144o/o
of the historical average annual rainfall. ln fiscal year 2019 ample water was available in Lake
Sonoma for fish, agriculture and urban use on the lower Russian River system and no
restrictions on the Russian River water deliveries were imposed. North Marin's Stafford Lake
water treatment plant produced 567 million gallons of water to augment Russian River supplies
with local water supply during the fiscal year. Recycled water treatment facilities at Novato
Sanitary District, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and North Marin's Deer lsland treatment
facilities combined to provide 191 million gallons of highly treated recycled wastewaterto large
landscape irrigation customers and various commercial car washes in Novato.

The Agency has deferred its plan to construct previously contemplated Russian River water
production and delivery facilities (pumps and pipelines) to fulfill the Restructured Agreement
contract requirements for increased Russian River water. The Agency is now focused on
compliance with the Biological Opinion in the Russian River watershed issued by the National
Marine Fisheries Service, laying out the requirements to preserve, protect and restore the
fisheries and maintain the existing Russian River water supplies. Additionally, state legislation
passed in November 2009 (SB7X-7) requires a 2Oo/o reduction in per capita water use by 2020.
The District has already achieved the SBTX-7 goal, but continues to strive to achieve more
water conservation and development of recycled water to further stretch its local source of
supply in future years.

A 3.5% rate increase for customers in the Novato service area was authorized by the Board of
Directors effective June 1 , 2019. At $725 per year, the cost of water service for a typical Novato
detached single-family home using 87,600 gallons of water a year remains a good value for
Novato customers.

ln West Marin, normal year water supply conditions existed on Lagunitas Creek.
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District Water Supply

Stafford Lake - Local Source Provides 25% of the District's Supply

Stafford Lake lies four miles west of downtown Novato and collects the runoff from 8.3 square
miles of watershed land adjacent to the upper reaches of Novato Creek. The lake has a surface
area of 230 acres and holds 4,450 AF (acre-feet) (1,450 MG) of water. Waterfrom Stafford Lake
is fed into the 6 million gallons per day (mgd) treatment plant located just below the dam. ln
fiscal year 2019 and 2018, 1,740 AF (567 MG) and 1,982 AF (646 MG) respectively, was
produced by the Stafford Lake Water Treatment Plant.

Russran River - Provides 75%, of the District's Annual Supply

Russian River water originates from both the Eel River and the Russian River watersheds
northeast of the City of Ukiah (Lake Mendocino) and west of Healdsburg (Lake Sonoma). Lake
Mendocino's Coyote Dam impounds the Eel River diversions and winter runoff from the local
watershed. Lake Sonoma's Warm Springs Dam impounds winter runoff from the Dry Creek and
Warm Springs watersheds. Lakes Mendocino and Sonoma combined can store 367,500 acre
feet to meet the regions'water supply needs, which totaled 43,970 acre feet in fiscal year 2019.
Releases from the lakes flow to a point about 10 miles upstream of Guerneville where six deep
Ranney Collector wells collect river water that has been filtered through 60 to 90 feet of natural
sand and gravel to perforated pipes located at the bottom of each well. The thick layer of sand
and gravel through which the water must pass before reaching the intake pipes provides a
highly-efficient, natural filtration process which, with chlorination treatment, produces a clear,
potable, bacteria-free water. This water is then fed directly into the Agency's aqueduct system.

During the fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the District received 5,917 AF (1,928 MG) and 6,104 AF
(1,989 MG) respectively, of Russian River water. The District has an agreement in place with
the Agency to provide sufficient supply to meet the District's current and future water supply
needs. There continues to be competing interests for Russian River water, principally to protect
steelhead and salmon listed as threatened species under the Endangered Species Act. The
Biological Opinion for water supply in the Russian River watershed has been issued by the
National Marine Fisheries Service laying out the requirements to preserve, protect and restore
the fisheries and maintain the existing Russian River water supplies. The District continues to
actively support the necessary development of the Russian River water supply and protection of
the Russian River fisheries.

I nternal Control Structure

District managemeni is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal
control structure that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse.
The internal control structure also ensures that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The District's internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1)the cost
of a control should not exceed the benefit likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

The District Board of Directors annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new
fiscal year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial
operations and accountability for the District's enterprise operations and capital projects. The
budget and reporting applied to the District is consistent with the accrual basis of accounting
and the financial statement basis.
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lnvestment Policy

The Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that conforms to state law, District
ordinance and resolutions, prudent money management, and the "prudent person" standard.
The objective of the lnvestment Policy is safety, maturity and yield. Districtfunds are invested in
the State Treasurer's LocalAgency lnvestment Fund, US Treasury notes and time cedificates of
deposit,

Water Rates and District Revenues

Revenue from user charges generated from District customers supports District operations.
Accordingly, water and sewer rates are reviewed annually. Water and sewer rates are user
charges imposed on customers for services and are the primary component of the District's
revenue. Water rates are comprised of a commodity (water use) charge and a bi-monthly
service charge; whereas, sewer rates are comprised exclusively of a fixed charge.

Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and Bond covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial
statements by an independent Ceftified Public Accountant. The accounting firm of Fedak and
Brown LLP has conducted the audit of the District's fìnancial statements. Their unmodified
lndependent Auditor's Report appears in the Financial Section.

Awards and Acknowledgements

For the tenth consecutive year, the District was awarded the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada's (GFOA) Ceftificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Repoñing for its 2018 and 2017 Consolidated Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. The report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Cerlificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that this CAFR meets
the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for 2019.

Preparation of this repoft was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We
appreciate the dedicated efforls and professionalism that these staff members contribute to the
District. We would also like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued
support in planning and implementation of the North Marin Water District's fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

-#-4'^,-¿--'

Drew Mclntyre

General Manager

ulie Blue

Auditor-Controller
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lndependent Aud itor's Report

Board of Directors
Norlh Marin Water District
Novato, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District), which
comprises the statement of net position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements.

M a n a g em enú's Respons i bi I ity f o r th e F i n a n c i al State m e nts
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Au d itor's Respon si bil ity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audit containedin Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special
Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the North Marin Water District as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and the changes in its net
position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Req u i red S u ppl ementary I nformati on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion
and analysis on pages'10 through'15 and the required supplementary information on pages 57 through 59 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a pad of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporling for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context.
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lndependent Auditor's Report, continued

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an oplnion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Matters
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District's basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section on pages 1 through 7, the
supplementary information of combining schedules on pages 60 through 63, and the statistical section on pages
64 through 79 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial
statements. The supplementary information of combining schedules are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and cedain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln ouropinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical
sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applìed in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
ln accordance with Government Auditing Súandards, we have also issued a report dated November 19, 2019, on
our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporling and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
repoft is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goyernment Auditing Sfandards in considering
the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages B0 and
81.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 19,2019
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North Marin Water Ðistrict
Managemenf's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance of
the Norlh Marin Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the District
forthe fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. We encourage readers to considerthe information
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the lntroductory Section and with the basic
financial statements and related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

. ln fiscal year2O19, the District's net position increased 3.7o/o or $3,975,806 to $110,799,251. The
increase of $3,975,806 was primarily due to increases of $1,809,097 from ongoing operations
and $2,166,709 from capitalcontributions. ln fiscalyear20l8, the District's net position increased
2.8o/o or $2,91 1 ,473 f.o $106,823,445. The increase of $2,91 1,473 was primarily due to increases
of $1,860,518 from ongoing operations and $4,265,041 from capital contributions, which were
offset by the effect of a $3,214,086 restatement to net position related to the implementation of
GASB 75. (See note 13 for fufther information).

. ln fiscal year 2019, the District's operating revenues decreased 1.5o/o or $321,848 to
$21,722,246. ln fiscal year 2018, the District's operating revenues increased 18.1o/o or
$3,390,61 8 to $22,094,094.

. ln fiscal year 2019, the District's operating expenses before depreciation decreased 0.5% or
$89,538 to $16,371 ,492. ln fiscal year 201 B, the District's operating expenses before depreciation
increased 9.0% or $1,361,343 to $16,461,030.

Required Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position, Statement
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows provide information
about the activities and pedormance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by
private sector companies.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's investments in resources (assets) and the
obligations to creditors (liabilities). lt also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the
capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the
current year's revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the success of the District's operations over the past
year and can be used to determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its
rates and other charges. This statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness.
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about
the District's cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statement of Cash Flows
reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-
capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as
where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the
reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most impoftant questions asked about the District's finances is, "ls the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position repod information about the District in a way that
helps the reader answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities
and deferred inflows using the accrual basrs of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by
most private sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when the cash is received or paid.
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North Marin Water District
Managemenf's Discus sion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial Analysis of the District, continued

These two statements repoft the District's net position and changes in it. One can think of the District's
net position - the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources - as one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position.
Over time, rncreases or decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such
as changes in economic conditions, population growth, new or changed government legislation or
accounting standards, as well as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 21
through 56.

Statements of Net Position

Condensed Statements of Net Position

2019 2O1A Change 2017 Change

Assets:
Current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets, net

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources

Unrestricted

Total net position

165,068,857 163,356,535 1,712,322 151,397,310

$ 21,123,OOA
6,447,194

137,498,651

1 9,686, 1 89
7,080,538

136,589,aO8

1,436,819
(633,34o)
908,843

16,343,722
6,473,193

I 28,580,395

3,342,467
607,345

8,009,413

11.959.225

2,7AA,721 3,5s8,325 (749,604) 2,931 ,861 606.464

5,707,594
50,410,377

6,21 a,548
52,966,629

(510,s54)
(2,156,2s2)

6,429,446
43,331,998

(211,2s8)
9,634,631

56,517 971 59,145,177 (2,667,2a6) 49,7ü,a44 9,423,333

540,356 727 627 (187,271) 655,355 72.272

Net posit¡on:
Net in\¡estment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects and (

102,727,A31
71,715

8,000,505

102,392,652
2,186,164
2,244,629

334,373
(2,114,449)
5,755,876

94,131 ,574
2,140,6A1
3,639,717

4,261 ,O7A
45,4A3

(1 ,395,o88)

$ 110,799,251 106,823,445 3,975,806 103,911,972 2,911 ,473

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. ln the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows by $1 1 0,799,251 and $1 06,823,445 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

By far the largest porlion of the District's net position (93% and 96% as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively) reflects the District's investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to customers within the District's service area; consequently, these assets are nof
available for future spending.

At the end of fiscal year 2019 and 2018, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net
position of $8,000,505 and $2,246,629. See note 12 for the amount of spendable net position that may be
utilized in future years.
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North Marin Water District
Managemenf's Drscus sion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2019 2018 Change 2017 Change

Revenue:
Operating revenue
Non-operating revenue

Total revenue

Expense:
Operating expense
Depreciation and amortization
Non-operaiing expense

Total expense

Net income(expense) before
capital contributions

Capital contributions

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Net position, beginning of year
- as restated

$ 21 ,772,246 22,094,094
759 127 503 856 255 271

(321,848) 18,703,476
505,230

3,390,618
(1,374\

22,531 ,373 22,597,950 (66,577) 19,208,706 3,389,244

16,371,492
3,451 ,1 55

16,461 ,030
3,434,069

(8e,538)
17,086

15,099,687
3,416,411

810,060

1,361,343
17,658
32 t899 629 842 333 E1 296

20,722,276 20,737,432 (1 5,1 56) 19, 326,1 5B 1,411,274

1,809,097

2,166,709

s,975,806

106,823,445

't .860.518

4,265,041

(51,421)

(2,098,332)

(117,452)

11,643,388

1,977,970

(7,378,347)

6 125 559

103 ,91 1 ,97 2

(3,214,086)

(2,14e,753) 11,525,936

2,911,473

3,214,086

92,386,036

(5,400,377)

11,525,936

(3,214,086)

559 92,386,036 8,311 ,850

Net position, end of year $ 1 10,799,251 106,823,445 3.975 806 103,911,972 2,911,473

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes of net position shows how the District's net position
changed during the fiscal years. ln the case of the District, net position increased 3.7o/o or $3,975,806 to
$110,799,251. The increase of $3,975,806 was primarily due to increases of $1,809,097 from ongoing
operations and $2,166,709 from capital contributions. ln 2018, the District's net position increased 2.8%
or $2,91 1,4731o $106,823,445. The increase of $2,91 1 ,473 was primarily due to increases of $1 ,860,5'18
from ongoing operations and $4,265,041 from capital contributions, which were offset by the effect of a
$3,214,086 restatement to net position related to the implementation of GASB 75. (See note 13 for further
information).

A closer examinat¡on of the sources of changes in net position:

ln 2019, the District's total revenues decreased 0.3% or $66,577 to $22,531,373. The District's operating
revenues decreased by 1.5o/o or $321,848 to $21,772,246 due primarily to decreases of $427,396 in
water consumption sales and $155,846 in water sales to other agency, which were offset by an increase
of $246,068 in bi-monthly service charges,

ln 2019, the District's non-operating revenues increased by 50.7% or $255,271to$759,127 due primarily
to an increase of $253,981 in investment earnings.

ln 20'19, the District's capital contributions decreased by 49.2% or $2,098,332 to $2,166,709 due primarily
to decreases of $1 ,562,596 in developer contributions and $548,615 in state and local capital grants.

ln 2018, the District's total revenues increased by 17.6% or $3,389,244 to $22,597,950. The District's
operating revenues increased by 18j% or $3,390,618 to $22,094,094 due primarily to increases of
$2,9ô2,703 in water consumption sales, $229,466 in bi-monthly service charges, and $155,846 in water
sales to other agency.

ln 2018, the District's non-operating revenues decreased by 0.3% or $1,374 to $503,856 due primarily to
a decrease of $BB,2B5 in other non-operating revenues, offset by increases of $52,822 in investment
earnings and $22,255 in rental revenue.

106,823,445 100,697,886 6.125
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North Marin Water District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, continued

ln 2018, the District's capital contributions decreased by 63/% or $7,378,347 to $4,265,041 due primarily
to decreases of $6,556,345 in state and local capital grants and $2,662,698 in federal capital grants,
offset by increases of $1 ,419,881 in developer contributions and $420,815 in connection fees.

ln 2019, the District's total expenses including depreciation decreased 0.1o/o or $15,156 to$.20,722,276.
The District's operating expenses decreased 0.5% or $89,538 to $16,371 ,492 due primarily to decreases
of $435,980 in water treatment, $231,823 in customer service, $86,708 in water facilities operations,
$85,930 in transmission and distribution, $77,442 in source of supply, and $36,444 in sewage collection
and treatment, which were offset by increases of $837,641 in general and administrative and $32,238 in
pumping expense.

ln 2019, the District's depreciation and amortization increased by 0.5% or $17,086 to $3,45'1,155 due
primarily to the maturation of existing capital assets depreciation and additional depreciation for
replacement assets.

ln 2019, the District's non-operating expenses increased by 6.8% or $57,296 to $899,629 due primarily to
an increase of $128,236 in interest expense on long-term debt, offset by $86,1BO in prior year debt
issuance costs.

ln 2018, the District's total expenses including depreciation increased by 73% or $'1,411,274 to
$20,737,432. The District's operating expenses increased 9.0% or $1,361,343 to $16,461,030 due
primarily to increases of $990,407 in source of supply, $220,197 in water treatment, $164,322 in
transmission and distribution, $142,358 in water facilities operations, $75,0'14 in pumping expense, and
$65,975 in customer service expense, which were offset by a decrease of $292,732 in general
administrative expense.

ln 2018, the District's depreciation and amoftization increased by 0.5% or $17,658 to $3,434,069 due
primarily to the maturation of existing capital assets depreciation and additional depreciation for
replacement assets.

ln 2018, the District's non-operating expenses increased by 4.0o/o or $32,273 to $842,333 due primarily to
an increase of $86,180 in debt issuance costs, offset by a decrease of interest expense on long-term
debt.

Total District Revenues
201 I 2018 Change 2017 Change

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Monthly meter service charge
Sewer service charges
Water sale to other agency
Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Non-operating revenues:
Property tax revenue
Investment earnings
lnterest earnings from note - BPGL
Rental revenue
Other non-operating revenues

Total non-operating revenues

Total revenues

16,764,567
4,564,228

239,890
155,846

372,O59 369 563

21 ,772,246 22 094 094

2,962,703
229,466

23,901
155,846

350,861 tÕ 702

(321,848) 18,703,476 3,390,618

$ 16,337,171
4,810,296

252,720

(427,396)
246,068

12,830
(1 55,846)

2,496

13,801,864
4,334,762

215,989

1 15,706
436,684
48,002
91,532

109,927
1 82,1 69
48,536

105,406

5,779
254,515

(s34)
(13,874)

107,210
129,347
39,419
83,1 51

1 46,1 03

759,127 503 856 505,230

2,717
52,822

9,117
22,255

(BB,2B5)

(1,374)

67 203 E1 BlB ô 385

255 271

$ 22,531,373 22,597,950 (66,577) 19,208,706 3,389,244

ln2019 and 2018, total District revenues decreased $66,577 and increased $3,389,244, respectively
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Total District Expenses

Operating expenses including
depreciation expense:

Source of supply $
Pumping
Water facilities operations
Water treatment
Transmission and disiributìon
Sewage collection and treatment
Customer service
General and administrative
Water conservation
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
including depreciation expense

Non-operating expenses:
lnterest expense - long-term debt
Debt issuance costs
Other non-operating expenses

Total non-operating expenses

Total expenses $

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation

Capitat assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation

North Marin Water District
Managemenf's Dlscussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

201 I 201 I Change 2017 Ghange

5,492,324
458,594
993,209

2,131 ,166
3,301,629

127,513
510,341

3,007,301
349,415

3,451 ,155

5,569,766
426,356

1,O79,917
2,567,146
3,387,559

163,957
742,164

2,1 69,660
354,505

(77,442)
32,238

(86,708)
(435,e80)

(85,e30)
(36,444)

(231,823)
837,641

(5,0e0)

4,579,359
351 ,342
937,559

2,346,949
3,223,237

151 ,205
676,1 89

2,462,392
371,455

3,416,411

990,407
75,014

142,358
220,197
164,322

12,752
65,975

(292,732)
(1 6,e50)
17,6583,434.069 17 086

19,822,647 19,895,099 (72,452) 18,5'16,098 1,379,001

875,354 747 ,118
86,1 B0

128,236
(86,1 B0)

751 .211 (44,0s3)
86,1 B0

(e,814)24 275 035 15 240 '18,849o

899 629 842 333 57,296 810,060 32,273

20,722,276 20,737,432 (15,156) 19,326,158 411.2741,

ln 2019 and 2018, total District expenses decreased $15,156 and increased by $l ,411,274, respectively

Capital Asset Administration
Changes in capital asset amounts for 2019 were as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
2018 Additions Deletions 2019

$ 25,964,598
168,132,910
(57,507,700)

4,405,064
4,971,O44

(s,451,155)

(5,016,110)
(5,971)
5,971

25,353,552
173,097,983
(60,s52,884)

Total capital assets, net $ 136,589,808 5,924,953 (5,016,110) 137,498,651

Changes in capital asset amounts for 2018 were as follows:
Balance

2017 Additions
Transfers/
Deletions

Balance
2018

$ 16,027,426
166,801,583
(54,248,614)

1 1 ,587,138
1 ,509,157

(3,434,069)

(1,64e,e66)
(1 77,830)

25,964,598
'168,132,910

(57,507,700)174 983

Total capital assets, net $ 128 580 395 9,662,226 (1,652,813) 136,589,808

At the end of fiscal year 2019 and 2018, the District's investment in capital assets amounted to
$137,498,651 and $136,589,808, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes: land, transmission and distribution systems, reservoirs, tanks, pumps, buildings
and structures, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-progress, etc. (See note 6 for further information)

14



Debt Administration
Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2019 were as follows:

Balance
2018 Additions

North Marin Water District
Managemenf's Drscussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Principal
Payments

Balance
201 I

Long-term debt:
Bonds payable
Loans payable

Total long-term debt

Long-term debt:
Bonds payable
Loans payable

Total long-term debt

$ 72,O00
37,513,463

(72,000)
(2,277,265) 35,236, 1 9B

$ 37, 585.463 (2,349,265\ 35,236,198

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 201B were as follows:
Balance
2017 Additions

Principal
Payments

Balance
2018

$ 94,000
31,922,939 383 204

(22,OOO)
(1,792,680)

72,000
37,5 1 3,4637

$ 32,016,939
-___l393-,201-

(1,792 680) 37,585,463

(See note I for further information)

Req uests for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide the District's funding sources, customers, stakeholders and
other interested parties with an overv¡ew of the District's financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the District's Auditor-Controller at 999 Rush Creek Place,
Novato, California 94945, Telephone: (415) 897-4133.
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Net Position
June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Restricted - investments (note 2)
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable - water and sewer sales and services
Accounts receivable - governmental agencies
Accounts receivable - other
Capital grants and loan proceeds receivable
Notes receivable (note 3)
Notes receivable - employee housing assistance loans, net (note 4)
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Restricted - investments (note 2)
Notes receivable (note 3)
Notes receivable - employee housing assistance loans, net (note 4)
Capital assets, not being depreciated (note 6)
Depreciable capital assets, net (note 6)

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred other post-employement benefits outflows (note 10)
Deferred pension outflows (note 11)

Total deferred outflows of resources

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

143,945,849 143,670,346

165,068,857 163,356 ,535

172,404
2,616,317 3,538,325

$ 2,788,721 3,538,325

$ 8,980,983
1,498,122
4,715,320

BB,B71

4,221,181
162,445
220,474

263,785
39,200

701,952
230,675

3,484,730
1,450,786
6,469,611

84,055
4,513,370

69,830
1 0,550

2,270,095
296,420
495,000
471,314

70,428

21,123,008 19,686,189

3,744,249
2,027,949

675,000
25,353,552

112,145,O99

s,701,301
2,665,037

714,200
25,964,598

110,625,210
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Net Position, continued

June 30,2019 and 2018

20't9 2018

Current Iiabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Accrued claims payable (note 7)
Customer adrances and deposits
Accrued interest payable - long-term debt
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:

Compensated absences (note B)
Bonds payable (note 9)
Loans payable (note 9)

Total current lia bilities

Non-curre nt lia bilities:
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (note B)

Bonds payable (note 9)
Loans payable (note 9)
Total other post-employment benefits liability (note 10)
Net pension liability (note 11)

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred other post-employment benefits inflows (note 10)
Deferred pension inflows (note 11)

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net pos¡t¡on: (note 12, 13)
Net inr,estment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects and debt service
Unrestr¡cted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

$ 1 10,799,251 106,823,445

$ 1,265,960
2BO,B70

54,541
1,886,908

166,595

2,641,524
272,429

97,581
1 ,066,100

136,334

136,644 121 ,864
24.OOO

1,916,076 1,858,716

5,707,594 6 214.548

409,931

33,320,122
4,520,164

12,560,160

365,593
48,000

35,654,747
4,123,565

12,774,724

50,810,377 52,966,629

59.185.17756,517,971

158.61 1

540,356 727 627

540,356 886,238

102,727,O31
71,715

8,000,505

102,392,652
2,186,164
2.244.629
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Bi-monthly meter service charge
Sewer service charges
Water sale to other agency
Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water facilities operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Sewage collection and treatment
Customer service
G eneral and administrative
Water conservation

Total operating expenses

Operating income before depreciation
Depreciation expense - capital recovery

Operating income

Non-operating revenues(expenses) :

Property tax revenue
lnvestment earnings
lnterest earnings from note receivable - BPGL
Rental revenue
lnterest expense - long-term debt
Other non-operating revenues
Other non-operat¡ng expenses
Debt issuance costs

Total non-operating revenues, net

Net income before capital contributions

Capital contributions:
Developers and others
Connection fees
Capital grants - federal
Capital grants * state and local

Capital contributions

Change in net posítion

Net position, beginning of year - as restated (note 13)

Net position, end of year

$ 16,337,171
4,810,296

252,720

16,764,567
4,564,228

239,890
155,846
369,563372,059

21 772 246 22,094,094

5,492,324
458,594
993,209

2,131,166
3,301,629

127,513
510,341

3,007,30'l
349,415

5,569,766
426,356

1,O79,917
2,567,146
3,387,559

163,957
742,164

2,169,660
354,505

16,371,492 16,461,030

5,400,754
(3,451,155)

5,633,064
(3,434,069)

1,949,599 2,1 98,995

'1 15,706
436,684

48,002
91,532

(875,354)
67,203

(24,275)

109,927
I 82,1 69
48,536

105,406
(747,118)

57,818
(e,035)

(86,1 B0)

(140,502) (338,477)

1,809,097 1,860,518

654,1 38
1,492,380

20,191

2,216,734
1,455,400

24,101
568,806

2,166,709 4,265,041

3,975,806

106,823,445

6,125,559

100,697,886

$ 110,799,2s1 106,823,445

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers and others

Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages

Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Property tax revenue

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from capital contributions and connection fees
Proceeds from principal issued on long{erm debt
Costs paid on debt issuance
Principal paid on long-term debt
lnterest paid on long{erm debt

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Principal received on notes receivable
Principal received on employee housing assistance loans
Principal issued on notes receivable
Principal issued on employee housing assistance loans
lnvestment earnings

Net cash provided by(used in) investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statement of financial position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equìvalents

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

$ 21,920,631

(4,844,737)

(11,734,384)

21,254,606
(5, 962,51 1 )

(7,008,503)

5,341,510 8,283,592

1 1 5,706 109,927

115,706 109,927

(2,253,967)
2,166,709

(2,349,265)
(845,093)

(10,810,811)
4,265,041
7,383,204

(86,1 80)
(1,814,680)

(717,426)

(3,281,616) (1,780,852)

6,498,425
(4,717,193)

669,723
495,000

422,034

(1,695,758)
(275,000)
143,440

3,367,989 (4,795,239)

1,817,428

3,1 r B,0BB

$ 10,479,105 4,935,516

2,735,242
(5,956,352)

253,189

5,543,589

4,935,51 6

$ 8,980,983
1,498,122

3,484,730
1,450,786

$ 10,479,'105 4,935,516
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North Marin Water District
Statement of Cash Flows, continued

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2019
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income $ 1,949,599

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense - capital recovery 3,451 ,'155
Rental revenue 91,532
Other non-operating revenue 67,203
Other non-operating expenses (24,275)

Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
(lncrease)Decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable - water and sewer sales and services 292,189
Accounts receivable - governmental agencies (92,615)
Accounts receivable - other (209,924)
Materials and supplies inventory (237,238)
Prepaid expenses and other deposits (160,247)

Decrease(lncrease) in deferred outflows of resources
Other post-employment benefits related (172,404)
Pension related 922,OOB

lncrease(Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,375,564)
Accrued wages and related payables 8,441
Accrued claims payable (43,040)
Customer advances and deposits B20,B0B

Compensated absences 59,118
Other post-employment benefit liabilty 396,599
Net pension liability (214,564)

(Decrease)lncrease in deferred inflows of resources
Other post-employment benefits related
Pension related (187 ,271)

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Non-cash investing, capital and financing transactions

Change in fair value of investments

Change in capital contributions - grants

2018

2 198,995

3,434,069
1 05,4 06

57,81 8
(s,035)

(989,514)
(24,733)
'11,535

22,787
26,728

(606,464)

(87e,558)
11,093

(e4,541)
297,216

(162,474)
2,919,446
1,733,935

158,611
72,272

3,391,911 6.084.597

$ 5,341,510 8,283,592

57 836 JI 416

2,270,O95 3,781,780
$

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(f ) Repofting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The North Marin Water District (District) is an independent special district formed in April 1948, which
operates under the authority of Division '12 of the California Water Code. The District's service area
includes the City of Novato, adjacent areas, plus annexed areas in West Marin County. The District is
governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serve overlapping four-year terms.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 6'l , The Financial Reporting Entity. The District is the primary
governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected by the
citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and: 1) lt is able to
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government,

The District's operations are accounted for by the following service areas, some of which were originally
established as lmprovement Districts. Although the lmprovement Districts are legally separate
organizations, they are reported herein as if they were pad of the primary government because the
primary government controls the lmprovement Districts and the Board of Directors serve as their
governing board. The following service areas are reported as blended component units.

Novato Water Sysfem - The Novato Water System is the primary service division of the District and
represents the basic primary component of the District.

WestMarinWater Sysfemformally Point Reyes Seruice Area.- This service area began in 1970 as a
separate voter-approved lmprovement District. Point Reyes was consolidated with the Olema
lmprovement District in 1996 and the Paradise Ranch Estate lmprovement District in2002, forming the
West Marin Water System.

Oceana Marin Sewer Seryice - By agreement with a private developer, this service area was formed to
provide sewer service to area residents commencing in June 1973.

Novato Recycled Water Sysfem - This enterprise fund was formed by the District in 2007 to account for
the operation of the District's recycled water treatment and distribution system.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District repofts its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similarto a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the cost of providing water or wastewater disposal to its service area on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges (water sales and sewer service charges), capital
grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses
are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and sewer service charges, along with water
purchases and wastewater disposal, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal value. Management, administration and depreciation expenses are also considered
operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above categories are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating revenues and expenses, such as grant fundìng,
investment income and interest expense, result from non-exchange transactions, in which the Dlstrict
gives (receives) value without directly receiving (giving) value in exchange.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

C. Financial Reporting

The District's basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District solely operates as a
special-purpose government which means it is only engaged in business-type activities; accordingly,
activities are repofted in the District's proprietary fund.

The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncements in the current year:

GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board Statement No. 83

ln November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83 - Cedain Asset Retirement Obligations. This
Statement (1) addresses accounting and financial repoding for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROs), (2) establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the
liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based
on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be incurred, (5) requires the current value
of a government's AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or deflation at least annually,
and (6) requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government's AROs, the methods and
assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the
associated tangible capital assets.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Súandards Board Statement No. BB

ln April2018, the GASB issued Statement No. BB - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, lncluding Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements. lt also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt.

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that
arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one
or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration
clauses.

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encou raged.

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position

1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period"
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

3. Investments and Investment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy directing the District's Auditor-Controller to deposit
funds in financial institutions.

Changes in market value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income
reported for that fiscal year. lnvestment income includes interest earnings, changes in market value,
and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

4. Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset, as follows:

. Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

. Level 2 - Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These
inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through
correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs
incorporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are
observable at commonly quoted intervals.

. Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on
factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity and other assumptions
that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market.

5. Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management deems all
accounts receivable as collectible at year-end. Accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts has
not been recorded.

6. Property Taxes

The County of Marin Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal propedy within the County
each year. The County of Marin Tax Collector's Office bills and collects the District's share of properfy
taxes and assessments. The County of Marin Treasurer's Office remits current and delinquent
property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Propefty tax in California is levied in
accordance with Article 134 of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of countywide assessed
valuations.

7. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are financial resources generated for a specific purpose such as capital projects or
debt service. These assets are for the benefit of a specified purpose and, as such, are legally or
contractually restricted by an external third-party agreement.

L Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position, continued

9. CapitalAssets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for capitalizing equipment purchases at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded
at estimated cost at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains
or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

. Dam - 100 years

. Transmission and distribution systems - 50 to 150 years

. Treatment plant - 20 to 50 years
¡ Sewer mains and pumps - 10 to 40 years
. Buildings and storage facilities - 35 to 50 years
. Equipment and vehicles - 5 to 10 years

10. Deferred Outflows of Resources

The statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of resources applicable to future periods and therefore will nof be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expenditure) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for
reporting in this category:

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Penslons (OPEB)

. Deferred outflow for the net changes in assumptions which will be amodized over a closed
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with post-employment benefits through the Plan.

. Deferred outflow for the net differences between the actual and expected experience which
will be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all employees that are provided with post-employment benefits through the Plan.

Pensions
. Deferred outflow which is equal to the employer contributions made after the measurement

date of the net pension liability. This amount will be amortized-in-full against the net pension
liability in the next fiscal year.

o Deferred outflow for the net differences between the actual and expected experience which
will be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the Plan.

. Deferred outflow for the net changes in assumptions which will be amortized over a closed
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with pensions through the Plan.

. Deferred outflow for the net difference in projected and actual earnings on investments of the
pension plans fiduciary net position. This amount is amortized over a 5 year period.

ll. Compensated Absences

The District's employees have a vested interest in accrued vacation time. All vacation hours will
eventually be either used or paid-off by the Dlstrict. Employees earn vacation time on a semi-monthly
basis. Employees normally earn and use their current vacation time with a small portion being unused
each year. As this occurs, the District incurs a future obligation to pay for these unused hours and
accrues a liability for such accumulated and unpaid vacation time.
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(f ) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position, continued

I l. Compensated Absences, continued

Full-time District employees earn sick leave at a rate of one day per month. District employees may
elect to be paid for accumulated and unused sick leave in excess of g0 days, at a rate of one-half of
the value of such accumulated amount. The District has accrued a liability for such excess amounts.
Employees hired after 101112000 may apply their unused sick leave credit to enhance CaIPERS
retirement benefits but are not eligible to receive any pay for accrued unused sick leave from the
District.

12. Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability and deferred outflowsiinflows of resources related
to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District's OPEB plan
(Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

GASB 75 requires that the repoded results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

. Valuation Date: July 1,2017
o Measurement Date: June 30,2019
o Measurement Period: July 1,2018 to June 30, 2019

13. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District's
California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) plans (Plans) and additions
to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
lnvestments are repofted at fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the repoded results must pertain to liability and asset information within
ceftain defined timeframes. For this repod, the following timeframes are used:

. Valuation Date: June 30, 2017

. Measurement Date: June 30,2018

. Measurement Period: July 1 ,2017 to June 30, 201B

14. Deferred lnflows of Resources

The statement of net position will sometimes repod a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources. represents an acquisition
of resources applicable to future periods and therefore will nof be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for reporting in this
category:

Penslons
. Deferred inflow for the net difference in actual and proportionate share of employer

contribution and net changes in proportion which will be amortized over a closed period equal
to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with
pensions through the Plan.

. Deferred outflow for the net change due to differences in the changes in proportions of the
net pension liability which will be amoftized over a closed period equal to the average of the
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through
the Plan.
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({ ) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows and Net Position, continued

15. Water and Sewer Sales

Water sales are billed on a bi-monthly cyclical basis. Estimated unbilled water and sewer sales and
service charges through June 30th have been accrued as of year-end.

16. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital
expenditures or capacity commitment.

17. Capital and Operating Grants

When a grant agreement is approved and eligible expenditures are incurred, the amount is recorded
as a capital or operating grant receivable on the statement of net position and as capital grant
contribution or operating grant revenue, as appropriate, on the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position.

18. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation
purposes. Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparison of actual revenue and
expense with planned revenue and expense for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to
account for commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services.

19. Net Position

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

o Net lnvestment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

. Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on
net position use imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

. Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that
does not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assefs.

20. Reclassification

The District has reclassified cedain prior year information to conform to current year presentations.

(21 Gash and lnvestments

Cash and investments as of June 30 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents $

Restricted - investments $
Restricted - investments non-current

Total restricted investments $

8,980,983
1,498,122

3,484,730
1,450,786

6,469,611
3 701 30'1

8,459,569 10,170,912

Total cash and investments $ 18,938,674 15,106,428

10,479,105 4,935,516

4,715,320
3,744,249
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(21 Cash and lnvestments, continued

Cash and investments as of June 30 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $
Deposits with financial institutions
Deposits with County of Marin Treasury
lnvestments

Authorized
lnvestment Type

North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 anel 2018

2019

350
288,046

1,602,447

201 I
350

148,673
957,605

13,999,80017 o47 831

Total cash and investments $ 18,938,674 15,106,428

lnvestments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's lnvestment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies cedain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage

Of Portfolio "

Maximum
lnvestment

in One lssuer
State and Local Agency Bonds 5 years 100% None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years** 100% None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years** 100% None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 40% 10%
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 year 30% None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 3oo/o None
Repurchase agreements 30 days 100% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
California Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) N/A 100% None
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) N/A 100% None
* Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code.
** Except when authorized by the District's legislative body in accordance with Government Code Section 53601

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposifs is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investmenfs is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.9., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct
investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect
investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).
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(21 Cash and lnvestments, continued

Custodial Credit Risk, continued

The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit), and, the District's investment policy that requires no more than two-thirds of the District's deposits in
a depository shall be collateralized by mortgage-backed securities, with the remainder to be secured by
non-modgage-backed securities. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed morlgage notes having a value
of 150% of the secured public deposits. Of the District's bank balances, up to $250,000 is federally
insured and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the
collateralized securities are not held in the District's name.

lnvestment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts
based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in
relation to the amortized cost of that porlfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amorlized cost basis.

The pool pottfolio is invested in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity
requirements set forth by GASB 79 for external investment pools that elect to measure, for financial
repofting purposes, investments at amortized cost. LAIF does not have any legally binding guarantees of
share values. LAIF does not impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.

lnterest Rafe Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shofter term and longer term investments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a porlion of the porlfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time
as necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. lnformation about
the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided
by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity date:

lnvestments at June 30, 20'l 9, consisted of the following:

Remaininq Matu rity (in Months)

lnvestment Type Amount
12 months

or less
13 to 24
months

25-60
months

Local Agency lnvestment Fund $
Certif icates-of-depos it
U.S. Treasury note

Total $ 17,047,831 13,318,284 3,483,547

8,602,964
5,933,000
2,511,867

8,602,964
3,214,000
'1,50'1,320

2,473,000
1,O10,547

246,000

246,000
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(21 Cash and lnvestments, continued

Interest Raúe Risk, continued

lnvestments at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Remaininq Maturity (in Months)

Investment Type Amount
l2 months

or less
13 to 24
months

25-60
months

Local Agency lnvestm $
Certif icates-of-de pos it

U.S. Treasury note
U.S. Agency securities

Total $

3,821,716
4,703,000
2,485,371
2,985,713

3,821,716
1,489,000
1,990,898

3,214,000
494,473

2 989 713

13,999,800 10,291,327 3,708,473

Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the District's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-
end for each investment type.

Credit ratings at June 30, 2019, consisted of the following:
Minimum

Legal
Investment Type Amount Rating

Exempt
From

Disclosure
Ratings

fv\+ f6 [¡[-
Local Agency lnvestm $
Certif icates-of-deposit
U.S. Treasury note

Total $

8,602,964
5,933,000
2,511,867

N/A
NiA
AA+

8,602,964
5,933,000

2,511 ,867

______11_947 ,831_

Credit ratings at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:
Minimum

Legal
lnvestment Type Amount

1 4,535,964 2,511,867

Rating

Exempt
From

Disclosure
Ratings

AA+ to AA-

Local Agency lnvestm $
Certificates-of-deposit
U.S. Treasury note
U.S. Agency securities

Total $

3,821,716
4,703,000
2,485,371
2,989,713

____lgp99,8q!_

NiA
N/A
AA+
AA+

3,821,716
4,703,000

2,48s,371
2 989 713

8,524 716 475 0845

to
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(21 Cash and lnvestments, continued

Fair Value Measurements

lnvestments measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis, are as follows:

lnvestments at June 30, 2019: Fair Value Measurements Using

lnvestment Type Total

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
ldentical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
lnputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

lnputs
(Level 3)

Certificates-of-deposit $
U.S. Treasury note

Total investments measured at fair value

lnvestments measured at amortized cost:
Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF)

Total $

lnvestments at June 30, 2018:

lnvestment

Cedificates-of-deposit $
U.S. Treasury note
U.S. Agency securities

Total investments measured at fair value

lnvestments measured at amortized cost:
Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF)

Total $

8,444,867 2,511,867

5,933,000
2,511,867

5,933,000
2,511,867

5,933,000

8,602 964

17,047 õJt

Total

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
ldentical Assets

(Level l)

Significant
Other

Observable
lnputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

lnputs

Fair Value Measurements Using

(Level 3)

4,703,000
2,485,371
2,989,713

4,703,000
2,485,371
2 989,713

10,178,084 ___*þ,47þ,094 4,703 000

3,821 716

1 3,999, 800

(3) Notes Receivable
Changes in notes receivable amounts f or 2019 were as follows:

Balance
2018 AdditÌons

Principal
Payments

Balance
2019

Current
Portion

Long-term
PoÉion

Notes receivable:
Black Point Golf Links $ 1,302,617
Marin Country Club 1,658,840

(221,514)
ø48,209)

1,081 ,103
1,210,631

226,884
36,901

854.219
173 730

Total notes receivable $ 2,961,457 (669,723) 2,291,734 263,785 2,027,945

Changes in notes receivable amounts for 2018 were as follows:

Balance
2017 Additions

Principal
Payments

Balance
2018

Current
PoÉion

Long-term
Portion

Notes receivable:
Black Point Golf Links $
Marin Country Club

Total notes recelvable $

1 ,518,888 (216,271)
(36,918)

1,302,617
1,658,840

221,514
74,906

1 ,081 ,103
1,583,9341,695,758

1 ,518,888 I,69s,758

30
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(3) Notes Receivable, continued

Black Point Golf Links
The District has entered into a contractual agreement with Black Point Golf Links, which now goes by
Stone Tree Golf Club, whereby the golf club agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs
incurred for a new recycled water pipeline, in-lieu of connection fees. The reimbursement is collected in
bi-monthly installments through February 2024, including interest at a rate of 2.40%.

As of June 30, the amount receivable under the contract is as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Total

Less: current portion:

Total Long-term $

$ 226,884
232,383
238,017
243,787
140,032

23,688
1B,,I89
12,555
6,785

250,572
250,572
250,572
250,572

249 14',1 281

62 466 1,143,569

854,219

Marin Country Club

On June 10,2015, the District entered into a contractual agreement with the Marin Country Club, which
whereby the Country Club agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs incurred for a new
recycled water facility, in-lieu of connection fees. Marin Country Club is the primary customer of the
Central Service Area pipeline of which this receivable contributes significantly to related District debt.
(See note I for further information). The reimbursement is collected in bi-monthly installments through
November 2047, including interest at a rate ranging from 1.00% to 2.80%.

As of June 30, the amount receivable under the contract is as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

1,081 ,103

(226,884)

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2047

Total

Less: current portion:

Total Long-term $

36,901
37,271
37,646
38,O24
38,406

197,891
208,028
218,685
229,887
167,892

11,953
11,582
11,208
10,830
10,448
46,378
36,241
25,584
14,381

$

3 095

48,854
48,853
48,854
48,854
48,854

244,269
244,269
244,269
244,268
170,987

**___1q1,Z90 1,392,331

1,173,730

(4) Notes Receivable - Employee Housing Assistance Loans

The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program (Program) allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to an
employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District's service area. This
will allow the employee to respond rapidly to customer calls or emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale of the employee's residence, termination of employment, or other
events as described in the Program documents. lnterest earned on the loan is contingent upon and
directly proporlional to the appreciation in value occurring on the purchased property. The balance of the
outstanding loans may be offset by an allowance representing the impairment in value due to the decline
in market value of the homes financed since the loan inception date.

31

1,210,631

(36,e01)



North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(4) Notes Receivable - Employee Housing Assistance Loans, continued
The following is a listing of employee housing assistance loans and their corresponding origination dates
as follows:

The balance at June 30 consists of the following

Origination 2019 2018

August 2004
Sept. 2004
Nov. 2007
June 2010

March 2015
June 2018

Total

Less: current portion:

Total Long-term $

$
39,200

'150,000

250,000
275,000

250,000
39,200

150,000
245,O00
250,000
275,000

714,200

(39,200)

1,209,200

(495,000)

675,000 714 200

(5) lnternal Balances

Due To/From Other Funds and Transfers

As of June 30, 2019 there were no internal balances,

lnternal balances consist of the following as of June 30, 2018, were as follows

Receivable Payable

Purpose Fund Fund Amount

Advance Novato Recycled Novato Water

Transfers between funds as of June 30,2019, were as follows:

Transfer Transfer
Purpose From To

$ 543,218

Amount

Capital Contribution Novato Recycled Novato Water $ 1,239,907

ln 2019, the Novato Recycled system transferred $1,239,907, in net position to the Novato Water system
for the purpose of transferring funds previously borrowed for the Recycled Water Central Expansion
Project back to Novato after receiving a State revolving fund loan and grant funds. (See the
Supplementary Schedules on pages 60 through 61 for fufther information)

Transfers between funds as of June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Transfer
From

Transfer
ToPurpose Amount

CapitalContribution Novato Water Novato Recycled $ 5,481,925

ln 2018, the Novato Water system transferred $5,481,925, in net position to the Novato Recycled system
for the local share of the Nodh/South Recycled Water Expansion, SRF loan payments and grant
administration costs. (See the Supplementary Schedules on pages 62 through 63 for fudher information)

taJL
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(6) GapitalAssets

Co n stru cti o n - I n - P ro g ress
The District has been involved in various construction projects throughout the year. The balances of the
various construction projects that comprise the construction-in-progress balances at June 30 are as
follows:

The balance of construction-in-progress at June 30 consists of the following projects:

2019 2018

Developer construction - Novato Water $
Other construction - Novato Water
Other construction - Novato Recycled
Other construction - West Marin Water
Other construction - Oceana Marin Sewer

Total construction-in-progress per year $

86 984 135 267

23,880,461 24,491,507

6',13,771
6,880,431

15,743,265
556,010

535,686
7,753,464

15,623,282
443,808

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows:
Balance

2018
Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
2019

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights
Construct ion-in- prog ress

Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Distribution system
Treatment plant
Storage facilities
Transmission system
Source facilities
Sewer facilities
Structures and improvements
Other plant and equipment

Total depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation:

Distribution system

Treatment plant

Storage facilities

Transmission system

Source facilities

Sewer facilities

Structures and improvements

Other plant and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable assets, net

Total capital assets, net

$ 1,473,09'l 1,473,091
24 491 507 4,405,064 (5,016,110) 23,880,461

25,964,598 4,405,064 (5,016,110) 25,353,552

84,577,710
21,184,413
20,999,594
29,405,627
5,596,066
1,203,030
1,902,893
3,263,577

1,762,068
872,310

2,O83,226

79,779
55,081

118,580 (5,971)

86,339,778
22,056,723
23,O82,820
29,405,627

5,675,845
1,258,111
1,902,893
3,376,186

168,132,910 4,971 044 (5,971) 173 097 983

(30,703,1 89)

(8,e77,01e)

(7,005,381)

(3,972,992)

(2,184,117)

(630,923)

(1,303,856)

(2,730,223)

(1,728,161)

(676,160)

(458,e28)

(248,088)

(111,676)

(26,580)

(41,425)
(1 60,1 37) 5 971

(32,431,350)

(9,653,179)
(7,464,s09)

(4,221,O80)

(2,295,753)

(657,503)

(1,345,281)
(2,884,389)

(57,507,700) (3,451 ,155) 5,971 (60,952,884)

110,625,210 519 889 112 145 099

$ 136,589,808

DAJJ

5,924,953 (5,016,1 10) '137,498,651



(6) CapitalAssets,continued

Changes in capital assets for the year were as follows:
Balance

2017

North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
2018

Non-depreci able assets:
Land and land rights
Construction-i n- progress

Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Distribution system
Treatment plant

Storage facilities
Transmission system
Source facilities
Sewer facilities
Structures and improvements
Other plant and equipment

Total depreciable assets

Accumulated depreciation:

Distribution system

Treatment plant

Storage facilities

Transmission system

Source facilities

Sewer facilities

Structures and improvements

Other plant and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable assets, net

Total capital assets, net

1,473,091
14,554,335 11 587 138

16,027,426 11 587 138 (1,649,966) 25,964,598

$
(1,649,966)

1,473,091
24,491,507

83,757,326
21,184,413
20,903,086
28,896,399

5,596,066
1,193,077
1,902,893
3,368,323

820,384

96,508
509,228

9,953

zs,oe¿ (177,83O\

84,577,710
21,184,413
20,999,594
29,405,627
5,596,066
1,203,030
1,902,893
3,263,577

166,801,583 1 ,509,157 (177,830) '168, 132.910

(28,995,554)

(8,281,847)

(6,579,383)

(3,728,626)

(2,069,261)

(604,14e)

(1,262,416)

(2,727,378)

(1,707,635)

(69s,172)

(425,ee8)

(244,366\

(114,856)

(26,774)

(41,440)
(177.828\ 174.983

(30,703,1 89)

(8,977,019)

(7,005,381)

(3,972,992)

(2,184,117)

(630,923)

(1,303,856)
(2.730.223\

(54,248,614) (3,434,069) 174,983 (57,507,700)

112,552,969 (1,924,912) (2,847) 110,625,210

$ 128, 580,395 9,662,226 (1,652,813) 1 808
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(71 Accrued Claims Payable

The District self-insures its workers' compensation obligation and established a risk financing internal
service fund where assets are set aside for claim settlements associated with the risk of loss up to ceftain
limits for workers' compensation claims.

Settled claims have not exceeded the accrued coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years.
Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. The accrued claims payable balance includes an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not paid.

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:
20't9 2018

192,122

26,420
(14,50e)
28,340

(43,040) (134,792\

$ 54,541 97 58'1

(8) CompensatedAbsences
Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation and sick leave which is accrued as earned

Accrued claims payable, beginning of year

Current year claims recognized
Current year claims paid
Prior year claims incurred
Prior year claims paid

Accrued claims payable, end of year

Changes to compensated absences for 2019 were as follows

Balance
2018 Earned Taken

$ 97,581

11,911
(1 1,e1 1)

Balance
2019

Current
Portion

Long-term
Portion

$ 487 457 _____32e,491_ (870,283)

Changes to compensated absences for 2018 were as follows

Balance
2017 Earned Taken

546 575

Balance
2018

136,644 409 931

Current
Portion

Long-term
Portion

$ 649 931 936,608

(9) Long-term Debt

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2019 were as follows:
Balance

2018

(1,Oes,082) 487 457 121,864 365,593

Additions
Principal
Payments

Balance
2019

Current
Port¡on

Long-têrm
Portion

Long-term debt:
Bonds payable:

1 980 Revenue bonds - PRE-1
1981 Revenue bonds - PR-6

Total bonds payable

Loans payable:

Total loans payable

2005 DWR loan - Novato Water
2005 SWRCB loan - Novato Recycled
2011-2012 SWRCB loans - Novato Recyôled
2O11 B o1 l\rl loan - Novato Water
201 1 B of lvl loan - West Marin Water
2016 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Centr¿
2018 JP Morgan Chase Loan - Novato Water

1 0,050,647
2,189,287
7,630,605
5,1 55,631

756,790
7, I 30,503
4,600,000

(809,070)
(220,824)
(433,01 8)
(31 0,707)

(4s,608)
(21 8,038)
(240, o0o)

000)(26,
(46,

000
000

26
46

$
000)

72 000 (72,000)

37,51 3,463 (2,277,265)

I,241 ,577
1,968,463
7,197,587
4,844,924

7'11,182
6,912,465
4,360,000

35,236,1 98

35,236,1 98

411,801
226,124
443,323
321,053
47,127

206,648
260,000

1,916,07ô

1,9'16,076

8,829,776
1,742,339
6,7 54,264
4,523,871

664,055
6,705,817
4,1 00,000

33,320,122

33,320,122Total long-term debt $ 37,585,463
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(9) Long-term Debt, continued
Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2018 were as follows:

Balance
2017

Long-term debt:
Bonds payable:

1980 Revenue bonds - PRE-1 $
1981 Revenue bonds - PR-6

Total bonds payable

Loans payable:
l97Z U.S. EDA loan - Novato Water
1977 U.S. EDA loan - West Mar¡n Water
2005 DWR loan - Novato Water
2005 SWRCB loan - Novato Recycled
2011-2012 SWRCB loans - Novatô Recycled
2011 B of lvl loan - Novato Water
2011 B of lvl loan - West Marin Water
2016 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Centr¿
2018 JP Morgan Chase Loan * Novato Water

(17,679)
(1,e63)

(7e0,074)
(21 5,648)
(422,954)
(300,284)

(44,o78)

1 0,050,647
2,189,287
7,630,605
5, 1 55,631

756,790
7,'130,503
4,600,000

402,132
220,824
433,018
310,707
45,608

206,427
240.000

38,000

_ 56,000

94,000

Additions
Princ¡pal

Pavments
Balance

2018

26,000
46,000

72,OO0

Current
PoÉion

Long-term
Portion

(1 2,000)
(1 0,000)

24,OO0

1 3,000
35,000

48,000

1 3.000
00011

(22,0OO\

17,679
1,963

10,840,721
2,404,935
8,053,559
5,455,915

800,8ô8
4,347,299

9,648,515
1,968,463
7,197,587
4,844,924

711,182
6,924,076
4,360,000

2,783,204
4,600,000

Total loans payable

Total long{erm debt

31,922,939

$ _3?{19f!L
7,383,204

7,383,204

(1,792,680) 37,513,463

__!zÉ$¡93

1 ,858,716 35,654,747

35,702,747(1,814,680) 1,882,716

Bonds Payable

1980 Revenue Bonds - /ssue PRE-1

On August 22, 1980, the District issued revenue bonds totaling $240,000 for the system rehabilitation of
the Paradise Ranch Estates (PRE) water distribution system.

The bonds are scheduled to mature in 2020. Principal is payable annually on April 1"tand interest is
payable semi-annually on October 1"tand April 1"tat a rate of 5.000%. At June 30,20'19, the District had
paid the bonds in-full.

1981 Revenue Bonds - lssuePR-6

On August 28, 1981, the District issued revenue bonds totaling $217,800 to finance the further work
needed to rehabilitate the Point Reyes and lnverness Park water systems including the addition of a
300,000 gallon tank in Point Reyes Station and a 100,000 gallon tank in lnverness Park.

The bonds are scheduled to mature in 2022. Principal is payable annually on July 1't and interest is
payable semi-annually on July l"tand January 1"tat a rate of 5.000%. At June 30,2019, the District had
paid the bonds in-full.
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(9) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loans Payable

2005 DWR Loan - Novato Water segment
ln 2005, the District entered into an agreement with the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)
for a loan in an amount not-to-exceed $16,528,850 with an interest rate of 2.39% per annum for the
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. Principal and interest payments on the loan are due
each year on January 1"tand July 1"t.

The loan is scheduled to mature in fiscalyear 2030. The loan will be repaid semi-annually over a 2)-year
period based on the repayment schedule below:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

637,539
1,O44,474
1,O44,475
1,044,474
1,O44,474
5,222,372

516 070 o 168 522 238

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030

$ 411,801
838,422
858,580
879,223
900,362

4,837,119

225,738
206,052
185,895
165,251
144,112
385,253

Total I 318 469 10,560,046

Less current portion

Total non-current $ 8,829 ,776

2005 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Water segment
In 2005, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) for a loan in an amount of $4,302,560 with an interest rate of 2.4o/o per annum for the
construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility.

As noted in note 3, the District entered into a contractual agreement with Black Point Golf Links whereby
the golf course agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs incurred for the new recycled water
facility, in-lieu of connection fees. Black Point Golf Links, as the major customer of the recycled water
facility, contributes significantly to the repayment of this loan through the repayment of the note receivable
to the District.

The loan is scheduled to mature in 2027. Principal and interest are payable annually on June 'l9th at a
rate of 2.4o/o. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

9,241,577

(411,801)

2020
2021

2022
2023
2024

2025-2027

226,124
231,551
237,108
242,798
248,626
782,256

47,243
41,816
36,259
30,569
24,741
37,845

273,367
273,367
273,367
273,367
273,367
820,101

$

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current

1,968,463

(226,124)

$ 1 ,742,339

218,473 2,186,936
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(9) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loans Payable, contin ued

2011-2012 SWRCB Loans - Novato Recycled Water segment- North and South Service Areas
ln fiscal year 2011, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources
Control Board (SWRCB) for a loan in an amount not-to-exceed $4,364,335 with an interest rate of 2.60%
per annum for the construction of the Recycled Water Expansion project - North Service Area. As of June
30,2013, eligible costs for reimbursement were $4,364,335 plus $11,270in capitalized interest charges
for a total loan of $4,375,605. Principal and interest payments of $281,892 are due and payable annually
on the loan until fiscal year 2033.

ln fiscal year 2012, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources
Control Board (SWRCB) for a loan in an amount not-to-exceed $5,480,740 with an interest rate of 2.20o/o
per annum for the construction of the Recycled Water Expansion project - South Service Area. Principal
and interest payments of $332,407 are due and payable annually on the loan until fiscal year 2034.
Future annual debt service payments on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

170,976
160,423
149,618
138,554
127,224
456,434
133,837

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

202s-2029
2030-2032

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current

443,323
453,876
464,681
475,745
487,O75

2,615,061
2 257 826

614,299
614,299
614,299
614,299
614,299

3,071,495
2,391,663

$

7,197,587 337 066 8,534,653

443,323)

fi 6,754,264

2011 Bank of Marin Loan * Novato Water and West Marin Water segments

ln October 2013, the District entered into a loan agreement with the Bank of Marin for a 2O-year $8.0
million construction loan with an interest rate of 3.42% per annum for the Nodh Marin Aqueduct Energy
Efficiency Project and West Marin water improvements. The loan is scheduled to mature in September of
fiscalyear 2032. A principal and rnterest payment of $46,067 is payable monthly on the 27rn day of each
month. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

$ 368,1 80
381,461
394,701
408,400
422,223

2,343,O75
1,238,066

184,620
171 ,339
158,099
144,400
130,577
420,925

552,800
552,800
552,800
552,800
552,800

2,764,000
1,289,86851 802

Total 5,556,106

(368,1 80)Less current portion

Total non-current $ 5,187,926

1,261,762 6,817,868
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(9) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loa ns P ayabl e, conti n u ed

2016 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Water segment- Central Service Area

ln fiscal year 2016, the District entered into an agreement with the California State Water Resources
Control Board (SWRCB) for financing the construction of the Recycled Water Expansion project - Central
Service Area for an amount not-to-exceed $10,450,708. Of this amount, $7,130,503 is a 30-year loan at
1% interest and $3,320,205 is grant funded.

As noted in note 3, the District entered into a contractual agreement with the Marin Country Club whereby
the Country Club agreed to reimburse the District for construction costs incurred for a new recycled water
pipeline, in-lieu of connection fees. Marin Country Club is the primary customer of the Central Service
Area pipeline of which this receivable contributes significantly to the District's repayment of this loan.

Principal and interest payments on the loan are due each yearon December 31't maturing in fiscal year
2048. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2048

$ 206,648
208,71s
210,802
212,910
215,039

1,107,884
1,164,397
1,223,793
1,286,220
1,076,O57

69,1 25
67,058
64,971
62,863
60,734

270,980
214,467
155,O71

92,646

275,773
275,773
275,773
275,773
275,773

1,378,864
1,378,864
1,378,864
1,378,866
1 ,103,09327 036

Total 6.912,465

(206,648)

1,084,951 7,997,416

Less current portion

Total non-current $ 6,705,817

2018 JP Morgan Chase Loan

ln fiscal year 2018, the District entered into an agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank for a loan in an
amount of $4,600,000 with an interest rate of 2.69% per annum for financing the acquisition and
construction of the automated meter information system throughout the District's Novato service area.
Principal and interest payments on the loan are due semi-annually on September 1't and March'l"t
maturing in fiscal year 2033. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2033

Total

Less current portion

Total non-current

4,360,000

(260,000)

$ 4,100,000

$ 260,000
270,O00
275,000
280,000
290,000

1,570,000
1,415,000

117,284
110,290
103,O27
95,630
88,098

319,034
96,302

377,284
380,290
378,O27
375,630
378,098

1,889,034
1,511,302

39
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(10) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

General lnformation about the OPEB Plan
Plan Description
The District offers other postemployment medical benefits to retired employees who satisfy the eligibility
rules. Spouses and surviving spouses are also eligible to receive benefits.

Benefits Provided
For retirees between the ages of 55 to 65 with a minimum of '12 years of service, who retired prior to
January 1,2013, the District's contribution toward the chosen medical plan will be 90% of the Kaiser
Basic Medical Plan premium amount. For retirees between the ages of 55 to 65 with a minimum of 12
years of service, who retire on or after January 1, 2013, the District's contribution toward the chosen plan
will be 85% of the Kaiser Basic Medical Plan premium amount. The District will make a monthly
contribution toward the cost of health insurance coverage for all other retirees based on the contract
effective at the time of their retirement. Employees hired after October 1, 2018 require a minimum of 20
years of service to be eligible.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At June 30, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

2019 2018

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
lnactive employees entitled to bú not receiving benefit payments
Active employees

Total Plan membership

34
4

53

34
4

53

91 91

Contributions
The Plan and its contribution requirements for eligible retired employees of the District are established
and may be amended by the Board of Directors. The District pays a poftion of the cost of health
insurance for retirees under any group plan offered by CaIPERS, subject to ceftain restrictions as
determined by the District. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution.
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2018, the District's contributions were $375,787 which included
$304,254 of pay-as-you-go contributions and $7'1,533 in an implicit subsidy. At June 30,2018, the
contributions were reclassified from expense to reduce the total OPEB liability.

Total OPEB Liability
The District'stotal OPEB liabilitywas measured as of June 30,2018 and thetotal OPEB liability used to
calculate the total OPEB liabilitywas determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2017. Standard
actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement, unless othenruise specified:

lnflation 3.00 percent

Salary increases 3.00 percent, average, including inflation

Discount rate 3.62 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.00 percent for 2O17,5.00 percent for 201 B, 5.00 percent
for 2019, and 5.00 percent for 2O2O and later years

Retirees'share of benefit-related costs 10 percent of projected health insurance premiums
for retirees between ages 55 to 65 with a minimum 12 years of service
who retired prior to January 1,2013.
15 percent of projected health insurance premiums
for retirees between ages 55 to 65 with a minimum 12 years of service
who retired after January 1,2013.
Employees hired after October 1,2018 need a minimum of 20 years
of service to be eligible.
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(10) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Total OPEB Liability, continued

Actu a rial Assu m ption s, conti n ued

Notes:

The discount rate was based on the Municipal Bond 20-Year High Grade Rate lndex.

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or
Females, as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014
Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection.

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2017 valuation were based on a review of plan experience
during the period July I , 2015 to June 30, 2017.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.00 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equalto the
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and
inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
TotalOPEB TotalOPEB

Liability Liability
2018-2019 2017-2018

Balance at Beginning of Year

Changes for the year:
Service cost
lnterest
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments

$ ¿, t 2s,565 4,418,205

Net changes

Balance at End of Year

396,599 (294,640)

$ _4,5?9¡_q4 4,123,565

Sensitivity of the Total QPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.62 percent)
or 1-percentage-point higher (4.62 percent) than the current discount rate:

Sensitivity in the discount rate as of 2019 was as follows:

Discount Rate Current
- 1% Discount Rate

(2.62%l (3.62%l

District's Total oPEB liability $ ***1,e99,84q_ ____1,520f51-

137,480
150,690

163,205
195,564

(250,340)

1 45,989
132,454

(1e7,2e6)
(375,787\

Discount Rate
+ 1o/o

(4.62%l

41
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(f 0) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate, continued

Sensitivity in the discount rate as of 201 8 was as follows:

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate
- 1Yo Discount Rate + 1o/o

(2.62%l (3.62%l (4.62%l

District's TotalOPEB liability $ 4,542,175 4,123,565 3,762,403

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Raúes

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are '1-percentage-point lower
(5.00 percent decreasing to 4.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.00 percent decreasing to 6.00
percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Sensitivity in the healthcare trend rate as of 2019 was as follows:

Healthcare
Cost Trend

1% Decrease Rates l7o Increase
(5.00% (6.00% (7.ooo/o

decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to
4.00%1 5.00%) 6.00%)

District's Total oPEB liability $ ____4¿99,591_ 4,520,164 4,782,371

Sensitivity in the healthcare trend rate as of 2018 was as follows:

Healthcare
Cost Trend

1% Decrease Rates
(5.00% (6.00%

decreasing to decreasing to
4.OO%) 5.00%)

17o lncrease
(7.O0%

decreasing to
6.00%)

District's Total OPEB liability $ 3 934 508 4,123,565 4,345,977

For the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $315,924 and
$239,758, respectively.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

At June 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of lnflows of

Description Resources Resources

Changes in assumptions

Differences between actual and expected
experience

Total

$ 39,422

132 982

42
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(10) Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources Re/afed fo
OPEB

At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of lnflows of

Description Resources Resources

Changes in assumptions

Total

(158,611)

(158,611)

Amounts reporled as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Actuarially Determined Deferred Outflows and (lnflows) - OPEB
Plan

$

$

FiscalYear
Ending June 30

Net, Changes
in Assumptions

Net, Differences
between Expected

and Actual
Experience

Net, Deferred
Outflows/(lnflows)

of Resources

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Thereafter

$ (2,46e) $
(2,46e)
(2,46s)
32,345
14,484

30,223
30,223
30,223
30,223
12,090

27,754
27,754
27,754
62,568
26,574

Total $ 39,422 $ 132,982 172,404

Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Rafios

See page 57 for the Required Supplementary Schedule.

(1f ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District's separate
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). Benefit provisions
under the Plan is established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CaIPERS issues publicly
available repods that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CaIPERS website or may be obtained
from theirexecutive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814.

Benefits Provided

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability
benefits after'10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: The Basic Death Benefit, or
the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as
specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law.
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(f 1) Defined Benefit Pension PIan, continued

On September 12, 2012, lhe California Governor signed the California Public Employees' Pension
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law. PEPRA took effect January 1,2013. The new legislation closed
the District's CaIPERS 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants effective
December 31,2012. For employees hired prior to January 1,2013, who are current members of
CaIPERS or a reciprocal agency as of December 31 , 2012 and have not been separated from service
from such agency for more than six months, the retirement benefit is 2.5% @ 55 years of age; highest
single year of compensation. All other employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, the retirement
benefit is 2.0% @ 62 years of age; 3 year final compensation.

The Plans'provision and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan
Tier 1 Tier 2
Prior to

January 1,

2013

On or after
January 1,

2013Hire date

Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a o/o of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

2.5% @ 55 2.0% @62
5 years of service 5 years of servicr

monthly for life monthly for life
50-55 52-67

2.0o/o to 2.5o/o 1.0% to 2.5%
7.951o/o 6.750%
11.432o/o 6.985%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates, for all public employers, be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on July 1 following notice of the change in rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined
annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the fiscal year ended June 30 the contributions for the Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan
2019 2018

Contributions - employer $ 1,15s,358 _*l_,917,32þ*

Net Pension Liability

As of June 30 the District repoñed net pension liabilities for its proporlionate share of the net pension
liability of the Plan as follows:

Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability
2019 201A

Miscellaneous Plan
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(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

The District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the pool. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30,2017, rolled fon¡vard to June 30,2018, using standard update procedures. The
Districts' proporlion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Districts' long-term share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all padicipating employers,
actuarially determined.

The District's change in the proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of the
measurement date June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2018

Proportion - June 30, 2019

Change - lncrease (Decrease)

Proportion - June 30,2017
Proportion - June 30, 2018

Change - lncrease (Decrease)

0.12881%
0.13034o/o

0.00153%

The District's change in the proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of the
measurement date June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Miscellaneous

0.12759%

0.12881%

0.00122%

Deferred Pension Outflows (lnflows) of Resources

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $1,675,531 and $2,217,067,
respectively.
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(f f ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Deferred Pension Outflows (lnflows) of Resources, continued

At June 30, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

2019 2018

Description

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
lnflows of
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent
to the measurement date at June 30

Net, differences between actual and expected
experience

Net, changes in assumptions

Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments

Net, differences between actual contribution
and proportionate share of contribution

Net, change due to differences in proportion
of net pension liability

Total

$ 1,155,358

317,915

1,080,951

62,093

1,017,325

1 ,810,636

443,293

267.071

(210,531)

(514,716) (517,0e6)

(25,640)

$ 2,616,317 (540,356) ____!é!9,3?9_ *_*__AZ_þ4I

As of June 30 2019 and 2018, employer pension contributions of $1,155,358 and $1,017,325, were
repoded as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date
were and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal years ended June 30,
2020and 20 1 9, respectively.

At June 30,2019, the District recognized other amounts reported by the Plan actuarial as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension liability. Pension related
amounts will be recognized as pension expense (income) as follows.

Actuaria llv Determined Deferred Outflows and (lnflowsl - Miscellaneous Plan

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30:

Net, Differences
between Expected

and Actual
Experience

Net, Changes
in Assumptions Resourcesin Proportions

28,837 $
(29,813)
(24,664)

Net, Differences Net, Differences
between Projected between Actual

and Actual Earnings Contribution and
Pension Plan Proportionate Share
lnvestments of Contribution

Net, Changes Net, Deferred
Due to Differences Outflows/(lnflows) of

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Thereafter

84,7 16

101,643
131,556

630,1 1 3

496,658
(45,820)

416,445
58,1 63

(310,464)
( 1 02,051 )

(25e,71 s)
(176,o52)

(78,e4e)

900,396
450,599

(s28,341 )
(102,051)

$

Total $ 317,915 1,080,951 62,093 (s14,716) (25,640) $ 920,603
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(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

At June 30, 2018, the District recognized other amounts reported by the Plan actuarial as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension liability. Pension related
amounts will be recognized as pension expense (income) as follows.

Deferred Pension Outflows (lnflows) of Resources, continued
Actuariallv Detêrmined Deferred Outflows and (lnflows) - Miscellaneous Plan

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30

Net, Differences
between Expected

and Actual
Exnerience

Net, Changes
in Assumptions

Net, Differences
between Projected

and Actual Earnings
Pension Plan
lnvestments

Net, Differences
between Actual

Contribution and
Proportionate Share

of Contr¡bution

Net, Changes Net, Deferred
Due to Differences Outflows/(lnflows) of

in Proportions Resources

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Thereafter

(68,002)
(7s,728)
(62,801)

$ 569,31 7

687,387
553,932

(27,OO7)
518,497
160,215

(208,412)

(278,697)
(161,031 )

(77,368)

206,385 $
59,668

I ,018

40'1 ,996
1,024,793

574,996
(208,412)

Total $ (21 0,531 ) 1 ,810,636 443,293 (51 7,096) 267 ,O71 $ 1,79s,373

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 and 2017 , actuarial valuation report was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation dates June 30, 2017 and 2Q16
Measurement dates June 30, 2018 and2o17
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of

GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
lnflation

7.15o/"
2O1B - 2,5Oo/o

2017 - 2.75o/o
Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.5O o/o Net of Pension Plan lnvestment and Administratir,e
Expenses; includes inflation
Derircd using CaIPERS' Membership Data for all Funds

Salary increases
lnvestment Rate of Return

Morfality Rate Table"
Period upon which actuar¡al

Experience S uney assumptions
were based 2018 - 19972015

2017 - 19972011
2O1B- Contract COLA up to 2.50% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies,
2.sjo/o thereafter
2017 - Contract COLA up to 2.75o/o until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies,
2.75o/o thereafter

Post Retirement Benefit

* The mortality table used above was developed based on CaIPERS' specific data. The table includes 20
years of mortal¡ty improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table,
please refer to the 2014 Experience Study report. Further details of the Experience Study can be found
on the CaIPERS website.
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(1 1) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15o/o for the Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, the
amodization and smoothing periods recently adopted by CaIPERS were utilized. The crossover test was
performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing
the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate
of return on pension investments.

Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability for the Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

ln determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both shorl-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both shorl-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quafter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation.

^Asset Class
New

Strategic
Real Return
Years 1-lOn

Real Return
Year 1l+**

Global Equity
Global Fixed lncome
lnflation Sensitive
Priwte Equity
Real Estate
lnfrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity

Total

50.Oo/o

28.Oo/o

O.O'/o

B.Oo/o

13.Oo/o

o.o%
1.Oo/o

4.BOo/o

1.OO.^
77.OOo/o

6.3jo/o
3.7 5o/o

o.o0%
0.00%

5.98%
2.620/0
1.81Yo
7.23o/o
4.93o/o
0.00%
-O.92o/o

100.0%

* An expected inflation of 2.5o/o used for this period
** An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Sensitivity of the Proportionaúe Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The table below presents the District's proportionate share of the net position liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District's proportional share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate:
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(f f ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Sensitivity of the Proportionaúe Sfiare of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

At June 30,2019, the discount rate comparison was the following:

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate
- 1% Discount Rate + 1o/o

(6.15%) (7.15%l (8.r5%)

District's Net Pension Liability $ 19,203,695 12,560,160 7,076,031

At June 30, 2018, the discount rate comparison was the following

Discount Rate
-1%

(6.r5%)

Current
Discount Rate

(7.1s%l

Discount Rate
+ 1o/o

(8.15%)

District's Net Pension Liability $ 19,235,760 12,774,724 7,423,578

Pension PIan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in separately issued
CaIPERS financial reporls. See pages 58-59 for Required Supplementary Schedules.

Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30,2019 and 2018, the District reported no payables forthe outstanding amount of contribution
to the pension plan
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(121 Net Position

Calculat¡on of net position perfund as of June 30,2o19, was as follows

Novato
Water

North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Novato
Recycled

West Marin
Water

Oceana Mar¡n
Sewer Totâl

Net ¡n\,estment in capital assets:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net
Capital project loan proceeds unused

Current:
Loans payable

Non-current:
Loans payable

Total net in\,estment in capital assets

Restricted net position:

Connection fee reserre
Cash resene for debt sen¡ce

Total restricted net position

Unrestricted net posit¡on:

Non-spendable net position:

Current:

Mâterials and supplies in\,entory

Prepaid expenses and deposits
Notes rece¡vable - employee housing loans

Non-cutrent:
Notes receivable

Notes receivable - employee housing loans

Total non-spendable net posit¡on

Spendable net position are designated as follows
Other post-employment benef ts resere
Operating resene (def c¡t)*

Total spendable net position (defcit)*

Total unrestrìcted net position

Total net posit¡on

* Def ¡cit Ìs prÌrorily due to recognition of GASBS 6B and 75.

$ 8,863,O74
89,391,550

26,650

(992,854)

15,743,265
16,730,223

659,421
4,952,370

437,924

(47,127)

a7,792
1,O70,956

25,353,552
112,145,O99

464,574

(1,e16,076)

(17,453,648)

(876,095)

(15,2O2,41e) (664,o55) (s3,320 122\

79,434 772 '16,394,974 5,338,537 15e 74A 102,727,O31

71J41
534

71 ,141
534

71,715 71,715

701 ,952
226,344

39,200

675, O00

2,027,949

4,291
701,952
230,675

39,200

2.O27.949

675,000

1,642,536 o27,9492, 4,291 3,674,776

4,123,565
(6,431 ,9O2)

(2,308,337)

4,998,664 1,275,713 359,689
4, 1 23,565

202,164

664 1,275,713 359,689 4,325,729

(665,801) 7 613 1,27s,7'13 363,980 8, OO0,505

$ 79,168,971 23,421,5A7 6,68s,965 1,522,724 110,799,251
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(121 Net Position, continued

Calculation of net pos¡tion per fund as of June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Novato
Water

North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Novato

Net investment in capital assets:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net
Capital project loan proceeds unused

Current:

Bonds payable
Loans payable

Non-current:

Bonds payable

Loans payable

Total net investment in capital assets

Restricted net position:

Connect¡on fee reserve

Wohler pipeline reserve

Collector No. 6 reserve

Cash reserve for debt service

Accrued interest for debt service

Total restricted net position

Unrestricted net pos¡tion:

Non-spendable net position:

Current:

Materials and supplìes inventory

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Notes receivable - employee housing loans

Non-current:

Notes receivable

Notes receivable - employee housing loans

TotaI non-spendable net position

Spendable net pos¡tion are designated as follows:

Other post-employment benefits reserve

Operating reserve

Total spendable net position

Total unrestricted net position

Total net position

' Def¡cit is primarily due to reægnition of GASBs 68 and 75.

(952,839) (860,269)

(18,853,439) (16,090,126)

$ 9,658,022
87,515,008

35,534

15,623,282
17,204,048
2,904,879

547,219
5,119,254

447,894

136,075
786,900

Recycled
West Marin

Water
Oceana Marin

Sewer
As Restated

Total

25,964,598
110,625,210

3,388,307

(24,000)
(1,858,716)

(48,000)

(35,654,747)

(24,000)
(45,608)

(48,000)

(711,182)

77,402,286 18,781,814 5,285,577

102,491

416,369

1,637,095

922,975 102 392.652

102.491

41 6,369
'1 .637.095

30,534

(325)

30,534
(325)

2,053,464 132,700 2,186,164

471,314

54,324

495,000

12,150 3,954

471,314

70,428

4S5,000

2,665,037

714.200

2,665,037

714,200

1,734 oão 2,665,037 12,150 3,954 4,415,979

4,008,682

(1 0,988,208)

4,008,682
(6,1 80,032)3,318,029 1,001 ,067 489 080

(6,979,526) 3,318,029 1,001,067 489 080 (2,171,350)

(5,244,688) 5,983,066 1,013,217 493,034 2,244,629

$ 74,211,062 24,764,880 6,431,494 1 ,416,009 106,823,445
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(13) Adjustment to Net Position

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB)- GASB 75 lmplementation

ln fiscal year 2018, the District implemented GASB pronouncements 74 and 75 to recognize its total other
post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability. As a result of the implementation, the District recognized the
OPEB liability and recorded a prior period adjustment, a (decrease)to net position, of $4,418,205 at July
1,2017. The District recorded a prior period adjustment, an increase to net position, to reclassify from
liabilities to net position, the prior year's OPEB liability, recognized in accordance with GASB 45, of
$1,204,119 at July 1,2017.

The adjustment to net position is as follor¡¡s:

$ 103,911,972

(4,418,205)
1,204,119

(s,214,086)

$ ___1_q!,692,899_

(141 Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

For the benefit of its employees, the District padicipates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program
(Program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that
elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a pofiion of their
salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or
otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to repod the deferred salary for
income tax purposes.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
padicipants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are not
the legal propefty of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District's general creditors. Market
value of the plan assets held in trust at June 30, 2019 and 2018, were $6,736,623 and $6,500,484,
respectively.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Repoñing for lnternal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative
involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are
not shown on the statement of net position.

(15) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District purchases
commercial insurance policies with a variety of coverage including a $10.0 million excess general liability
policy with a $1.0 million self-insured retention limit, a $62,492,000 properly and equipment policy, a $1.0
million public official's liability policy, a $1.0 million cyber liability policy, a $614,000 vehicle physical
damage policy, and a $500,000 employee fidelity bond policy.

Net position at July 1, 2017, as previously stated

Effect of adjustment to record total other postemployment benefits liability
Effect of adjustment to remove other post-employment benefits liability under GASB 45

Total adjustment to net position

Net position at July 1, 2017, as restated
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(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

Newly lssued Accounting Pronouncements, But Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to
June 30, 2019, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84

ln January 2017, lhe GASB issued Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial repoñing purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and
other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4)
custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or
equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2018.
The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the Districtls financial statements has not been
assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

lnJune20lT,lheGASBissuedStatementNo.ST-Leases. TheobjectiveofthisStatementistobetter
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on
the payment provisions of the contract. lt establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for repoding periods beginning after December 15,2019.
Earlier application is encouraged. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's
financial statements has not been assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement fi/o. 89

ln June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 - Accounting for lnterest Cost lncurred before the End
of a Construction Period The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction perlod.

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical
cost of a capital asset repofted in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.
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(f 6) GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board Statements

Newly lssued Accounting Pronouncements, But Not Yet Effective, continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89, continued

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized
as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for repoding periods beginning after December 15,
2019. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied
prospectively. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's financial statements has
not been assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90

ln August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 - Majority Equity lnterests-an amendment of GASB
Sfafemenús No. 14 and No. 67. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for ceftain component units. lt defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
results in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and,
therefore, the government should report that organization as a component unit.

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (1) repofting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be
applied on a prospective basis. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's
financial statements has not been assessed at this time.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91

ln August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives
of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt
obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures,
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

Newly lssued Accounting Pronouncements, But Not Yet Effective, continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91 , continued

This Statement also addresses arrangements-often characterized as leases-that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. ln those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. During
those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the
obligors at the end of the arrangements.

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers'
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. lssuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the repofting period.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020. Earlier application is encouraged.

(171 Commitments and Gontingencies

Woh I erlCol I ector N o. 6 Ag reem ent

The District is party to an agreement with the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) that provides,
among other matters, that the District is obligated to pay for a prorated share of certain SCWA's costs to
improve or expand the SCWA's water utility plant. The agreement expires on June 30, 2040 and is
subject to renewal for 40-year terms. Under the agreement, the District is obligated to pay promptly all
billings from the SCWA and may not withhold payment pending resolution of disputes, if any, which might
exist between the District and SCWA. At June 30, 2019, the District's reserve balances for these
obligations were $0 (Wohler Pipeline) and $0 (Collector #6).

Novato Sanitary District

The District has entered into a contract with the Novato Sanitary District (NSD) which requires NSD to
supply secondary treated effluent of sufficient quantity to the District for the recycled water treatment
operation. The District pays NSD $20 per year for an annual lease of the site for the Deer lsland Recycled
Water Treatment Facility which is owned and operated by the District.

Solar Power Services, Facilities and Site Agreement

ln February 2012, the District entered into a Solar Power Services Agreement to purchase all the solar
power generated from the Solar Power Generating Facility constructed near the District's Stafford
Treatment Plant facilities at a Take-or-Pay price of $0.1700 per kilowatt hour escalating 3.0% annually to
$0.2981 per kilowatt hour over a2O-year contract period. Also, in February 2013, the District executed a
29-year lease with the Solar Services company to construct the Solar Power Generating Facility on
District land for a land lease of $100 for the period (or $5 per year).

Co n stru cti on Contracts

The District has a variety of agreements with developers and private padies relating to the installation,
improvement or modification of transmission facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The
financìng of such improvements is provided primarily from advances for construction. The District also
improves and modifies its existing infrastructure and finances such improvements from its reserves. The
District has committed to approximately $213,002 in remaining costs of existing District capitalprojects as
of June 30, 2019.
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(171 Commitments and Contingencies, continued

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the
grant. Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Litigation

ln the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will
not materially affect its financial condition.

(f8) Subsequent Events

Events occurring after June 30, 2019, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of November 19, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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North Marin Water District
Schedule of Changes in the District Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

2019 201 8

TotalOPEB Liability

Service cost $

lnterest

Changes in benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending $

Covered payroll $

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

4,520,164 __4Jæ,599_
5,434,109 635 521

137,480

150,690

163,205

195,564

(250,340)

145,989

132,454

(1e7,2e6)

(375,787)

396,599

4,123,565

(294,640)

4 418 205

5

83.1 8% 73.17%

Notes:
* Historical information presented above follows the measurement periods forwhich GASB 74 &75
were applicable. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, (valuation date of June 30,2017) was the first year
of implementation required by GASB 74 &75, therefore only two years are shown.
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North Marin Water District
Schedules of the District's PropoÉionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

Description
Fiscal Year
6/30/201 I

Fiscal Year
6/30/201 I

Fiscal Year
6t30t2017

Fiscal Year
6/30/201 6

Fiscal Year
6/30/201 5

District's proportion of the net pension liability

District's proport¡onate share of the net pension liability

District's covered payroll

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

0.1 3034% 0.128810/o 0.12759o/o O.125580/" O.1O7690/"

$ 12,560,160

ç 4,953,247

12,774,724 11,040,789 ö,o 19.837 701.264o,

4,600,500 4,542,666 4,305,518 4,106,287

253.57% 277.68% 243.05To 200.20% 163.20%

74.43% 72.BOo/o 73.98o/o 78.630/o

Notes:

Changes in BenefitTerms - For the measurement date June 30, 2018, there were no changes in the
benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions- Forthe measurement date June 30, 2018, there were no changes in the
assumpt¡ons.
* Historical information presented above follows the measurement periods for which GASB 68 & 71 were
applicable. The fiscalyear ended June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation required by GASB
68 & 71; therefore only five years are shown.

83.47o/o
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North Marin Water District
Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions

As of June 30, 2019
Last Ten Years*

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
6/30/2019 6/30/2018

Fiscal Year
6t30t2017

F¡scal Year
6/30/201 6

Fiscal Year
6/30/201 5

Actuar¡ally determined contribúion $
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contribution

Contribution defic¡ency (excess) $

District's covered payroll $

Contr¡bution's as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes:

19,78'l 20,227 208

4,953,247 4,600,500 4,542,666

1 ,1 75,1 39

(1 ,1 55,358)

1,037,552

(1,017,325\

926,656

(926,448)

836,212

(828.792\

930,1 46

(669,066)

7,420 261,080

4,305,5'18 4,305,518

23.33o/o 22.11o/" 20.39o/o 19.25% 15.54o/o

* Historical information presented above follows the measurement periods for which GASB 68 & 7'1

were applicable. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, (valuation date of June 30,2014) was the first
year of implementation required by GASB 68 & 71; therefore only five years are shown.
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North Marin Water District
Combining Schedule of Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Novato
Water

Novato
Recycled

West Mar¡n
Water

Oceana Mar¡n
Sewer Total

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restr¡cted - cash and cash equivalents
Restricted - investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable - water and sewer sales
Accounts receivable - governmental agencies
Accounts receivable - other
Notes receivable
Notes receivable - employee housing loans, net
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Totâl current assets

Non-current assets:
Restricted - investments
Notes rece¡vable
Notes receivable - employee hous¡ng loans, net
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable cap¡tal assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred other post-employement benefits outflows
Deferred pension outflows

Total deferred outflows of resources

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Accrued claims payable
Customer advances and deposits
Accrued interest payable - long.term debt
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:

Compensated absences
Loans payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities * due in more than one year:

Compensated absences
Loans payable
Other post-employment benefits liabil¡ty
Net pension liability

Total non-current l¡abil¡ties

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net ¡nvestment in cap¡tal assets
Restr¡cted for cap¡tal projects and debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

259,58 1 171,863

263,785
39,200

701 ,952
226 384

13,677,651 5,206,542 1,859,500 379,315 21 123 008

87,792
1,070,s56

3,744,249
2,O27,949

675,000
25.353.552

112 14s 099

1,158,748 143,945,849

1,538,063 165,068,857

$ 3,799,851 3,793,104
890,072

1,079,642
607,995

8,980,983
1,498,122
4,715,320

88,871
4,221 ,181

162,445
220,474
263,785

39,200
701 ,952

4,715,320
88,871

3,788,473
162,445
1 55,1 55

308,386
55

1,264

65 319

4,291 230 675

3,744,249
- 2,027,949

675,000
8,86s,074 15,743,265

89,39'1 ,550 16,730,223

102,673,873

116,351,524

6s9,421
4,952,370

34,s01,437 5,611,791

39,707,979 7,471,291

172,404
2,616,317

2,788,721

136,644
992,854

4,487,015

112.404
616 3172

$ 1,226,300
215,040
50,451

1,826,631
39,095

39,660
24,577

1,527
14,614

127.500

11,410
709

3,216

1,265,960
280,870

54,541
1,886,908

1 66,595

876,095

1,083,973

47,127

121 ,271 15,335 5,707,594

2,7 88,721

'136.644

916 076

409,931
33,320,122
4,520,164

12 560 160

50 810 377

29,843
1,854

42,447

409,931
17,453,648
4,520,164

12 560 160

15,202,419 664,055

34 943 903 1s,202,419 664,055

39,430,918 16,286,392 78s,326 15,335 56,517,971

540 356 540 356

540 356 540 356

79,834,772

(665,801)

21,O78,150

2,343,437

5,338,537
101 ,715

1 ,245,713

1,158,7_48

363,980

107 ,410,207
101 .7 15

3,287,329

$ 79,168,971 23,421,587 6,685,965 1,522,728 110,799,251

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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North Marin Water District
Combining Schedule of Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Novato
Water

Novato
Recycled

West Marin
Water

Oceana Marin
Sewer Total

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restr¡cted - cash and cash equivalents
Restricted - investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable - water and sewer sales
Accounts receivable - governmental agencies
Accounts receìvable - other
Capital grants and loan proceeds receivable
Notes receivable
Notes receivable - employee housing loans, net
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Restricted - investments
lnternal balances
Notes receivable
Notes receivable - employee housing loans, net
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows

Total deferred outflows of resources

Current liab¡l¡ties:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Accrued claims payable
Customer advances and deposits
Accrued interest payable - long-term debt
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:

Compensated absences
Bonds payable
Loans payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long{erm l¡ab¡lities - due in more than one year:

Compensated absences
Bonds payable
Loans payable
Total other post-employment benefits liability
Net pension l¡abil¡ty

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflor¡¡s of resources:
Deferred other post'employment benef¡ts ¡nflows
Deferred.pension infl ows

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net ¡nvestment in capital assets
Restricted for capìtal projects and debt service
Unrestricted

I 1 ,590,387 5,856,383 '1 ,671 ,013

$

6,469,611
84,055

3,935,703
69,830
10.550

2,028,452
869,672

391,744

2,270,095
296,420

894.884
581,104

182,87 5

561,394
10

3,048

3,484,730
1,450,786
6,469,61 1

84,055
4,513,370

69,830
10,550

2,270,O95
296,420
495,000
471 ,314

70,428

495.000
471,314

54 s24 12 150 3,954

568,406 19,686,189

3.701.301
(543,2 1 8)

714,200
9,658,022

87 515 008

543,218
2,665,037

15,623,282
17,204,O48

547,219
5,'119,254

136,075
786,900

3,701,301

2,665,037
714,200

25,964,598
110,62s,210

101,045,313 36,035,585 5,666,473 922,975 143,670,346

112,635,700 41,891,968 7,337,486 491 381 163,356,535

3,538,325J 538 325

3,538,325 3,538,325

2,535,120
212,372

90,652
1,010,123

36,434

121,864

45,328
20,301
2,342

10,297
98,425

61,076
9,305
1,O74
3,917

2,641 ,524
272,429

97,581
1,066,100

I 36,334

30,451
3,513

41 ,763
1,415

24,000
952 839 860,269 45 608

121,864
24,OOO

1 ,858,716

4,959,404 1,036,962 146 810 7 5,372 6,218,548

365,593

18,853,439 16,090,126
4,123,565

12 774 724

48,000
711.182

365,593
48,000

35,654,747
4,1 23,565

12,774,724

36 117 321 16,090,126 759 182 52,966,629

41 076 725 17,127,O88 905 992 75,372 59, 18s.177

158.611 158,611
727,627727 627

886 238 886,238

77,402,286
2,053,464

(5,244,688)

18,781,814

5,983,066

5,285,577
132,700

922,975

493,034

102,392,652
2,186,164
2,244,629

Total net pos¡tion fi 74,211,062

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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North Marin Water District
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Novato
Water

Novato West Marin
Recycled Water

Oceana Mar¡n
Sewer Total

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Bi-monthly meter service charge
Sewer service charges
Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water facilities operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Sewage collection and treatment
Customer serv¡ce
General and administrat¡ve
Water conservation projects

Total operating expenses

Operating income before depreciation
Depreciation

Operating income(loss)

Non-operat¡ng revenues(expenses) :

Property tax revenue
lnvestment earn¡ngs
lnterest earnings(loss) from note receivable - BPGL
Rental revenue
lnterest expense - long{erm debt
Other non-operating revenues
Other non-operating expenses

Total non-operating revenues, net

Net income(loss) before capital contributions

Capital contributions:
Developers and others
Connect¡on fees
Capital grants - state and local

Capital contributions

Change ¡n net pos¡tion

Net pos¡tion transfer (note 5)

Net position, beginnìng of year

Net position, end of year

19,437,324 1,183,419 898,783

$ 14,510,861
4,562,329

364,134

1,120,488
62,783

148
252,720

16,s37,171
4,810,296

252,720
372,059

705,822
1 85,1 84

7

5,167,409
389,1 49
711 ,17 s

1,345,S58
3,142,281

485,787
2,864,101

341,784

15,047,644

4,389,680
(2.752,213\

1 ,118
52.910

21,459
64,365

7,631

252 720 21 ,772,246

127,513
1,977

25,925

300,457
3,930

222,749
15,503
1 6,869

24,458
65,515
59,285

1 69,705
142,479

5,492,324
458,594
993,209

2,131,166
3,301,629

127,513
510,341

3,007,301
349,415

613,536 554,897 155,415 16,371,492

569,883
(473.826\

343,886
(186,922)

97,305
(38,1 e4)

5,400,7s4
(3,451 ,155)

1,637,467 96 057 '156,964 59,1 1 1 1,949,599

1,945
296.3'10

86,1 32
(525,522)

66,521
(3,164)

76,542
48,O02

iszo,oes¡

(3,354)

55,074
58,210

58,683
5,622

250

(16.947\

5,1 50
(28,7ee)

682
(810)

1 15,706
436,684

48,002
91,532

(875,354)
67,203

(24,275)

(78,174)

1,559,293

(199,443) 89,507

(103,386) 246.471

47,608 (140,502)

654,1 38
1,484,380 8,000

106,719 809 097

654.1 38
1,492,380

20 191 20 191

2

3,718,002

1,239,907

74,211,062

(1 03,386)

(1,239,907)

24,764,880

106,719

2,166,709

3,975,806

158 709 8,000

254,471

$___zg,l_g!,ez_1 23,421,587 6,685,965 1,522,728

6.431 ,494 1 ,416,009 106,823,445

110,799,251

See accompanyìng notes to the basic ftnancial statements
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North Marin Water District
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Operat¡ng revenues:
Water consumption sales
Bi-monthly meter serv¡ce charge
Sewer service charges
Water sale to other agency
Other charges and services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water facilities operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Sewage collection and treatment
Customer serv¡ce
General and administratìve
Water conservation projects

Total operating expenses

Operat¡ng incorne before depreciation
Depreciation

Operat¡ng income(loss)

Non-operating revenues(expenses) :

Property tax revenue
lnvestment earnings
lnterest earnings from note receivable - BPGL
Rental revenue
lnterest expense - long{erm debt
Debt issuance costs
Other non-operating revenues
Other non-operating expenses

Total non-operating revenues, net

Net income(loss) before cap¡tal contr¡but¡ons

Capital contributions:
Developers and others
Connection fees
Cap¡tal grants - federal
Capital grants - state and local

Capital contributions

Change ¡n net position

Net position transfer

Net position, beginning of year - as restated

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

1 99,340
2,781

1 03,387
19,838
20.856

13,678
50,974
52,794

165,777
123,710

5,569,766
426,356

1 ,079,917
2,s67,146
3,387,559

1 63,S57
742,164

2.1 69.660

Novato
Water

$ 15,149,251
4,353,1 68

1 55,846
361,539

Novato
Recycled

West Marin
Water

Oceana Marin
Sewer Total

16,764,567
4,564,228

239,890
155.846

914,863
33,850

¿o

700,453
177,210

7,398

239,890

600 369 563

20,0'19,804 948,739 885,061 240,490 22 094 094

5,356,748
372,601
923,736

2,377,531
3,242,993

711 ,431
2,O02,414

344,890

919
53.882

27,224
86,494
9,615

163,957
2,590

26.870
354 505

15,332,344 401 ,003

4,687,460
(2,730,867)

547.736
(473,e70)

534,266 153,417 '16,461,030

350,795
(1sr,s50)

47.073 5,633,064
(3,434.069)(iJ'/,282)

1,956,593 158,845 751 2 198 995

127,724 25,609
48,536

53,227
21 ,7 53

56.700
7,083

500

1.603
(812)

99,906
(472,ss3)

(86,1 80)
51 ,649
(7,460)

109,927
182,169
48,536

'105,406

(7 47 ,1 18)
(86,1 80)
57,818
(9,035)

(243,795\

4,548

5,000
(30,730)

18
(763)

(286,e54) (165,102) 48,505 65 074 (338,477)

1,669,639 (e1,336) 207.350 74 865 860 518

533,970
1,387,000

1,682,520

24,101
68,400

244 2,216,734
'1 ,455,400

24,101
568.80647,618 521 188

1,968,588 2,227,809

2,136,473

5,481,925

17,146,482

68,400

275,750

244 4,265,O41

3,638,227

(5,481,92s)

76,054,760

75. I 09 6,1 25,559

6,155,744 1,340 900 100 697.886

$ 74,211,062 24,764,880 6,431,494 '1 ,416,009 106,823,445
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North Marin Water District
Statistical Section

This part of the District's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information say about the District's overall financial health.

Table of Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's most
significant own-source revenue, water sales.

Page No.

65-69

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic lnformation
This schedule offers demographic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

Operating lnformation
This schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the District's financial report relates to the service the
District provides.

70-73

74-75

76-77

78-79
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North Marin Water District
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Gomponent

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Year

20,1o 2011

Change in net position:

Operating revenues (see schedule 2)

Operating expenses (see schedule 3)

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income(loss)

Net non-op revenue(expense) (see schedule 4)

Net income(loss) before capital contributions

Capital contributions

Ghange in net position

Net position by component:

Unrestricted

Prior period adj ustment

Total net position

($618,614) $628,894 $2,767,934

$12,381,493
(13,083,372)

(2,659,883)

$13,797,012
(11,878,612)

(2,660,418)

2012

$15,435,733
(12,610,862)

(2,726,598)

($3,361,762)

(2s5,218).

($742,018)

(414,563)

$98,273

(531,318)

($3,616,e80)

2,998,366

($1,156,581)

1,785,475

($433,045)

3,200,979

$60,880,162
5,321,639
6,462,761

$63,542,479
3,171,305
6,579,672

$61,882,478
2,993,055

11,'185 857

972,664,562 $73,293,456 $76,061,390

Ghange in Total Net Position

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$0

-$2,000,000

""|" ""f ""Ñ ""ñ ""f" "Ñ ""|o' ".$ 
,$" 

""1'"
Fiscal Year

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

(1) Asset lives were adjusted in Fiscal Year 2009 which resulted in a large depreciation adjustment
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North Marin Water District
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years, continued
Fiscal Year

Schedule 1

Restated
20'13

Restated
2014 2015 2016 2017 20't8 2019

$18,256,638
(13,140,845)

(2,793,360)

$20,772,429
(13,30e,833)

(3,128,302)

$18,081 ,308
(13,328,124)
(3183,725)

917,411,543
(13,704,737)

(3,286,353)

$18,703,476
(1s,099,687)

(3,416,411)

$22,094,094
(16,461,030)

(3,434,069)

$21,772,246
(16,371,492)

(3,451,155)

$2,322,433

(285,4e0)

$4,334,294

(518,474)

$1,569,459

(488,661)

$420,453

(328,734\

$187,378

(304,830)

$2,198,995

(338,477\

$1,949,599

(140,502)

$1,809,097

$5,394,813 $6,960,076 $4,230,766 $11,525,936 $6,125,559 $3,975,806

$2,036,943

3,357,870

$3,815,820

3,144,256

$1,080,798

9,714,111

$10,794,909

$91,719

4,139,047

($117,452)

1 1,643,388

$1,860,51e

4,265,041 ' 2,166,709

$65,e39,724
2,186,452
2,404,385

$71,538,168
2,156,020
3,696,449

$82,037,287
2,170,429
3,977,830

$85,542,035
2,122,980
5,007,769

$98,131,s74
2,140,681
3,6391717.

ç1ß2,392,652
2,183,812
2.246.981

$107,410,207
101,715

3,287,329

$70,430,561 $77,390,637 $88,'185,546 $92,672,784 _$r99€1_1s_

(3,214,0e6)

$103,609,349 $1 1 0,799,251

"ñ "dt "dt 
.ñ 

"s" "ñ ,"^t ,$ "ñ ""|"Fiscal Year

Net Position by Gomponent
$120,000,000

$100,000,000

$80,000,000

$60,000,000

$40,000,000

$20,000,000

lNêt invætm6nt ¡n €fital as6b

$0

tR6tddd EUnrddcted
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rflflffiFiscal
Year

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

North Marin Water District
Operating Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

1,913,170
2,',109,255
2,860,630
3,630,425
4,308,584
4,312,108
4,331,899
4,334,762
4,564,228
4,810,296

Schedule 2

Total Operating
Revenue

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

10,086,100
11,334,729
12,156,765
13,987,034
15,480,438
13,180,015
12,508,927
13,801,964
16,764,567
16,337,171

382,223
353,029
418,338
639,178
983,407
589,199
570,717
566,850
765,299
624,779, .

12,381,493
13,797,012
15,435,733
18,256,638

,429
,311
,543
,476
,094
,246

CC"ñ.ñC"ñC"$rd*C

Operating Revenue by Source
$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

Fiscal Year

$o
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North Marin Water District
Operating Expenses by Activity

Last Ten Fiscal Years

i::î' I f I I ffi T;iiìil"" ii:#å$'iHiii I I I ::11"::

Schedule 3

2,659,883
2,660,4'18

2,690,535
2,784,670
3,128,302
3,183,72s
3,286,353

3,416,41'l

3,434,0ô9

3,451,155

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

2017

2018

2019

3,497,565
3,856,027
5,1 50,1 83
5,342,988
5,834,854
4,624,655
4,565,833

4,579,359

5,569,766

5,492,324

298,583
299,462
304,075
351,816
341,597
352,007
281,255

351,342

426,356

458,594

633,259
648,743
708,570
7'16,780

742,706
75't,940
797,806

937,559

1,079,917

993,209

2,027,052
2,O12,125
1,747Jæ
'I,986,904

1,815,429
2,020,865
2,099,887

2,346,949

2,567,146

2,1 31,166

95,1 1ô

103,054
112,801

127,903
120,548
108,928
'134,193

151,205

163,957

127,513

2,450,765
2,400,638
2,373,'t32
2,340,330
2,270,784
2,727,168
2,871,290

3,223,237

3,387,559

3,301,629

535,401

564,940
580,534
s52,202
550,709
588,579
628,981

676,189

742,164

51 0,341

1,616,3'17

1,605,455
1,358,682
1,449,793
1,221,849
'I,673,156
'I,934,0't1

2,462,392

2,169,660

3,007,301

1,929,314
388,168
275,719
272,'t07
411,377
478,360
391,481

371,455

354,505

349,415

't5,743,255

14,539,030
'15,301,397

15,925,493
1 6,438,1 35
'16,509,383

'16,991,090

18,516,098

19,895,099

19,822,647

.,"1." d¡ d, 
"Ñ "s" "dþ ".tt "S "Ñ ""|'

Operating Expense by Act¡vity

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

Fiscal Year

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$5,000,000

$0

Source: North Marin Water D¡striclAudnèd F¡nâncial Stâtements

(1) FYog Excludes $7,691,033 depreclât¡on due to chânge ¡n asset lives
(2) R€duæd by overhàad ab€orption
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Fiscal
Year

North Marin Water District
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Last Ten FiscalYears

io4lnr(LqçFljgsl
I Abaótj$,ql¡¡s ,

(513,763)
(715,491)
(665,713)

(847,950)
(807,035)
(791,211)
(747,118)
(875,354)

Schedule 4

Net Non-Op
Rev/(Exp)

(255,218)
(414,563)
(531 ,318)
(285,4s0)

(2,592,115)
(488,661)

.'.(328,72s)

ï304
(338

,830)

,477)
; (1a0,502)

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

202,459
118,410
130,974
80,713

120,671
135,307
125,078
168,766
230,705
484,686

100,220
96,768

101 ,559
88,088
90,071

94,391

102,259
107,210
109,927
1 15,706

17,796

(86,1 80)

Notes:
(1) lncludes interest income and realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments.

(2) lncludes CaIPERS Side Fund Payoff ($2,073,701 ).

Source: North Mar¡n Water District Audited F¡nanc¡al Statements

(778,762)
(830,830)

(61,e30)
85,750

(e8,1 38)

324,47',!
(1,s72,027) e)

129,591

250,969
210,405
154,189.
rsa¡00.

"s" "da "ñ "ñ ""f" "d$ "ñ 
,S "ñ "$t

Non-Operating Revenue and Expense

$1,000,000

($1,000,000)

($2,000,000)

($3,000,000)

Fiscal Year

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$o
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North Marin Water District
Revenue Base

Last Ten Fiscal Years

North Marin Water District
Revenue Base

Last Ten FiscalYears

Fiscal
Year

Schedule 5

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

3,011
2,786
2,820
3,018
2,948
2,444
2,152
2,317
2,584
2,416

! !:

':
..:

'.: ':

4,000

3,500

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

0

",|" 
.i) 

"d? "S "$ "S ,ù" ^,S ,S "d

C

s
(!(,
C
.9

Fiscal Year

Revenue Base
Novato Potable Water Gonsumption

Note: See Schedule 2 "Revenue by Source" for information regarding

water sales.
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Schedule 6

Total

2't,435
21,4.64
21,456
21,512
2't,692
2't,746
2't,790
21,872
21,655
2'l,639

I

Source: North Mar¡n Water Distrlct - Flnance Dêþârtment

North Marin Water District
Customers by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Buqlnoåg
Flscal
Yeaf

201 0

20't1
20't2
2013
2014
2015
20'f 6
2017
2ô1A
2019

769 225
770 227
777 227
776 227
776 229
778 229

ii: ..#*
*W*

#:-*.f\w
Þ

3
3
2

17
44
44
44
47
53
s1

220
230
226
233
231
230
232
229
220
233

1,280
1,280
,246
,222
,222
,226
,239
,254
,217
,210

730
715
720
687
699
698
704
7Aô
699
701

*\#
,*#uqKJ

ffi\ffi
&*

æ"

18,208
18,239
18,298
18,350
1 8,4e1
18,541
18,56't
18,631
18,449
1 8,387

*f
*..-#
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North Marin Water District
Novato Water Revenue Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 7

I Bimonthly Service Charge
Meter Size 6/30/10 6/30/11 6/30/12 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/16 6130117 6/30/18 6/30/19

$ 30.00 $ 31.50 $ 33.00 $ 34.15
60.00 63.00 66.00 68.30
73.00 77.00 80.s0 83.30

114.00 120.00 125.50 129.90
227.00 238.00 248.50 257.20
364.00 382.00 393.00 4't3.00
761.00 799.00 835.00 864.00

1,'134.00 'l ,191.00 1,244.50 1,288.00

Residential Zone A
BaseRate(1) $ 3.29 $ 3.49 $ 3.73 $ 4.03 $ 4.29 $ 4.46 $ 4.77 $ s.oi $ s.24 $ 5.42
Tier 1: 6'16-1845 gpd 5.24 5.55 5.94 6.42 6.84 7.11 7.61 7.99 8.35 8.64
Tier2: >18459pd 9.11 9.66 10.34 11.17 1'1.90 12.38 13.25 13.91 14.54 15.05
Non-Residential Zone A
Base Rate(1) 3.62 3.84 4.11 4.44 4.73 4.g2 5.26 s.s2 s.77 s.g7

Seasonal Rate 3.90 413 4.42 4.77 5.08 5.28 5,65 5.93 6.20 6.42

Notes:
(1) Rates shown exclude additional elevation rate applicable to customers in upper elevation zones
N/A - Rate class was not established dufing the period

Source: Norlh Marin Water approved rates

5/8" & 3/4" $ 14.40 $
28.80
35.30
54.95

108.55
173.95
364.95
544.15

20.00 $
40.00
49.00
76.00

151 .00
242.00
507.00
756.00

25.00
50.00
61.00
95.00

189.00
303.00
634.00
945.00

$ 30.00
60.00
73.00

114.00
227.00
364.00
76'1 .00

I ,1 34.00

30.00
60.00
73.00

114.00
227.00
364.00
761 .00

1,134.00

$ 30.00
60.00
73.00

114.00
227.00
364.00
761.00

1 ,1 34.00

1"
1t2"
2"

4"
o

õ
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FY 2018/19

North Marin Water District
Ten Largest Water Customers by Revenue

Gurrent Fiscal Year and Ten Years Ago

% ofTotal Fy 2OO8/09

Schedule I

% of Total
1 City of Novato
2 StoneTree Golf
3 Novato Unified School District
4 BioMarinPharmaceutical
5 Fireman's Fund
6 Meadow Park Hamilton
7 lndian Valley Golf
8 Coast Guard Spanish Housing
9 Bay Vista Apartments
10 Marion Park Apartments

2.3%
1.8%
1.7%
1.3%
0.8%
o.7%
o.7%
0.6%
0.5%
0.5%

City Of Novato
Novato Unified School District
StoneTree Golf
Coast Guard Spanish Housing
Fireman's Fund
Meadow Park Hamilton
lndian Valley Golf
Shea Prop
Western Oaks Village Hoa
BioMarin Pharmaceutical

1.8%
1.8%
1.8%
1.6%
o.7%
0.7%
0.6%
0.5%
o.4%

0A%
10.8%

Total Water Service Revenue $21,772,246

Source: NMWD CORE billing system (t:\ac\excel\wtr use\top revenue 2007_2017.xlsxltop 10

10.3%

$12,526,294

IJ



North Marin Water District
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten FiscalYears
Total

Debt Capita

Schedule 9

F¡scal

Year

2010

2011

2012
2013

20't4

2015
2016

2017

2018
2019

Per As a Share of
Personal lncome (rl

$ 282,809

250,587

209,203

181,652

159,916

136,000

1 16,000

94,000

72,000

19,790,9s5

18,924,944

31,173,317

34,241,71.5

32,687,391

31,237,390

29,823,693

31,922,939

37,513,463

35,236, '198

20,073,764
't 9,175,531

31,382,s20

34,423,367

32,847,307

31,373,390

29,939,693

32,016,939

37,585,463

35,236, 1 98

329.08

314.35

514.47

s64.32

538.48

514.32

490.81

524.87

61 6.1 6

577.64

0.34o/o

0.30%

0.48o/o

0.540/o

0.490/o

0.460/o

0.43o/o

0.45o/o 
.

0.52o/o

0,53V¡ ' ,'

$

""-" "$ C "dt 
.rst 

"Ñ ""t" "$ ""t" ""t"

Outstanding Debt

$15,000,000

$1 0,000,000

$5,000,000

Fiscal Year

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

e
-o
o
o

$20,000,000

$o

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

(1) 
Per Capita/Personal lncome per Capita (See Schedule 1 1 )
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Fiscal Year Revenue(1)

North Marin Water District
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Last Ten FiscalYears
Net Available Debt Service

Revenue

Schedule l0

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2018

$ 14,635,090
14,506,888
16,789,744
19,761,431
21,364,965
19,308,316
18,191,410
20,209,860
24,053,350
24,023,753

Expense(')

(1 3,1 02,1 I 3)
(11,905,026)
(12,610,862)
(13,284,705)
(13,437,213)
(13,424,517)
(13,727,613)
(1 5,1 1 8,s35)
(16,470,065)
(16,395,767)

1,532,977
2,601,862
4,178,882
6,476,726
7,927,752
5,883,799
4,463,797
5,091,325
7,583,285
7,627,986

690,462
644,740

1,116,410
1,337,041
1 ,61 8,1 38
'1,686,523

1,721,904
1,769,239
I ,814,680
2,349,265

$ 1,384,506
1,385,156
1,770,894
2,115,803
2,448,968
2,534,474
2,528,938
2,527,020
2,561,798
3,224,619

1 .11

1,BB

2.36
3.06
3.23
2.32
1.77
2.01

2.96
Z.J I

Principal lnterest Total
Coverage

Ratio

694,044
740,416
654,484
778,762
830,830
847,951
807,034
757,781
747,118
875,354

Notes:
(1) Revenues includes Connection Fee Revenue, lnterest Revenue

Rent & Lease Revenue, other non-operating revenue
(2) Expense excludes depreciation and interest expense.

Source: North Mar¡n Water Distr¡ct Audited Financial Statements

tlac\deblsNc\debt coverage râlio i¡ ten y€aÍ hístoty.rls
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North Marin Water District
Demographics and Economic Statistics

LastTen Fiscal Years

Novato Service Area(1)

Schedule l1

County of Marin

Year
Unemployment

Rate

7 ,70/o

7.4o/o

6.5o/o

5.3o/o

4.1o/o

3.5o/o

3.5o/o

3.1o/o

2.60/o

2.5o/o

Personal
lncome

(thousands of
dollars)

Peßonal
lncome

per capita

$97,558
$1 03,189
$106,977
$105,273
$109,011
$111,911
$1 1 4,1 84
$116,982
$1 19,61 1

$109,314

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,000
,520

61

61

61

61

61

61

6'1

61

61

61

252,708
254,389
255,765
258,569
261,033
262,105
263,257
264,535
265,891
260,651

$24,653,687
$26,250,147
$27,360,972
$27,220,334
$28,455,468
$29,332,433
$30,059,737
$30,945,833
$31,803,488
$28,492,821

Populat¡on - Novato

Co
-gfoo
fL

66,000
64,000
62,000

60,000
58,000

56,000

54,000

"ñ "ñ "dt ,ñ .,-1" 
"Ñ "Ñ "$ "-i." "Ê"

Fiscal Year

Population - Marin County

co
G

o.oÈ

270,000

265,000

260,000

255,000

250,000

245,OOO

"Èt dt "Ñ "Ñ ,-f" "Ñ ""f" "$ "Ê" 
""1"Fiscal Year

Personal lncome per Cap¡ta - Marin Gounty

-gõo

$140,000
$1 20,000
$1 00,000

$80,000
$60,000
$40,000
$20,000

$o

""'" 
dt "Ñ "dt ,"1'" "at "Ñ "S ,"|t ,"f"

F¡scal Year

Sources: NMWD Annual Report population estimate, County of Marin Economic Forecast at

http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/cgi/dataanalysis/areaselection.asp?tableName=Labforce
https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/cgi/databrowsing/localAreaProfileQSResults.asp?selectedarea=Marin+County

&selectedindex=21 &menuChoice=localareapro&state=true&geogArea=0604000041 &countyName=&submitl =View+Local+Area+Prof¡le
Notes:
(l)D¡strictestimates(t:\ac\excel\annualreport\populationest.xls) 
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North Marin Water District
Demographics and Economics Statistics - Ten Largest Employers

Gurrent Year Schedule 12

FY 20r8/20r9 FY 2008/2009

Employer
Number of

Percent of
Total

Employment
Number of
Emplovees

Percent of
Total

EmplovmentEmployees Employer

r BioMarin Pharmaceutical
2 Novato UnifÌed School District
3 2K^,/isual Concepts Entertainment
a Bradley Electric
s Costco Wholesale
6 Novato Community Hospital
7 Cíty of Novato
a Ultragenix
9 Safeway Stores
ro Novato Healthcare Center

Source: City of Novato

I,005
803
660
342
316
304
290
275
250
233

3.31To
2.83%
1.98%
1.14o/o

1 .05o/o

1.04%
1 .010

0.97o/o

0.95%
0.s3%

Fireman's Fund
Novato Unified School District
BioMarin Pharmaceutical
lmageMovers Digital
Novato Community Hospital
Target Store
Visual Concepts
Costco Wholesale
Buck lnstitute
Safeway Stores

968
829
549
435
340
284
275
274
246
243

s.28%
4.44o/o

1.91Yo

0.91%
1A8%
1.32o/o

1.23%
1.15%
1.060/o

0.9s%
4,478 15.66% 4,443 18.28%
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North Marin Water District
Operating and Gapacity lndicators - Total Employees

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 13

Flscâl Yêar End

Department 2010 2011 2012 2013

I
10
5
14

r

20,14 20't5 2016 2017 2018 20',19

13 13 14 14 14 13

9 10 8 I I I
11 11 11 12 12 11

555555
13 13 13 15 15 15

-51- T- -si- -5T- :--s¿'- E_

l6
o

11

'14

16

9
I
5
13

15
o

10

14

54 52 53

District Employees by Department
60

55

50

a45o
9qoo
lo ssÈ

lgoo
õzso
\zoz

15

10

5

U

"st "dl 
.ñ 

"ñ "s" 
d, Ct "S "st "d'"Fiscal Year

Source: North Marin Water District Overheaded Payroll Worksheets for Pay Per¡ods Ending June 30

Note: Excludes temporary employ€es
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North Marin Water District
Other Operating and Capacity lndicators

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Other Operating and Gapacity lndicators

Schedule 14

Fiscal
Year

District Area
(Square Miles)

Miles of
Pipeline

Number of
Fire Hydrants

System Storage
Capacity (MG)

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
'100

'100

345
346
348
356
356
357
s58
364
364
364

2,773
2,785
2,785
2,797
2,805
2,808
2,814
2,824
2,842
2,854

38
38
38
39
39
39
39
39
40
40

Source: North Marin Water District - Engineering Department
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Report on lnternal Controls and
Compliance



lndependent Auditor's RepoÉ on lnternal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audit contained in Government Auditing Sfandards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the North Marin Water
District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprises the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated November 19, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Repofting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal
control over financial reporling (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests dlsclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
repofted under Government Auditing Standards.

80



Independent Auditor's Repoft on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, continued

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 19,2019
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Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

Dear Members of the Board:

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of North Marin Water District (District) as

of and for the years ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporling (internal

control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of pedorming their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was

not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. ln addition,
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of

controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected by such controls. Given

these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any defìciencies in internal control that we consider

to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identifìed.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors

and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other

than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a

matter of public record.
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Our observations, comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the
appropriate members of management, are summarized as follows:

Summary of Current Year Observations, Comments and Recommendations

Disclosure of Audit Adiustments and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the audit begins. ln many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in the
normal course of the audit process to present the District's financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of

the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and

reclassifications as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations
of having numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply
disclosure of the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors
with a better understanding of the scope of the audit.

Summary of Current Year Observations, Comments and Recommendations, continued

Managemenf's Response

We have reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided by the
auditor and have entered those entries into the District's accounting system to close-out the District's
year-end trial balance at June 30, 20'19.

Summary of Prior Year Observations, Comments and Recommendations

Employer Assrsfance Housing Loan Policy

The District is a local government agency which is in the business of providing water, sewer, and recycled
water utility services to its customers. Based on the demographics and market conditions living near the
District can make it difficult to attract, hire and retain qualified employees. As a result the District provides

the Employer Assistance Housing Loan ("EAHL") program.

During our prior year June 30, 2017 engagement, we inquired about the status of the EAHL receivables
outstanding balance. We were notified that a management employee (the "borrower") loan would be

coming due upon his retirement near June 30, 2018. During our June 30, 2018 engagement we

requeéted that the District confirm the total amount due which included principal of $250,000 and

calculated interest (using the District's portfolio rate of interest) due from the borrower at an amount of

$70,040. ln response to the District's confirmation, the borrower notified the District that only the principal

of 9250,000 would be repaid as the borrower used offsetting borrowing costs to reduce any interest under

the shared appreciation method per agreement.

Upon review of the EAHL secured promissory note between the District and borrower, the District had

expected to receive the principal of $250,000 plus 27.5% of appreciation accruing from the date of
purchase (August 13, 2004) until sale or refinancing the properly upon the borrower's termination as a
full-time employee of the District. According to the legal response provided by the District's attorney Bold,

Polisner, Maddow, Nelson & Judson, under California Civil Code Section 19'17.006, shared appreciation
loans allow the borrower to offset appreciation with down payment, payments of mortgage principal,

escrow fees, transfer taxes, recording fees, brokerage commissions and amounts paid for capital
improvements, plus interest at the legal rate of interest, before the shared appreciation. This effectively

brought any interest due to the District under the shared appreciation terms to zero.
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Summary of Prior Year Observations, Gomments and Recommendations, continued

Employer Assrsfance Housing Loan Policy, continued

Based on our review of the original EAHL secured promissory note, it is reasonable to determine that the
District had expected some form of interest due from the borrower as a result in providing the $250,000
loan fourteen years prior. Any arrangement to provide a benefit in the form of the loan should be an

equitable arrangement not only for the borrower but for the District and its rate payers. A loan
arrangement where interest can be eliminated; is in effect, an interest-free loan which the District should
avoid providing in any situation as it constitutes a gift of public funds/resources. Therefore, as your

external auditor we strongly recommend that the District consider revising its EAHL policy to define the
interest due option at an identified rate and remove the shared appreciation option. ln addition, we
recommend that the EAHL policy be revised to include qualifications for the program based on the types
of employee position and/or salary level who the District intends to assist'

Managemenf's Response
We are in agreement with the auditor's recommendation to have a policy that is equitable for both the
borrower and the District and are currently in the process of amending the Employer Assistance Housing
Program policy.

Drsclosure of Audit Adiustments and Reclassifications

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the audit begins. ln many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in the
normal course of the audit process to present the District's financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with

the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of

the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and

reclassifications as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations
of having numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply
disclosure of the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors

with a better understanding of the scope of the audit.

Managemenf's Response

We have reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided by the
auditor and have entered those entries into the District's accounting system to close-out the District's
year-end trial balance at June 30, 2018.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors

and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a
matter of public record.

We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during our examination. We would be

pleased to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience. Please do not hesitate to
contact us.

Fedak & Brown, LLP
Cypress, California
November 19,2019
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Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District) for the year
ended June 30,2019 and have issued ourrepoftthereon dated November 19,20'19. Generallyaccepted
auditing standards require that we provide the Governing Board and management with the following
information related to our audit of the District's basic financial statements.

Auditor's Responsibility under United States Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our Audit Engagement Letter dated March 26, 2019, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the basic financial statements prepared by

management with oversight of the Governing Board are fairly presented, in all material respects, in

conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve the Governing Board or management of its responsibilities of oversight in the
District's external financial reporting process or any other processes.

ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District's internal control over financial repoding.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cedain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Governmental Auditing Standards.

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing requirements previously

communicated to the board and management in our Communication to Those Charged with Governance
through our Audit Engagement Letter dated March 26,2019.



Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note I to the basic financial statements.

We noted transactions entered into by the District during fiscal year 2019 for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. Please see our Summary of Current Year Observations, Comments
and Recommendations. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial
statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Management's Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures

Accounting estimates play an integral part in the preparation of basic financial statements by
management and are based upon management's knowledge, experience and current judgment(s) about
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Ceftain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the position in the basic financial statements are:

Management's estimate of the fair value of cash and investments is based on information provided by

financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of
cash and investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken
as a whole.

Management's estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item's useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits plan; deferred outflows or resources,
total OPEB liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on an actuarial evaluation of this
liability that was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, actuarial methods and
assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the annual required contribution for the District to
determine that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the defined benefit pension plan: deferred outflows of resources, net
pension liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on an actuarial evaluation of these
amounts which was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, actuarial methods
and assumptions used by the actuary to calculate these amounts for the District to determine that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear. Certain basic financial
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.

The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial statements are:

The disclosure of fair value of cash and investments in Note 2 to the basic financial statements
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations.

The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 6 to the basic financial statements is based on historical
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.

The disclosure of the District's other post-employment benefits plan in Note 10 to the basic financial
statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs.

The disclosure of the District's defined benefit pension plan in Note '1'l to the basic financial
statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs.
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Gorrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Generally Accepted Auditing Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management as follows:

There were thirteen (13) total audit adjustments to the original trial balance presented to us. Four (4) of
the adjustments related to the fifth year implementation of GASB Pronouncement No. 68 which were
proposed by both the auditor and the District. Three (3) of the adjustments related to the second year

implementation of GASB Pronouncement No. 75 which were proposed by both the auditor and the
District. Two (2) of the audit adjusting entries were proposed by the auditor. Four (4) of the audit adjusting
entries were proposed by the District. The audit adjustments are noted in the schedule of audit adjusting
entries attached to the end of this report.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. lf a consultation involves the
application of an accounting principal to the District's basic financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or lssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District's auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a

condition to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit processes and testwork.

Disagreements with Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a

financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be

significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit of the District.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated November 19, 2019.
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Conclusion

We appreciate the cooperation extended us by Drew Mclntyre, General Manager, Julie Blue, Auditor-
Controller, Nancy Holton, Senior Accountant, Nancy \Mlliamson, Senior Accountant, and the rest of the
District staff in the performance of our audit testwork.

We will be pleased to respond to any question you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opporlunity to continue to be of service to the District.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified, pafties. This restriction
is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public record.

Fedak & Brown, LLP
Cypress, California
November 19, 2019
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Account

North Marin Water District
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entr¡es

June 30, 2019

Description Debit Credit

Adjust¡ng Journal Entries
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1

AJE - To reclassify debit balance in AP for Ferguson Waterworks credit memo (Cl\il124578) ¡ncluded ¡n

accounts payable aging from accounts payable to accounts receivable at June 30, 2019.

13720.01

22201.01
Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous
Accounts Payable - Vouchers

1 55,1 55.00
1 55,1 55.00

155,155.00 155,155.00

39,200.00
3,3'17.00

42,517.O0

39,200.00
3,317.00

42,517.00

15,954.00
907.94
124.43
732.OO

422.OO

73,640.74
6,585.1 6

6,585.1 6

1 5,954.00
907.94
124.43
732.OO

422.OO

73,640.74
98,366.27 98,366.27

1,O17,325.OO
o17 325.00

1,01 7,325.00

Total

Adiusting Journal Entries JE # 2
CPE - To reclassify the employee housing loan for Jeff Sjoblom to current and record ¡nterest rece¡vable for
loan payoff in FY19/20 at June 30, 2019. (Batch 9991/9992)

1372O.O1 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous
13749.01 lnterest Rece¡vable - Employee Housing Loan

13744.01 AccountsReceivable-DistrictHousingLoans
49200.01 lnterest Earned - General Funds

Total

Adlusting Jou¡nal Entries JE # 3
CPË - To reclass debit amounts recorded to accounts payable which were paid in June for July to prepa¡d

expense and reclass Alphagraph¡cs additional accrual fronr AP Vouchers to Accrued Expense at June 30,

2019. (Batch 9993)

'14400.01 Prepa¡d Expense
144oo.o1 PrepaÌd Expense
1440o.o1 Prepaid Expense
14400.01 Prepa¡d Expense
144oo.o1 Prepa¡d Expense
144oo.o1 Prepaid Expense
222o1.o1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
222oo.o1 Accounts Payable - Accrued
222o1.o1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
22201.o1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
22201.01 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
222O1.O1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
22201.O1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers
222O1.O1 Accounts Payable - Vouchers

Total

Ad¡usting Journal Entries JE # 4
GASB 68 Entry #1 - To reclassify 2018 contributions to NPL at June 30, 2019

215O2.o1 Net Pension Liability
16100.01 Deferred Outflows - Pension

Total 7

5



Account

North Marin Water Þ¡strict
Schedule of Audit Adiusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2019

Description Debit Gredit
Ad¡usting Journal Entries JE # 5
cASB 68 Entry #2 - To reclassify 2019 contributions to Deferred Outflows of Resources at June 30, 2019.

I 3509.02
1 3509.05
1 3509.08
1 61 00.01
1 3509.01
51 400.01
51 400.02
52309.01
52309.02
52700.01
52700.O2
52700.05
53800.01
53800.02
53800.05
54598.01
54598.02
54598.05
54699.08
54799.08
54899.08
55999.01
55999.02
57000.01
581 00.01

581 00.02

Unrestr¡cted Cash:West Marin: G l\,il

Unrestricted Cash
Un[estricted Cash
Deferred Outflows - Pension
Unrestricted Cash
GASB68 Adjustment - Source
GASB68 Adjustment - Source
GASB68 Adjusiment - Pumping

cASB68 Adjustment - Pumpìng

GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
GASB68 Adjustment - Operations
GASB68 Adjustment - Operat¡ons
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB68 Adjustment - ï&D
GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
GASB68 Adjustment - Sewage Collection
GASB68 Adjustment - Sewage Treatment
cAS868 Adjustment - Disposal-OM Sewer-Admin
GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
cASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Account¡ng

GASB68 Adjustment - G&A
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conservation
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conservation

49,912.00
7 ,O47.OO

1 1,900.00
1 ,1 55,358.00

68,859.00
7,278.OO

1 ,04 0.00
1 0,398.00

3, I 1 9.00
95,548.00

8,088.00
3,235.00

211 ,662.00
1 5,597.00

1,1 55.00
394,093.00

1 9,64 1 .00
2,657.00
7,394.00
2,426.O0
2,080.00

58,1 1 5.00
'l,61 8.00

276,708.O0
32,697.00

809.00

Total 1,224,217.00 1,224,217.00
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North Marin Water District
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entries

Junê 30, 2019

Account DescriPtion Debit Credit
AOJUSITng 

"OGASB 68 Entry #3 - To record changes in pension liability and related deferred outflows and ¡nflows during

FY17l18 at June 30. 2019.
13509.01 Unrestrìcted Cash 83,317.00

16100.01 Deferred Outflows - Pension 624,888.00

215o2.o1 Net Pension L¡abìlity 0.01

23100 01 Deferred Inflows - Pension 267'071'00
231 00.01 Deferred lnflows - Pension 21 0,531 .00

51400.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Source 8,807.00

51400.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Source 1,258.00

52309.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping 12,581.00

52309.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping 3,774.00

527oo.o1 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations 1 15,609.00

527OO.O2 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations 9,786.00

52700.05 GASB68 Adjustment - Operations 3,914.00

53800.01 GASB68 Adjustment - Waler Treatmenl 256,101.00

53800.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment 18,872 00

53800.05 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment 1,398.00

54598.01 GASBoE Adjustment - T&D 476,835.00

54598.02 GASB68 Adjustment - T&D 23,765.00

54598.05 GASB68 Ad.justment - T&D 3,215.00

54699.08 GASB68 Adjustment - Sewage Collect¡on 8,947.00

54799.08 GASB68 Adjustment - Sewage Treatment 2,936.00

54899.08 GASB68 Adjustment - Disposal-OMSewer-Adt¡in 2,516-00

55999.0'l GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting 70,316 00

55999.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting 1,957 00

57ooo.o1 GASB68 Adjustment - G&A 0.62

57OOO.O1 GASB68 Adjustment - G&A 334,805.00

58100.01 GASBoE Adjustment - Water Conservation 39,56'1.00

58100.02 GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conservation 979.00

13509.02 Unrestr¡cted Cash:West lvlarin:GM 60,391.00
'13509.05 Unrestricted Cash 8,527.00

13509.08 Unrestricted Cash 14,399.00

16100.0'l Deferred Outflows - Pension 0.63

16100.01 Deferred outflows - Pension 217,642.00

16100.01 Deferred Outflows - Pension 210,531 00

16100.01 Deferred ouiflows- Pens¡on 267'071'00
16100.01 Deferred Outflows- Pens¡on 510,259.00

215o2.o1 Net Pension Liability 802,761.00

23100.01 Deferred lnflows- Pension 117,157.00

231oo.o'1 Deferred lnflows - Pensìon 375,001.00

Total 2,583,739.63 2,583,739.63
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North Marin Water D¡strict
Schedule of Aud¡t Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2019

Account Description Debit Gredit

GASB 68 Entry #4 - To record changes in pension liability dur¡ng FY17118 at June 30, 2018

Unrestricted Cash
Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred lnflows - Pension
GASB68 Adjustment - Source
GASB68 Adjustment - Source
GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping

GASB68 Adjustment - Pumping

cASB68 Adjustment - Operations
cASB68 Adjustment - Operations
cASB68 Adjustment - Operations
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment

GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB68 Adjustment - T&D
GAS868 Adjustment - T&D
cASB68 Adjustment - T&D
GA5868 Adjustment - Sewage Collection
GASB68 Adjustment - Sewage TTeatment

cASB68 Adjustment - Disposal-OMSewer-Admin
GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Account¡ng

GASB68 Adjustment - Consumer Account¡ng

GASB68 Adjustment - G&A
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conservation
GASB68 Adjustment - Water Conservation
Unrestricted Cash:West l\ilar¡n:GIVI

Unrestr¡cted Cash
lJnrestricted Cash

Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred lnflows - Pension

Total 800,585.00

'13509.01

161 00.01

23 1 00.0 1

51 400.01
51 400.02
52309.01
52309.02
52700.01
52700.O2

52700.05
53800.01
53800.02
53800.05
54598.01
54598.02
54598.05
54699.08
54799.08
54899.08
55999.01
55999.02
57000.01
581 00.01
581 00.02
1 3509.02
1 3509.05
1 3509.08
1 61 00.0 1

1 61 00.01

231 00.01

1 6,546.00
1 29,059.00
377,38'1.00

1,749.OO
250.00

2,498.00
750.00

22,957.OO

1,943.00
777.OO

50,856.00
3,748.00

278.00
94,689.00

4,719.OO
638.00

1,777.OO
583.00
500.00

'13,963.00

389.00
66,485.00

7,856.00
1 94.00

Ad¡usting Journal Entries JE # I
AJE - To remove asset addition below $5,000 capitalizatlon threshold per pol¡cy at June 30, 2019.

54001.01 Supervis¡on&Engineering
11180.01 Transmiss¡onL¡nes

Total

438.96

1 1,993.00
1,693.00
2,860,00

5 1 2,043.00
96,442.00

I 75,554.00
800,585.00

438.96
438.96438.96
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North Marin Water District
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2019

Account Description Debit Gredit

Ad¡usting Journal Entries JE # 9
GASB 75 Entry #1 - To reclassify 2019 contr¡butions to Deferred Outflows of Resources at June 30, 20'19.

lJnrestr¡cted Cash: West Marin: GM
Unrestr¡cted Cash
Unrestricted Cash
OPEB L¡abil¡ty

Unrestricted Cash
GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply
GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply
GAS875 Adjustment - Pumping

GASB75 Adjustment - Pumping
GASB75 Adjustment - Operat¡ons
GASB75 Adjustment - Operations
GAS875 Adjustment - Operations
GASB75 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GAS875 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB75 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB7s Adjustment - T&D
GASB75 Adjustment - T&D
GAS875 Adjustment -T&D

GAS875 Adjustment - Sewage Collection
GASB75 Adjustment - Sewage Treatment
Operat¡ng Labor
GAS875 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
GAS875 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
GASB75 Adjustment - G&A
GASB75 Adjustment - Water Conservation
GAS875 Adjustment - Water Conservation

Total

Adjusting Journal Ent¡ies JE # l0
GASB 75 Entry #2 - To record changes in OPEB liability dur¡ng FY18/19 in the current year

13509.01 Unrestricted Cash
16200.01 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
16200.01 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
232oo.o1 DeferredlnflowslOPEB
51401.01 GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply

51401.o2 GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply
52310.01 GASBTS Adjustment - Pumping

52310.02 GASBTS Adjustment - Pumping

52701.O1 GASB7s Adjustment - Operaiions
52701.o2 GASB7s Adjustment - Operat¡ons

52701.o5 GASB7s Adjustment - Operations
53801.01 GASB7s Adjustment - Water Treatment

53801.02 GASB75 Adjustment - Water Treatment

53801.05 GASB7s Adjustment - Water Treatment
54596,01 GASB7s Adjustment - T&D

54596.02 GASB7S Adjustment - T&D
54596.05 GASB7s Adjustment -T&D
54698.08 GASB7s Adjustmeni - Sewage Collection

54798.08 GASB7s Adjustment - Sewage Treatment

54898.08 GASB7s Adjustment - Sewage Disposal

55998.01 GASB75 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting

55998.02 GASB7s Adjustment - Consumer Accounting

57001.01 GASB7s Adjustment - G&A
581 01 .01 GASB75 Adjustment - Water Conservat¡on

58101.02 GASB7s Adjustment - Water Conservation

13509.02 UnrestrictedCash:WestMarin:GM
13509.05 Unrestr¡cted Cash
13509.08 Unrestricted Cash
16200.01 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
215o3.o1 OPEB Liability

Total

1 3509.02
1 3509.05
1 3509.08
21 503.01
1 3509.01
51401.01
51401.O2

5231 0.01

52310.O2

52701.O1
52701.O2
52701.O5
53801.01
53801.02
53801.05
54596.01
54596.02
54596.05
54698.08
54798.08
54802.08
55998.01
55998.02
57001.01
5810'1 .01

581 01.02

10,814.00
1 ,527.OO
2,579.OO

250,340.00
1 4,920.00

1 ,577.oo
225.O0

2,253.OO
676.00

20,703.00
1,752,OO

701.00
45,862.00

3,380.00
250.00

85,391.00
4,256.OO

576.00
'1,602.00

526.00
451.00

1 2,592.00
350.00

59,957,00
7,085.00

175.OO

265,260.00 265,260.00

17,174.OO
1 95,564.00
1 63,205.00
1 58,61 1 .00

1,815.00
259.00

2,594.00
778.OO

23,832.00
2,017.OO

807.00
52,793.00

3,890.00
288.00

98,295.00
4,899.00

663.00
1,844.00

605.00
5'19.00

14,495.00
403.00

69,01 7.00
8,1 55.00

202.OO

12,448.00
1,758.00
2,968.00

158,61 1 .00
646,939.00
822,724.00

I

822,724.OO



Account

North Marin Water District
Schedule of Audit Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2019

Description Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 11

GASB 75 Entry #3 - To record changes in the deferred outflows and deferred inflows (amortizat¡on) at June

30,2019.

Unrestr¡cted Cash
Deferred Outflows - OPEB
GASB75 Adjustment - Source of Supply
GASB7s Adjustment - Source of Supply
GAS875 Adjustment - Pump¡ng

GASB7s Adjustment - Pumping

GASB75 Adjustment - Operations
GAS875 Adjustment - Operations
GAS875 Adjustment - Operations
GAS875 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB7s Adjustment - Water Treatment
GAS875 Adjustment - Water Treatment
GASB7S Adjustment - T&D
GASB7s Adjustment - T&D
GAS875 Adjustment -T&D
cAS875 Adjustment - Sewage Collection

GASB7s Adjustment - Sewage Treatment
GASB75 Adjustment - Sewage Disposal
GAS875 Adjustment - Consumer Account¡ng

GAS875 Adjustment - Consumer Accounting
GASB75 Adjustment - G&A
GAS875 Adjustment - Water Conservation
GAS875 Adjustment - Water Conservation
Unrestricted Cash:West Marin:GM

Unrestr¡cted Cash
Unrestricted Cash
Deferred Ouiflows - OPEB

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 12

CPE - District Cash Allocat¡on after GASB 68 - JE-022571 (Batch 10009)

12627.01 Designated Cash - Operating Reserve

13509.01 Unrestr¡cted Cash

Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 13

CPE - District Cash Allocation after GASB 75 - JE-0226o8 (Batch 10046).

12627.o1 Designated Cash - Operat¡ng Reserve

13509.01 Unrestricted Cash

Total

Total AdJusting Journal Entries

Total All Journal Entries

1 3509.01
I 6200.01
51401 .O1

51401.O2
5231 0.01

52310.O2
52701.01
52701.O2

52701.O5

53801.01
53801.02
53801.05
54596.01
54596.02
54596.05
54698.08
54798.08
54898.08
55998.01
55998.02
57001.01
581 01 .01

581 01.02
1 3509.02
'1 3509.05
1 3509.08
1 6200.01

1,655.00
2,469.00

174.00
25.00

250.00
75.00

2,295.00
1 94.00
78.00

5,085.00
375.00
28.00

9,467.00
472.00

64.00
1 78.00

58.00
50.00

1,396.00
39.00

6,647.00
785.00

'l 9.00
1 ,1 99.00

1 70.00
286.00

30,223.00

31,878.00 31,878.00

31,004.00
31 004.00

31,004.00 31,004.00

3,909.00

3"r09^00

?,o??,118.86

3,909.00
3,909.00

7,077,1 18.86

7,O77,118.A6 7,077,1ß.86_

AJE Aud¡t Adiustinq Journal Entry
CPE Dìstr¡ct Aud¡t Journal

GASB 68 Entry GASB 68 lmÞlementation Journal Entry

GASB 75 Entry GASB 75 lmÞlementation Journal Entry
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To: Board of Directorl p, November 15' 2019

From: Terrie Kehoe, District SecretaryY/
Subj: Records Management Scanning Contract with BMI lmaging Systems, lnc. (BMl)

- 
tlgm\adminsecty\rscordsmânagement.scanning\bod msmo11.15.19final.docx

Item #11

MEMORANDUM

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Approve the Records Management Scanning Contract of
Engineering Files with BMI lmaging Systems, lnc'

FINANCIAL ¡MPACT: $52,835 plus $5,283 contingency reserve
(lncluded in FY 19 Budget)

We currently have money in the budget ($70,000) for Records Management. I reached

out to three companies, two of which were referred and one that had contacted us in the past' I

met with both Ray Morgan Company and BMI (referred to us by MMWD). I never heard back

from the third vendor (Pacific Doc) which was referred to us by NFPD,

The quotes came in as follows:

The 2000 series developer jobs and the meter books were chosen as the most important

documents in the warehouse and should be scanned first since these are the records we use to

identify historical water use entitlement. The scanning project will be done in phases, the first

being the meter books. When scanning the developer job files, this will also be done in phases.

We will have a list of alljobs that go out for scanning and what box they are filed in. This is in

case we need to have them send back a file or email us the scanned document.

Part of this project includes staff time to pull the 2000 series job files for scanning,

identify the box number and put the files back in the cabinets when they return. We have

approximately 2,4}Ojobs and estimate about 40 hours of statf labor. lt is noteworthy to say that

this is just an estimate especially since the early job files were quite small and the recent files

are fairly large.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Board authorize the General Manager to execute a contract with BMI for records

management scanning in the amount of $52,835 with a contingency of $5,985 (10o/o).

Vendor Meter Books Job Files Total cost

BMI $6,275.00 $46,560.00 $52,835.00
Rav Moroan $24,875.00 $34.983.00 $59.858.00





To: Board of Directors

From: Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer

MEMORANDUM

t\/

Item #12

November 15,2019

Subject: PRE Tank 4A - Reject Bid
RtFoldors by Job NoE000 jobs\6263.20 PRE Tank 4A\BOD Memos\6263.20 PRE Tãnk 4A Rsject B¡d BOD Msmo I 1-15-1g_rêv1.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Reject Piazza Construction Bid for $1,087,810

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Estimated $1,000 for in-house labor and advertising

Backoround

The Board authorized advertisement for bids on the above referenced project on

October 1,2019. The advertisement date for this project was October 11,2019 with a bid

opening on November 5, 2019. The District advertised the project in the Marin lJ and posted the

project on www.ebidboard.com. Two (2) contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting on

October 22, 2019. The bid period was for approximately four (4) weeks; there was one

addendum. One bid was received (see below).

CONTRACTOR BID
1 Piazza Construction. Penngrove, CA $1 ,087,810

The Engineer's Estimate was $383,000. The sole bid by Piazza Construction was

$1,087,810 or $704,81 0 (284o/o) above the engineer's estimate.

Options

There are two options before the Board:

Option 1 - Award the contract to Piazza Construction or

Option 2 - Reject Piazza Construction's bid

Staff is recommending that the bid be rejected (Option 2).

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board reject Piazza Construction's Bid for $1 ,087,810.





MEMORANDUM

Item #13

November 15,2019To:

From:

Board of Directors

Terrie Kehoe, District S""rarry{
Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator Lv

Subject: Public Communications Plan - Photo Shoot for Website Update
v:Vnemos to board\publlc commlnications plan photo shoot doc

Recommended Action: lnformation Only
Financiallmpact: None

The purpose of this memo is to advise the Board of an upcoming photo shoot session on

December g,2019 to obtain portraits of Directors. Future action and lifestyle photographs will also

be taken at the District to humanize the organization with more people-based imagery and provide

more visual content for the new website. This photography work is being conducted as part of a

contract with Kiosk to implement the Communications Strategy and Plan for the FY 201912020

approved at the October 15th meeting.

The tentative photo session date has been scheduled for December 9, 2019 between 12:3Q

and 3:30 p.m. at the Downtown Novato Recreation Center (950 7th Street), lndividualtimes will be

scheduled with each Board member during the time allotment. A recommended dress code will be

communicated to the Board at the time of scheduling the photo time slot.





Item #14

To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Tony Arendell, Construction/Maintenance Superintendent

lncrease in Facility Location Underground Service Alerts (USA)
K:\CONST SUP\2020\8OD Memo re USAs 2019.docx

,ft November 13,2019

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation Only

Unknown

Over the past several years the time that the District has spent on facility location

markings related to the statewide Underground Service Alert (USA) program has increased

significantly (see Attachment). This is due in part to the safety campaign that PG&E has

undertaken resulting in a much greater number of requests for facility location coupled with

increased location requests from homeowners and property managers. NMWD must have a

positive response to all requests by marking the ground (NO/NMWD) to indicate whether or not

we have facilities in the area marked for excavation. With all the USA requests of late I expect

this trend will continue to go up.
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Item #15

To:

From

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent
Julie Blue, Auditor Controller)16

Subject: Enterprise Fleet Management Program for Fleet Vehicles - Six Month Update
x:\maint sup\202O\bod\efm Yr 2.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Expected annual savings of $12,000

Cost Analvsis

ln May the Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a fleet agreement with

Enterprise Fleet Management for the lease of the first five of a planned 27 vehicle fleet

replacement plan. The first five vehicles were acquired near the end of the 2018/19 fiscal year at

an annual cost $28,667, about 14o/o below what was forecast during our evaluation process.

These first five vehicles included two Nissan Rouges, a Nissan Frontier, a Ford F150 4x2 and a

Ford F150 4x4. Each vehicle has met our requested requirements and is a better value than

expected. ln addition to the vehicle cost being less than planned as stated above, the aftermarket

equipment (tool racks, tool boxes and emergency lights) have been included in the annual cost

which were not part of the original estimated costs.

ln the second half of the program's first year, it is planned to lease a Chevrolet Colorado

4x2, Ford F150 4x2, Ford 4x4, and two Ford F250 4x4's. The Enterprise staff used their most

recent vehicle pricing ($62,259) and compared it to the March 2019 forecast evaluation ($63,719)

which creates an additional savings of $1,460 from the original estimate. We have found that the

EFM vehicles are comparable in price to the state bid pricing.

Maintenance

As we transition to a leased fleet, it will continue to be cost-effective to maintain the fleet

in-house for the next two years. We plan to evaluate the EFM maintenance program after the

third year when the fourth round of vehicles are leased. The EFM maintenance program would

have a local shop provide service for oil changes, brakes (one per life, and tire

repair/replacement. Dealerships would cover any warranty items for either an EFM or NMWD

maintenance plan.

Date: November 15, 2019

W

1



Summarv

The program will continue to transition the NMWD fleet of 1-ton and smaller vehicles, over

the next four years, with five vehicles being changed out each of the first three years and six

vehicles changed out the fourth and fifth years of the program for a total of 27 vehicles. When we

compared the past six years of the Districts total cost of ownership ($t69,821) to the fleet

managed in the EFM program ($143,968) we showed that we could save as much as $12,000

per year in overall fleet operations and have seen in the first six months that we are well on track

to accomplish this goal. lf for any reason we want to discontinue the program we can stop leasing

additional vehicles and let the existing leases run there five year course. The next update to the

Board will be after the close of FY 19120.

2





Item #16

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

Stafford Lake Spill/Rainfall History
XIMAINT SUPuo20\BOD\STP Spill - Rain H¡story'doc

November 15, 2018To:

From:

Subject:
tr'

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation

None

Over the past 20 years, Stafford Lake has reached full capacity and has spilled over in

15 of the 20 years presented. Stafford Lake did not reach full capacity in 2018 with a

maximum elevation on April 23 at 1g1.4',2014 with a maximum elevation on April 25 at

1BB.B', 2012with a maximum elevation on April 25 at189.4', in 2009 with a maximum

elevation on March 30 at 195.3'and again in 2001 with a maximum elevation on March 22nd

at 1g2.5' . Our current water year lake elevation reached a maximum elevation of 199'5' with

nearly one and a half full lake volumes having spilled over between February 7 and April

26,2019.

To help illustrate the annual Stafford Lake capacity fluctuations, I have attached two

charts. First is the Stafford Lake Spill History chart (Attachment 1) that includes two

columns for rainfall data and a line for minimum pool storage with the date when the lake

reached full capacity.

. The Annual Rainfall (indicated by the Red column) is based on a Water Year (from the

beginning of October of the previous year indicated, through the end of September of

the year indicated). This is measured in inches of rain along the left side of the chart'

. The Rainfall Oct - Jan (indicated by the Blue column) is a water year to date from the

beginning of October of the previous year through the end of January of the year

indicated. This is measured in inches of rain along the left side of the chart,

. The Minimum Pool (indicated by the green line) is the lowest level of Stafford Lake

measured in the fall of the previous year. This is measured in acre-feet along the right

side of the chart (the number must be multiplied by 100).

o The dates above the annual rainfall (red) column data indicate the day the lake

reached full capacity and spilled during that water year or did not spill (DNS).

A chart of historical Water Year Rainfall data for the Novato area is provided in

Attachment 2. This chart has the annual rainfall data in green, a 6 year rolling average



Stafford Lake SpilliRainfall H istory
November 15,2019
Page2

shown in blue and a ten year rolling average in red. There is also an all year average line

atZ7,' of rainwithastandarddeviation of 9.7 incheswhichindicatesahighvariabilityinthe

annual rainfall data.
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Item #17

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors Date: November 15, 2019

From: Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer 811/

Subject: FY19-20 Quarterly Progress Report - Engineering Department
RICHIEF ENG\VOGLER\BUDGETS\FY 19-20\Eng Dspt Perf Recâp-1st Qtr 19-20 doc

The purpose of this memo is to provide a first quarter status report to the Board on the

District's performance in completing budgeted FY19-20 Capital lmprovements Projects (ClP)with a

primary emphasis on planned (i.e., baseline) versus actual performance. The following information

supplements the progress report summary provided to the Board each month.

SUMMARY

The table above summarizes the detailed tabulation of ClPs for both Novato and West Marin

(including Oceana Marin) systems provided in Attachment A. ln summary, CIP expenditures for

Novato Water are anticipated to be 12o/o less, Novato Recycled Water will remain approximately

unchanged, and West Marin is forecasted to be approximately 23% higher compared to the

approved FY19-20 budget. The primary drivers contributing to the changes are the Novato

Officellard Building Renovation (reduction of $400,000) and the West Marin Lagunitas Creek Slope

Stabilization (addition of $450,000). With respect to planned versus actual completion for the first

quarter, the Novato Water, Novato Recycled Water and West Marin service areas (including

Oceana Marin) are trending at levels commensurate with planned progress.

Performance Status for lmprovement Proiects

As shown on the following table (Page 3), a total of 34 projects (versus 31 in FY18-19) were

originally budgeted in FY19-20 for the Novato, West Marin and Oceana Marin service areas. Four

new projects have been added, four have been carried over, and none have been deleted/deferred,

resulting in a newtotal of 42 projects. Of the 34 Capital lmprovement Projects budgeted, 22 (versus

22inFY18-19) are underthe lead responsibility of the Engineering Departmentforcompletion (15 in

Novato, 6 in West Marin and 0 in Oceana Marin). The remaining 12 (versus 9 in FY18-19) CIP

projects are under the responsibility of the other departments (i.e., I - Operations, 1 - Maintenance

and 3 - Admin) (Refer to the tabulation in Attachment A for a complete line item listing).

Service Areas Project Costs ($) % Complete Earned Value ($)

Budoet ($) Forecast ($) Planned Actual Planned Actual

Novato Water 4,308,000 3,786,000 22 17 1,204,500 389.050

Novato Recycled 120,000 122,500 25 25 5,000 5,625

West Marin 1,285,000 1,579,700 21 32 321,250 178.700

TOTAL 5.713.000 5,488,200 23 25 1,530,750 573,375



FY19-20 CIP 1't Qtr Status Report Memo
November 15,2019
Page 2 of 3

Novato Service Area Proiect Costs Variances

As shown in AttachmentA, all of the FY19-20 Novato ClPs are currently projected to be

completed at or below original budget.

Two new projects have been added: Quick Connects - Generator, and Recycled Water

Retrofits - Taco Bell. Three projects have been carried over: PB Replacements - Lanham Village;

Novato Fair Shopping Center Backflow; and AMI Retrofit. No projects have been deleted or

deferred.

West Marin Service Area (includino Oceana Marin) Proiect Costs Variances

As shown in Attachment A, all but one of the FY19-20 West Marin ClPs expenditures are

currently projected to be within the original budget. The West Marin Brominated TTHM Reduction

project is estimated to cost $400,000 (vs. $300,000 originally budgeted). Two projects have been

added: Olema Pump Station Pump Replacement and Lagunitas Creek Slope Stabitization. One

project has been carried over: PB Replacements - Drakes View Dr. No projects have been deleted

or deferred.

Enqineerinq Department Labor Hours

The Engineering Deparlment provides a multitude of functions supporting overalloperation,

maintenance and expansion of water facilities. The majorwork classifications are: (1) General

Engineering, (2) Developer Projects and (3) District (i.e., CIP) Projects. Out of the approximately

14,900 engineering labor hours available annually (less Conservation), the FY19-20 labor budget for

Developer Projects and District Projects is 1,540 (10% of total) and 3,293 (22% ot total),

respectively. A chart of actual hours expended versus budgeted hours for both Developer and

District projects during FY19-20 is provided in Attachment B. At the end of the first quarter, actual

engineering labor hours expended for Developer work was 26o/o (400 hours) versus 25% (385

hours) budgeted. With respectto District Projects,428 engineering laborhours (13% of budget)

have been expended on Capital lmprovement Projects which is below the first quarter estimate

(25%).



FY19-20 CIP 1'' Qtr Status Report Memo
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FY 19-20

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS

PROJECTS BUDGETED
Original Budget
Added
FY 1B-19 Carryover
Deferred/Dropped
Adiusted Budqet

NOVATO
SERVICE AREA

25
2
3
0

WEST MARIN/
OCEANA MARIN

I
2
1

0

TOTAL
34
4
4
0

30 12 42

FY18-19 CARRYOVER
Novato

PB Replacements - Lanham Village
Novato Fair Shopping Center Backflow
AMI Retrofit

West Marin
PB Replacement - Drakes View Dr

DEFERRED/DROPPED
Novato

West Marin

PROJECTS ADDED
Novato

Quick Connects - Generator
Recycled Water Retrofits * Taco Bell

West Marin
Olema Pump Station Pump Replacement
Lagunitas Creek Slope Stabilization

Date Brought to Board

First Quarter Report
First Quarter Report
First Quarter Report

First Quarter Report

First Quarter Report
First Quarter Report

First Quarter Report
First Quarter Report
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Item #18

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors 
O t ^From: Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator K\"

Subject: FY19-20 Quarterly Progress Reporl - Water Conservation
(July-SePtember)
V:\Memos to Board\euarlerly ReIorts\Water Conservation FY 2018-2019 QTRl Summary Reporl doc

RECOMMENDEDAGTION: lnformation

November 15,2019

FINANCIAL IMPACT None

Water Conse on

This memo provides an update on water conservation and public outreach activities imple-

mented during the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2}1gl2o2} (FY 20). Water Conservation parlicipation

numbers for the first quarler of the current and previous two fiscal years are summarized in Table I

below.

Table 1: Water Conservation Program Participation (July through September: FY 2018 '20201

Water conservation parlicipation has continued a downward trend in participation this fis-

cal year in the post drought period (consistent with other utilities in northern California), although

the drop in participation has appeared to level out in most programs. Cash for Grass, toilet and

washer rebate parlicipation levels remain extraordinarily low along (well below historical partici-

pation levels). The Water Smart Home Survey (WSHS) Program, which has remained fairly

consistent even during the drought recovery period, has also dipped this quarter, mainly due to a

staffing transition at Sonoma County Water Agency and the streamlining of the bill adjustment

WSHS's during that period. Staff expects participation in WSHS and other programs to increase

during the remaining three quaders of the fiscal year due to increased visibility from the District's

new website and enhanced public communications actions'

Program FY I8 FY 19 FY 20

Water Smart Home SurveYs (WSHS) 86 103 24

Water Smart Commercial SurveYs 2 0 2

High Efficiency Toilet Rebates (Residential) 30 32 34

High Efficiency Toilet Rebates (Commercial ) 0 3 1

Retrofit on Resale (Dwellings Certified) 78 52 58

High Efficiency Washing Machine Rebates 4 4 1

Cash for Grass Rebates 5 6 5

Water Smart LandscaPe Rebates 1 0 6

Weather Based lrrigation Controller Rebates 6 1 3

New Development Sign-offs (Residentia r) B 1 7

New Development Sign-offs (Commercial) 6 6 5
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Public Outreach and Conservation Marketinq

ln the first quarter, the District initiated the process of developing a new website and is in the

beginning stages of implementing the communication actions as directed in the approved Commu-

nications Strategy and plan for FY 2O1gl2O2O. To kick-off these actions, the Fall 2019 issue of the

Novato ,,Water Line" (which was distributed in early November 2019) was completely redesigned by

Kiosk and was the first action in the Communications Plan to be implemented. Near future actions

will include (among other action items to be completed by the end of the fiscal year), redevelopment

of the District,'Brand", new photography of District staff and the Board, refreshment and redesign of

District communications materials, and increased frequency and quality of social media posts. The

District currenfly maintains a Facebook, Nextdoor and lnstagram page with regular updates on water

use efficiency, construction projects and other appropriate District outreach material. During the re-

cent power shutoff event, the District was able to communicate our efforls to provide uninterrupted

water service to our customers through our social media platforms and received an excellent and

favorable response from our customer base. Staff is also using the WaterSmartAMl dashboard and

customer portalas a public outreach toolto help inform customers on water use patterns and leaks.

Budset and Staffinq

Table 2 summarizes the first quarter expenditures between the three fiscal years for (July-

September). FY2O expenditures are consistent with FY19 and higher than FY18, although they con-

tinue to be below historical levels due to reduced program participation (mainly Cash for Grass)'

Expenditures are expected to increase over the next three quarters with the new website develop-

ment project and implementation of the communications plan actions.

Table 2: Water Gonservation and Outreach Expenditures (July through September: FY 2018 -20201

Water Conservation continues to be staffed by one fulltime Water Conservation Coordina-

tor. The District also has a partnership with Sonoma County Water Agency through the Sonoma-

Marin Saving Water Partnership to implement and staff some of the District Water Conservation

Programs including the WSHS program (estimated at 250 hours per quarter)'

FY 18 FY 19 FY 20

Total FY Budget $440,000 $380,000 $390,000

July-September Expenditures $60,480 $76,293 $76,310





D/SBURSEME'VTS - DATED NOVEMBERT, 2019 Item #19

Date Prepared 1115119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

*90224 US Bank Card

Automatic Sprinkler Testing &
lnspection Services

2 AT&T

ACWA Conference Regist (Dir Baker) ($725)
(1213-1216), Tec Help Fleeting Training Classes
(2) ($800) (Watkins), AWWA Reference Book
($12+¡ (Lab), Costco-Kitchen Supplies &
Lanterns for Lab ($162¡, DE-g & 941Tax Forms
($SO¡, SSL for Website ($120), CWEA
Membership & TestinO ($3aZ¡ (lelmorini),
ACWA Webinar-"Keeping Current-Navigating
Social Media" ($50) (Grisso), LegalAd on 10111-
Replacement Pre-Tank 4A ($392), Business
Safety Lunch M Marin Co Sheriff ($00¡, Regist
"Conference for Women" on 11115 (Accounting
Dept) ($++Z¡ & Conference Regist ($425),
Airfare ($2ZO¡ & Lodging ($2AS¡ "CA Society of
Municipal Finance Officers" on 1129-1130 (Blue)

Annual Fire Service Testing (10)

Telephone ($00¡, Fax ($83), Data ($278) &
Leased Lines ($140)

3 Bay Area Air Quality Mgmt Dist Annual Permit Renewal Fee (To Operate Fuel
Pumps)

Billings, Dana

Calif Dept of Fish & Wildlife

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Application for a Lake & Streambed Alternation
1600 Permit to DF&W for the Leveroni Creek
Embankment Repair ($2,241) & San Mateo
Tank lnlet/Outlet Projects ($2,2+l¡

6 Charles Custom Welding Welding Services (Blue Barn)

7 Clark, Robert E Exp Reimb: Lodging for ACWA-CA-NV Annual
Conference in San Diego 10120-10124119

8 DeGabriele, Chris Progress Billing #6: Consulting Services: Office
Renovation (Balance Remaining on Contract
$9,086)

$4,295.14

1,1 10.00

567.43

379.00

65.56

4,482.00

520.00

799.48

816.00

4

5

*Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated November 7 ,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

I Diesel Direct West

10 Environmental Express

Goodpaster, Stacie

12 Grainger

13 lnfoSend

14 LeBrun, Kent

16

Lincoln Life

Maltby Electric

McMaster-Carr Supply

Nationwide Retirement Solution

Nerviani's Backflow

City of Novato

17

1B

l9

21 Novato Sanitary District

22 Pace Supply

Pape Machinery

Peterson Trucks

R&B

Diesel (352 gals) ($1,400) & Gasoline (400 gals)
($1,588)

Chlorate Standard (Lab)

Exp Reimb: Airfare (8212¡, Transportation
($105), Lodging ($5zO¡ & Food ($71) for AWWA
Conference in San Diego (10120-10123)

Wasp & Hornet Killer (12-20 oz cans), Hole
Saw, 19" Machetes (2), Disinfecting Wipes (12)
($SO¡, Strap Wrench ($O+¡, Parts for On-Call
Van ($50), Utility Knives (2), Blades (2) & Roll
Down Waders ($80) (STP)

September Processing Fee for Water Bills
($1,293), Postage ($3,OOO¡ & September
Monthly Support Fee ($731)

Exp Reimb: 6-20 lbs Bags of lce for Crew Until
Replacement Machine Has Arrived (2 of 2)

Deferred Compensation 1 0/31/1 9

Meter Main for Nunes P.S.

Resin Seal for Telemetry Splicer

Deferred Compensation 1 0/31/1 9

Annual Backflow Tests (68)

Street Excavation Moratorium Fee (1205
Lynwood Dr)

Sewer Service Charges for Stafford Lake
Facility

6" Hydrant ($1,590), Reducers (4), Corp Stops
(79) ($2,120), Meter Spuds (20) (ç277), Valves
(12), Elbows (2a) ($358), Couplings (2) ($89) &
Plugs (10)

Filter ('09 John Deere Backhoe)

Service Parts Service Pafis ('06 lnt'l 4300 Crew
Truck)

Steel Pipe (40')

Mold lnspection for District Apartment

2,988.09

58.06

1 ,018.45

403.23

5,693.10

38.99

10,447.81

163.55

303.99

1,995.00

4,080.00

500.00

986.30

4,612.09

43.80

289.44

1,953.00

595.00

11

15

20

23

24

25

26

*Prepaid

Safe Air Fast Environmental

Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated November 7,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

27 SF Bay RegionalWater Quality
Control

Staples Business Credit

Tamagno Green Products

Thatcher of California

Underground Service Alert

U.S. Postal Service

USA BlueBook

Verizon Wireless

VWR lnternational

Winzer

Application for Clean Water Act 401

Certification to SFRWQCB for the Leveroni
Creek Embankment Repair ($2,173) & San
Mateo lnlet/Outlet Projects ($1,638)

Binders (10) ($64), Dry Eraser, Classification
Folders (20) ($53) & Toner ($235)

Sludge Removal @ STP (68 yds) (Balance
Remaining on Contract $18,180)

Ferric Chloride (9 tons) (STP)

Annual Membership (Arendell) (7 I 19-6120)

Meter Postage

Eyewear Lanyards (6)

Cellular Charges: Data ($1,810), Airtime ($69) &
Equipment ($271)

Zinc & lron Standards (Lab)

Cut Off Wheels (50) ($214), Flap Wheels (10),
Hardware for Fleet/Equipment ($90) & Concrete
Blades (2) ($79)

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3,811.00

420.76

2,040.00

7,048.97

3,077.36

1,000.00

37.27

2,149.68

77.71

468.60
$69,335.66

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $69,335.86 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

rtlb ltl
-Controller Date

nager Date

*Prepaid Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated November 7,2019



DISBURSEMENIS - DATED NOVEMBER 14, 2019

Date Prepared 11112119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

2

3

P/R* Employees

EFT* lnternal Revenue Service

EFT* State of California

EFT* CaIPERS

1 Able Tire & Brake

Alpha Analytical Labs

American Water Works Assoc

Asbury Environmental Services

Athens Administrators

Backflow Distributors

Bay Club Stonetree

Battle Born Media

9 Buck's Saw Service

10 Butler Auto Glass

11 Callahan, Steve

12 Calzaretta, Richard

13 Cilia, Joseph

Comcast

15 Crivello, Vincent

Net Payroll PPE 10131119

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 10131119

State Taxes & SDI PPE 10131119

Pension Contribution PPE 10131119

Tires (4) ('07 lnt'l)

Lab Testing

Membership Renewals (Mclntyre, Stompe,
Clark, Ramudo, Vogler & Chandrasekera) (1120-

12120) (Budget $4,250)

Used Oil Disposal for Fleet

October Replenishment for Checks Written

Repair Parts for DC & Fire Services

Refund Overpayment on Open Account-
Stonetree SRF Loan

Annual Novato Advance Subscription Renewal
(Mclntyre) (Budget $50) (1 2119-12120)

Parts for String Trimmer ($'1OZ¡, Echo Headgear
Attachment ($258) & Echo Powerhead Tool
($2e5)

New Windshield ('02 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump Truck)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Retiree Exp Reimb (Nov Health lns)

November lnternet Connection

Refund Overpayment on Open Account

$161,572.70

66,731.14

1 5,1 68.1 3

39,081,.12

1,551.56

170.00

4,269.00

65.00

1,398.68

901.84

40,325.26

59.00

654.86

425.00

100.00

400.00

333.79

143.29

54.64

4

5

6

7

B

14

*Prepaid Page 1 of4 Disbursements - Dated November 14,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

22

16 DataTree

Debarrows, M.A

Direct Line

17

1B

19 Enterprise Fleet Management
Trust

20 Environmental Science Assoc

21 Eurofins Eaton Analytical

Fishman Supply

23 GHD

24 Grainger

Jackson, David

Latanyszyn, Roman

LeBrun, Kent

Lemos, Kerry

Marin Landscape Materials

Marin County Ford

31 Marin County Clerk

October Subscription to Parcel Data lnfo

Refund Overpayment on Open Account

November Telephone Answering Service

November Monthly Lease Charges for Nissan
Rouges (2), Frontier & F150 Vehicles (2)

Prog Pymt#2: Environmental Engineering
Assistance for San Mateo Tank Permitting
(Balance Remaining on Contract $28,825)

Lab Testing for UCMR4 Monitoring

Bug Repellent Toilettes (100) ($a+¡, Safety
Gloves (300) ($63), Ear Plugs (600) ($76), Anti-
Fog Wipes (800) & lbuprofen (1000) ($88)

Prog Pymt#1. Engineering Services for Oceana
Marin Pond Rehab Project (Balance Remaining
on Contract$126,772)

Welding Shop Supplies ($480), Resin Seal for
Wire Splicers, Soap for Maintenance Building
($54) & Disposable Respirator Masks (200)
($zs+¡

Retiree Exp Reimb (Nov Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (Nov Healih lns)

Exp Reimb: Safety Boots

Retiree Exp Reimb (Nov Health lns)

Wood Chips (16 yds) (25 Giacomini Rd $291 &

Front Office $317) & Weed Barrier

Service Parts ('12 F250) ($54¡, Battery Cable
('15 Ford Escape) ($St¡, Pedal Pad & Steering
Wheel Assembly ('12 F250) ($ZZO¡, Tail Gate
Retainer & Tailgate Latch ('08 F250 4X4) ($60)

File Notice of Exemption for the Leveroni Creek
Embankment Repair Project ($50) & File Notice
of lntent for the Old Ranch Road Tank 2 Project
($so¡

100.00

69.60

355.39

2,388.91

7,418.75

305.00

371.29

2,228.50

845.59

986.81

333.79

200.00

986.81

787.71

437.51

100.00

25

26

27

28

29

30

*Prepaid Page 2 ol 4 Disbursements - Dated November 14,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

35

36

32 McMaster-Carr Supply

33 McPhail Fuel

34 North Marin Auto Parts

North Bay Gas

Novato Builders Supply

37 Novato Sanitary District

Office Depot

Pace Supply

40 Pearlman, Avram

41 Peterson Trucks

42 PG&E CFM/PPC Department

43 Pini Hardware

Splice Kits for West Marin Telemetry ($67) &
Switch for Olema Tank ($127)

Propane for Tahiti Way Lift Station Generator
($6ZO¡ & Propane Tank Lease ($65) (25
Giacomini Rd)

Service Parts ('16 Nissan Frontier), Pinter Hitch
($1Sa¡, Hose Clamps for Equipment (4), Fuel
Stabilizer for Small Equipment, Transmission
Filter ('06 lnt'l Crew Truck), Grease for
Equipment ($00¡, 5 Gal Buckets (19) ($76),
Spark Plugs (4), Battery ('15 Ford Escape)
($1S+¡, Motor Oil (3 gal), Spray Paint (6) ($02¡,
Light Bulbs for Vehicles (8), Battery ('01

Portable Generator) ($¿gt ), Starter ('13 Vac
Excavator) ($2SS¡, Transmission Fluid (12)
($6S¡, Wiper Blades for Fleet & 5 Gal Gas Cans
(4) ($e3)

Nitrogen ($724) (STP) & October Cylinder
Rental ($1st¡

Landscape Materials (25 Giacomini Rd & Front
Office $21 0), Engineering/Surveying Materials,
PVC Pipe, Masks (80) ($116) & Concrete Nails
(2 lbs)

Personnel Charges ($76) & Lab lnvoice for Pre-
Treatment ($4SO¡

Poster Frames (4) ($43), Pens (12), Bank
Deposit Bags (200) ($4S¡, Notebooks &
Wastebasket

Copper Disks (5), 12" Clamps (2) ($479),
Adaptors (10) ($229), Gaskets (10) & Nipples
(10) ($300)

Exp Reimb: Safety Boots

Service Parts ('12 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump Truck)

PGE Service Upgrade to Meet Crest Pump
Station Power Requirements

Misc Hardware & Maintenance Supplies ($1AS¡
& Key ('19 Chevy Colorado) ($77)

194.95

741.01

1,647.92

875.55

400.83

506.44

120.45

1,042.44

200.00

374 68

30,104.68

262.03

3B

39

*Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 14,2019



Seo Pavable To For Amount

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

R&B

Darlene D. Rhodes

Rodriguez, Christopher

State Water Resources Control

Sweeney, Marilyn

Syar lndustries

Synectic Technologies

Uline

Van Bebber Bros

Verizon Wireless

VWR lnternational

Warner, S.

Meter Boxes (2) ($267), Meter Box Lids (2)
($210) & Check Valve

Prog Pymt#3: HR Consulting Services (Balance
Remaining on Contract $6,650)

Exp Reimb: Safety Boots

D1 Certification Fee (Williamson) & D2 Renewal
Certification ($80) (Castellucci) (Budget 0)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Asphalt (6 tons)

Quarter Phone System Maintenance

41" Cable Ties (100)

5/8" Steel Plates (2)

SCADA & Novato CIMIS Stations

Powder Reagent ($100¡ & Bottles (24) (Lab)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

508.59

1,968.75

163.48

150.00

200.00

993.53

446.70

1 18.00

200.20

97.27

1 60.1 6

70.53
$392,868.86

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $392,868.86 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

It là
r-Controller Date

General er Date

(

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 14,2019
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Baker

Reg Meeting I0l1l20L9 235.00

Reg Meeting L0/15/2079 235.00

*Extra Meeting 235.00
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470.00 470.00 470.00



November L,2019

To Susan Harvey, Chair Water Advisory Committee

Drew Mclntyre, Chair Technical Advisory Committee

From: Jay Jasperse, Sonoma Water

Re: Informational ltem - 2018 Update of Water Supply Strategies Action Plan

The 2018 Water Supply Strategies Action Plan (Action Plan) is a key planning document for

Sonoma County Water Agency (Sonoma Water). The Action Plan is an update of a 20L3 plan

originally developed in 2010 in cooperation with Sonoma Water Contractors that addresses

immediate and long-term challenges in providing a reliable regional water supply, including

aging infrastructure vulnerable to natural hazards, and water supply uncertainties due to

regulatory issues, drought, and climate change. The Action Plan focuses on water supply

projects and programs.

Background

ln April 2OOg, Sonoma Water's Board of Directors (Board) held a workshop to discuss the

challenges Sonoma Water faces in providing a reliable regional water supply, including the

economy, aging infrastructure, regulatory concerns, drought, and climate change. The Board

directed staff to seek input from the Water Contractors and the community. Staff completed

this outreach and reported to the Board in September 2009. The Board directed staff, with

input from the Water Contractors and other interested parties, "to commence and continue the

development of new water supply projects, plans, and strategies to meet the reasonable

expected future water demands of Sorìoma Water's Contractors, taking into account the

National Marine Fisheries Service Russian River Biological Opinion constraints and reduced

Potter Valley Project flows, and incorporating the water supply strategies, climate change

analysis, maximum levels of water conservation and efficiency measures, recycled water,

conjunctive use and low impact development strategies."

ln response to this Board direction, staff developed a draft Action Plan, conducted additional

public outreach, received comments, and refined the draft Action Plan. On September 21',

2OIO, the Board approved the strategies and directed Sonoma Water's General Manager to

finalize the Action Plan. The 20L0 Action Plan described how each of the nine strategies was



being carried out through specific activities and projects, identified involved parties, provided

the status of each item, included a prioritization (lmmediate, Near- or Long-term), and provided

funding information. The Action Plan was updated in 201'7 and 2013.

2018 Water Supply Strategies Action Plan Update

The 2018 Action Plan describes'accomplishments, progress made, and actions reprioritized

from the 201-3 Action Plan. New activities initiated since 2018 have also been added. The

original nine strategies have been updated to seven strategies, shown below, which directly

align with Sonoma Water's 2017 internal Strategic Plan.

Strategy 1: Protect Drinking Water Supply & Promote Water-Use Efficiency

Strategy 2: Maintain & lmprove the Reliability of the Water Transmission System

Strategy 3: Utilize Regional Planning to lncrease Water Supply Resiliency

Strategy 4: Respond & Adapt to Climate Change

Strategy 5: lmprove the Energy Efficiency of the Water Transmission System &

Renewable Power Use

Strategy 6: lncrease Emergency Preparation & lmprove Response to Natural Disasters

Strategy 7: Seek Federal & State Funding

I ncrease

Sonoma Water staff coordinated with Water Contractor staff in developing the updated Action

Plan. The updated Action Plan contains: (1) an executive summary; (2) a list of acronyms; (3)

descriptions of the seven stratôgies with prioritized actions, projects and activities; (4) a

summary of changes to the updated plan relative to the 2013 plan; (5) FY18-19 Long Range

Financial Plan Project List; and (6) a summary of Water Contractor's water supply and reliability

projects projected for the next LO years.

The 20L8 Action Plan describes in detail, important projects and activities which were

completed since 2013, including Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement Demonstration Project Mile 1-

and tributary restoration, as required by the Biological Opinion, hazard mitigation projects to

mitigate damage from liquefaction and earthquakes, and launching Community Choice

Aggregation in partnership with Sonoma Clean Power.

ln addition, significant progress has been achieved on critical programs and projects, including

formation of Groundwater Sustainability Agencies and implementation of the Sustainable

Groundwater Management Act, development of Storm Water Resource Plans, and Forecast

lnformed Reservoir Operations.



Looking forward, several projects have been reprioritized or added to the Action Plan' Dry

Creek Habitat Enhancement Demonstration Project Miles 4, 5 and 6 has moved to an

immediate activity; increased coo.rdination with upper Russian River Water Managers has been

added. Other new actions include the grant funded Advanced Quantitative Precipitation

lnformation Project, implementation of Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, fire

response activities, and development of a.comprehensive climate adaptation plan.

lmportant considerations of the Action Plan are, that: (1) coordination and partnerships are

essential to achieving reliable, efficient and sustainable water resource management; (2) the

strategies are interconnected; (3)the Action Plan is a living document and should be updated as

progress is made and conditions change; and (4) transparency is critical to success'

This Action Plan continues Sonoma Water's commitment to an open, transparent, and inclusive

water supply planning process. Staff continues to coordinate with the Water Contractors'

Technical Advisory Committee to develop the updated Action Plan. The draft Action Plan was

presented at the January 7,2019 Technical Advisory Committee meeting. Comments were

received and the Action Plan was revised. The Action Plan was also presented to the Board on

September 30, 2019.



2018



2018 WATER SUPPLY STRATEGIES

ACTION PLAN

EXECUTIVE SU M MARY

The Water Suppty Strategies Action Plan (WSSAP) is a regionaI planning document intended to increase

water supply system retiability, resiliency and efficiency in the face of [imited resources, regulatory

constraints and climate change uncertainties within Sonoma County WaterAgency (Sonoma Water)

service area,

ln September 2010, fottowing extensive community outreach and involvement, the Sonoma Water

Board of Directors approved nine Water Supply Strategies. These strategies were developed with

signíficant input from the Water Contractorsl and Marin MunicipalWater District.

Under Board direction, the 2010 Water Supply Strategies Action Plan described how each strategy was

being carrÍed out through specific actions and projects planned to achieve each action. For each

project the parties involved were identified, and the current status and budget information were

provided. The Board recognized that the plan was a living document and requested regular updates.

The first update was provided in 2011 with an additional update in 2013.

Over the last 5 years, many project activities identified in the 2013 WSSAP have progressed or been

completed. The 2018 WSSAP provides a progress report on project activities and identify those that

have been compteted and reprioritized. The 2018 WSSAP has been reorganized, as necessary, to be

consistent with Sonoma Water's internalstrategic plan such that the strategies and goals have been

modified from earlier versions of the WSSAP.

As in prior plans, the 2018 WSSAP recognizes the importance of specific stakehotder and generaI

community invotvement in successfutty carrying out the strategies. Stakeholders who are working with

Sonoma Water on implementation of a particular action item are specifically mentioned as lnvolved

Parties. Where community involvement is occurring or anticipated during all or part of the process,

"community groups" are indicated as lnvolved Parties. ln addition, manyAction Plan activities wi[[ be

reviewed or approved at Water Advisory Committee, Flood ControI Zone, Sonoma Water's Board of

1 Water Contractors include the Cities of Cotati, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, and Sonoma; North Marin

and Va[[ey of the Moon Water Districts; and the Town of Windsor.



Directors and other pubtic meetings. Members of the generaI publíc will have the opportunity to review

and comment on the activities at a[[such forums. Major accomplishments and changes from the 2013

WSSAP are summarized below and in the attached Appendix 1.

Actions Successfully Completed
Severalactions described in the 2013 WSSAP have been completed. Details on each of these

completed actions can be found in Appendix 1.

o Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement Demonstration Project Miles 1

o 2015 Urban Water Management Plan
. Fish Ladder/ Viewing Gallery
o TributaryRestoration
r Development of Hydrologíc lndex
. Groundwater Banking Feasibitity Study
o Community Choice Aggregatíon
. Hazard Mitigation Projects:

o Rodgers Creek Fault Crossing Mitigation
o lsolation valves
o River Diversion Structure liquefaction mitigation

o Preventativemaintenanceprojects:
o ln-line meter replacements

Significant Progress
Significant progress was made on several 2013 WSSAP items that wi[[ continue to be listed in the 2018

WSSAP, including:
o Formation of Groundwater Sustainability Agencies- Buitding on the non- regulatory foundation

of the Sonoma Vattey Groundwater Management Plan, participation and support of the three

Groundwater Sustainability Agencies continue as the Groundwater Sustainability Plans are

being developed and additional basins are being considered.
¡ Forecast lnformed Reservoir Operations- New science based findíng continue to support

opportu nities to i mprove reservoi r m a na gement.
o Storm Water Resource Plans- SuccessfuI regional planning has resulted in two SWRP's which

increase the regions abitity to leverage grant funding and prioritize multi beneficial projects.

r Water Use Efficiency - Fottowing a multi-year drought where water demands were significantly

reduced, the region has committed to extend the Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership MOU

for an additiona[ 10 years.

. Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement - Successful implementation of habitat improvements

continue to progress as required by the Biological Opinion.
. Fish Habitat Flows and Water Rights EIR- The Draft EIR was reteased in 2016, comments are

being reviewed and updating project documentation, as appropriate.

Reprioritization
Several items tisted in the 2013 WSSAP have been reprioritized, based on changed conditions, funding

opportunities or loss, or other circumstances. Projects falling into this category include:

. Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement Miles 4, 5 and 6 was moved to an immedíate activity with pre

construction engíneering and design beginning in 2019.

. Ralphine tanks flow through conversion is substantially designed has been moved to an
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immediate activity

NewActions
SeveraI items were added to the 2018 WSSAP to reflect new Sonoma Water initiatives, areas of focus or

fu nding opportunities, including:
. Advanced Quantitative Precipitation lnformation- Prop 84 funding for radar units has resulted

in a system that can provide criticatinformation on location, timing and intensity of rainfa[[

throughout the Bay Area.
. Upper River Coordination- lncreased coordination with Lake Mendocino water users including

Potter Va lley P roj ect relice nsi n g activities.
. SGMA lmplementation- Participation and support of the three GSA's continue as the GSP are

being developed and additional basins are being considered.
o Fire Response Actions- Numerous new initiatives have been launched since October 2017

inctuding: evaluation of potentialimpacts from post-wildfire burn areas, flood warning

network to detect flooding conditions, implement FireSmart Lake Sonoma to increase

community engagement and watershed resiliency, and facilitating the installation of high-

definition cameras to provide early fire detection and situationaI awareness throughout the

region.
o Climate Adaptation Planning- The CAP wilt identify strategies to address climate risks and

vulnerabitities to ensure an increased understanding of water supply reliability impacts.
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Water Supply Strategies Action Plan

2



Strategy 1:
Protect drinking water s_tlppty and promote water-

use efficiency
Action: ånc¡"ease the water supp[y re[iabiåãty of Lake Mendocino and Lake

Sonoma

Proiect: Support Forecast lnformed Reservoir Operations (FlROl research and

implementation
Activity: Continue to support FIRO research. As new data becomes available and new scíence-based

findings are documented, Sonoma Water wi[[work to incorporate them into reservoir management in

coordination with USACE.

Status: Through the FIRO Steering Committee (a group of state, federal and Sonoma Water

representatives), USACE, Scripps, NOAA and other federaI agencies are collaborating to

evatuate and implement new management tools for Lake Mendocino. These tools would allow

decisions about reservoir operations to be based on weather forecasts rather than historic data

and rules written when the reservoir was constructed and are ca[[ed forecast informed

reservoir operations. A preliminary viabitity assessment (PVA) was released in 2017 which

demonstrated that changing to forecast-based tools would improve water supply reliabilíty

without increasing ftood risk to downstream communities. The Steering Committee, co-chaíred

by Sonoma Water, has submitted a request to USACE to modify the USACE water control

manual, written in the 1950s, which governs reservoir operations. The modifícation (ca[[ed a

"major deviation") was approved by the USACE and will allow the application of forecast-based

tools to supplement USACE reservoir operations for Water Year 2019. The Steering Committee

is also currently working on several technical studies identified in the PVA. The studies,

combined with the resutts of operations during at least two major deviations from the water

control manua[, willform the basis for the finalviability assessment, and subsequently may

result in a request for a change to the water control manua[. ln addition, several research

projects are underway to devetop future tools and improve forecasting skills that can be

incorporated into future versions of FIRO.

tnvolved Parties: USACE, Scripps, NOAA (NWS, NMFS, and Office of Atmospheric Research),

uscs, BoR, DWR

Timing: lmmediate

Project: Complete and implement actions to establish new hydrologic index
Activity: Adopt a hydrologic index, which informs the water year designation, with assistance from

the USACE's Hydrologic Engineering Center and the Hydrologic lndex TechnicalAdvisory Group,

comprised of representatives from state and federal agencies.

Status: A new, proposed hydrologic index has been developed as part of the Fish Habitat

Flows and Water Rights Project (Fish Ftow Project). A draft EIR has been prepared for the Fish

Flow Project. Petitions were filed with the SWRCB requesting Sonoma Water's water rights be

amended to include the proposed hydrologic index, as we[[as proposed new minimum
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instream flow requirements; once the EIR is certified and the Fish Flow Project approved by

Sonoma Water's Board of Directors, the process will move to SWRCB for approvalof the
petitions.

lnvolved Parties: SWRCB, USACE, NMFS, CDFW, North Coast RWQCB

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Continue to monitor and evaluate issues related to the reliability of Lake Mendocino

Activity: Facititate upper river water managers' quarterly meetings to collaborate, share information,

and buitd retationships that may result in water use agreements and regional partnerships.

Status: Ongoing.

lnvolved Parties: Mendocino County, City of Ukiah, City of Cloverdale, City of Healdsburg,

several Mendocino and Sonoma County water districts, agriculturaI representatives, Farm

Bureaus, Russian River water users

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Conduct workshops with land managers to discuss results of drought scenarios and receive

feedback on potential mitigation measures developed in partnership with Scripps and USGS.

Status: ln partnership with Scripps and USGS, evaluate the Russian RiverValley's future risk

to drought and make the region more resilient to droughts via studies carried out through

funding provided by NOAA. The project has three main tasks: (1) perform analysis to
understand how extreme precipítation events and atmospheric rivers will change in the future
and their role ín ending droughts (2) produce extreme drought scenarios to understand how

the urban and natural [andscapes will respond; and (3) work with stakeholders to understand

drought mítigation measures that are currently being executed and what can be done to make

the region more resilient to drought in the future. Scripps, County of Sonoma, and Sonoma

Water held workshop with [and managers to discuss the results of the drought scenarios and

receive feedback on potentiat mitigation measures. The Finat Report is expected in December

2018.

lnvolved Parties: NOAA, USGS, Water Contractors, County of Sonoma, other stakeholder and

community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Project Monitor and participate ¡n PG&E's PotterValley Project hydroelectric relicensing and

Request for Offers (RFOI process

Activity: Engage in PVP re-licensing proceeding.

Status: On January 25,2OLg PG&E notified the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)

that it was withdrawing its Notice of lntent (NOl) and Preliminary Application Document (PAD)

and discontinuing the lntegrated Licensing Process initiated to prepare a license application.

PG&E also notified FERC that it was terminating its efforts transfer and sellthe project. On

March 1, 2019 FERC issued a notice soliciting applications from any party interested in filing an

application for a new license for the project. The notice set a deadline of 120 days from the

date of the notice to file an NOI and PAD. ln the event that no other party files an application
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for a license by April 1-4,2020, PG&E witt be provided with written notice that no timely

application for the project has been fited and will be required to file a schedule for fí[ing a

surrender application for the project within 90 days.

lnvolved Parties: FERC, PG&E, NMFS, Uníted States Forest Service, United States Fish and

Witdtife Service, CDFW, SWRCB, Round Vattey Tribes, Wiyot Tribe, Humboldt County, Lake

County, Mendocino County, Sonoma County, Water Contractors, Russian River water

users, Friends of the Ee[ River, CalTrout, Trout Unlimited, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Participate in Congressman Jared Huffman's PVP Ad Hoc Commíttee through the two

working groups that have been established: Fish Passage and Water Suppty.

Status: ln20IT,Congressman Huffman convened an ad hoc committee of interested parties

to work toward a Two-Basin Solution for the future of the PVP that addresses issues and

concerns in both the Eet River and Russian River watersheds. Sonoma Water staff are

participating in teadership roles for each of the Workíng Groups. The Fish Passage Working

Group wilt identify existing information and best available science, develop objectives for fish

passage and identify viable solutions (near term, longer term). The Water Supply Working

Group witt identify water suppty issues on EeI and Russian Rívers, develop objectives for water

supply, identify viable solutions (near term, [onger term), and assess consequences,

opportunities, and challenges of potentiat futures for the PVP. Throughout 2018, the Fish

Passage and Water Supply Working Groups witl examine these issues and then report their

findings to the fultAd Hoc Committee for consideration.

tnvolved Parties: PG&E, CalTrout, PotterValley lrrigation District, City of Ukiah, Round Valley

lndian Tribes, Congressman Jared Huffman's Office, Russian Riverkeeper, Coyote Va[[ey Band

of Pomo lndians, County of Sonoma, Friends of the eel River, Humbotdt County, SWRCB, Lake

County, Trout Unlimited, Mendocino County, U.S. Fish and Witdlife Service, NMFS, U'S. Forest

Service, Pacific Coast Federation of Fishermen's Association, Wiyot Tribe, CDFW, SWRCB

Timing: lmmediate

proiect: Continue quagga mussel quarantine program and pursue funding for monitoring
Activity: Pursue funding to support mussel inspections at Lake Sonoma and Lake Mendocino.

Status: ln September 2018, SB 790 passed, which allows entities other than USACE to apply

for and receive grant funding to prevent the spread of invasive quagga and zebra mussels. The

USACE manages recreation at both lakes and is responsible for imptementing mandatory

inspections. Sonoma Water has invested in annuaIvoluntary inspections using musseldogs at

each [ake. Sonoma Water intends to appty to the Department of Boating and Waterways for

grant funds as they become available in 2019.

lnvolved Parties: USACE, CA Department of Boating and Waterways

Timing: lmmediate

Action: [nsure rorìnpl¡änce with the Rr,¡ssian River Biotogicat tpinion

Projech Estuary Adaptive Management
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Activity: Modify Sonoma Water's Russian River estuary management program as required by the
BiologicaI Opinion, including managing the estuary as a summer lagoon for steelhead rearing habitat
between May 15 and October 15.

Status: The Jetty Study, required by RPA 2 in the Biological Opinion, was completed in March

2017. Sonoma Water staff completed annuaI updates to the Russian River Estuary

Management Project Outlet Adaptive Management Plan, as well as annuaI biological and

water quality monitoring in the estuary. Staff witl continue to prepare annual updates to the
Plan through the term of the BiologicaI Opinion. Sonoma Water staff wi[[ began a flood risk
feasibility study effort required by RPA 2 in 2018 with work continuing into 2019. Sonoma
Water received funding from the NOAA Habitat Blueprint for salmonid habitat water quality
modeling in the Russian River estuary and to evaluate changes to coastalstorm and sea level
rise on the Sonoma Coast and ín the estuary.

lnvolved Parties: NMFS, CDFW, North Coast RWQCB, UC Davis Bodega Marine Lab, NOAA

agencies, Stewards of the Coast and Redwoods, California State Parks, University of
Washington

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Habitat Enhancement Resulting in Adequate Dry Creek Flows
Activity: Construct Mites Two and Three of Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement by 2018, as required by

the Biotogical Opinion.
Status: A totat of g.t+ miles of habitat enhancement have been constructed from 20l2to
2018. As of November 2018, Sonoma Water and the Army Corps have led 2.51 and 0.63 miles

of construction respectively. Most recently, the Army Corps successfully completed the Dry

Creek Continuing Authorities Program Section 1135 (CAP 1135) project. Monitoring per the
Dry Creek Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) is ongoing. Actions to repair two sites damaged
in high winter flows between December20L6 and February 2017 were implemented during
summer 2017 and are performing wel[.

lnvolved Parties: Dry Creek property owners, NMFS, CDFW, USACE, Dry Creek Tribe of Pomo
lndians

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Construct Miles Four, Five and Six of Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement, as required by the
Biologicat Opinion"

Status: Sonoma Water is coordinating with USACE for funding of miles four, five, and six
through the USACE Ecosystem Restoration General lnvestigation (Gl) process. The Gl

feasibility study is nearing completion and the project is advancing to the Preconstruction
Engineering and Design (PED) phase in early 2019. ln support of the Gl process, Sonoma Water

is reaching out to [andowners and working with consultants to develop project designs.
Project construction is being planned in three phases from202I-2023.

Involved Part¡es: Dry Creek property owners, NMFS, USACE, CDFW, Dry CreekTribe of Pomo
lndians

Timing: lmmediate

Projecil Fish Habitat Flows and Water Rights Project EIR
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Activity: Prepare EIR to modify Decísion 1610 minimum instream flow requirements as requíred in the

Russian River Biologicat Opinion. The proposed Fish Flow Project also includes technicalwater rights

adjustments, including a proposed new hydrologic index, extension of time to use existing water

rights to the year 2040, and additionaI points of'diversÍon.
Status: The Draft EIR was released for public review in 201-6. Sonoma Water staff are reviewing

comments receíved and updating project documentation as appropriate.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, SWRCB, USACE, NMFS, CDFW, North Coast

RWQCB, com mun íty grouPs

Timing: lmmediate

projec* Continue to implement the Reasonable and Prudent Alternatives for the Russian River

Biological Opinion
Activity: Develop contingency ptan for funding and construction of Dry Creek bypass pipeline if,

contrary to expectations, habitat enhancement efforts fail.

Status: A feasibitity study for the bypass pipetine study was completed in 2011. The need for

further budget, environmental impact analysis, and design development wil[ be evaluated

fotlowing completion of habitat enhancement efforts. Monitoring results of habitat work are

completed atong with the comptetion of construction activities in 2018 are anticipated to

result in a letter of support from N MFS to continue enhancement work on miles 4, 5, and 6

projects. SuccessfuI implementation of habitat enhancement efforts have resulted in the

bypass pipeline being a low príority.

lnvolved Parties: NMFS, USACE, CDFW, Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: NearTerm

Activityl lf habitat enhancement efforts are unsuccessfut, buítd Dry Creek bypass pipeline.

A. Project: Conduct necessary fínanciat and environmental studies and identify timing of
projects
Status: To be determined.

B. Project: Construct bypass pipeline

Status: To be determined.

lnvolved Parties (A and B): NMFS, USACE, CDFW, Water Contractors, MMWD, community

groups

Timing: LongTerm

Action: Support science-baseeJ managernent sf grüundwate r and

su rface water resou rües

project: Supportthe implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater ManagementAct

Activity: Participate in and support Sonoma Vattey GSA

Status: The basin is being managed by the Sonoma Valley GSA under SGMA. Activities and

information developed as part of the non-regulatory Groundwater Management Plan

approved by the Sonoma Water Board of Directors informs the foundatíon for the
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development of the GSA's Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The Sonoma Va[[ey GSA has

contracted with Sonoma Water to provide technica[, grant writing, outreach, and

administrative support. Work on the GSP is underway, with the financial assistance of S1

mi[[ion from DWR, through a competitive Proposition l grant.

Involved Parties: Sonoma Vatley GSA, Sonoma Valley GSA Advisory Committee, City of

Sonoma, VOMWD, North Bay Water District, County of Sonoma, Sonoma RCD, other water
purveyors, community stakeholders, private well owners

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Participate in and support Santa Rosa Ptain GSA

Status: Activíties and ínformation developed as part of the non-regulatory Groundwater

Management Plan approved by the Sonoma Water Board of Directors informs the foundation

for the development of the GSA's Grou ndwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). Santa Rosa Plain

GSA a pubtic agency was formed to sustainably manage groundwater in the Santa Rosa Plain

groundwater basin in June 2017. The Santa Rosa Plain GSA has a Board of Directors, an

administrator and an advisory committee. The Santa Rosa Plain GSA has contracted with

Sonoma Water to provide technica[, grant writing, and outreach. Work on the GSP is

underway, with the financialassistance,of $1 miltion from DWR, through a competitive

Proposition 1 grant.

lnvolved Parties: Santa Rosa Plain GSA, Santa Rosa Plain GSA Advisory Committee, Santa

Rosa Water, City of Rohnert Park, City of Cotati, Town of Windsor, Sonoma RCD, Gold Ridge

RCD, County of Sonoma, MutualWater Companies and lnvestor Owned Utilities, Graton

Rancheria Tribe, private wellowners, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Participate in and support Petaluma Valtey GSA

Status: Petaluma Valley GSA, a public agency was formed to sustainably manage

groundwater in the Petaluma Vatley groundwater basin in June 2017. The Petaluma Valley

GSA has a Board of Directors, an administrator and an advisory committee. The Petaluma

Vattey GSA has contracted with Sonoma Water to provide technica[, grant writing, outreach,

and administrative support. Work on the groundwater sustainabitity plan is underway, with

the financial assistance of S1 million from DWR, through a competitive Proposition 1 grant.

Involved Parties: Petaluma Vatley GSA, Petaluma Valtey GSAAdvisory Committee, County of

Sonoma, City of Petaluma, Sonoma RCD, North Bay Water District and community members

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: lmplement CASGEM Program
Status: Ongoing. Sonoma Water has coordinated and reported the required monitoring for 13

designated basins in county's 14 basins. Sonoma Water is responsible for two basins and

through an agreement with the County is monitoring the 11 basins under County

responsibility. The City of Petaluma will remain the reporting agency for the Petaluma Valley

basin untilthe Petaluma Valley GSA assumes responsibility. Semi-annualwater level

measurements have been collected since fall 2011, and will be an ongoing activity. For the
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basins required to comply with SGMA the CASGEM program wi[[ transition to the GSP

monitoring program following development of GSPs'

lnvolved Parties: County of Sonoma, cities, RCDs, GSAs, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Project: Support the continued evaluation of coniunctive water use

Activity: lmplement Aquifer Storage and Recovery Pilot Studies. Based on the results of the

Groundwater Banking Feasibitity Study, Sonoma Water and City of Sonoma initiated an ASR Pilot

Study in the City of Sonoma in 2018.

Status: The ASR Pitot Study was initiated in March 20L8 following permitting by the San

Francisco Bay RWQCB and involves the recharge, storage and recovery of approximately 12

acre-feet of Russian River drinking water through a test well in the City of Sonoma. The results

of the pitot study witt provide: (1) information on the technical feasibility for ASR in the region

to other local agencies, including Sonoma Water's contractors and the GSAs (2) could be used

to inform síte selection and imptement other pilot studies and (3) to complete environmentaI

documentation and design for a full scale or permanent ASR project in the region.

lnvolved Parties: City of Sonoma, Sonoma Valley GSA, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Work with interested parties to share information and coordinate activities upstream of the

conftuence of Ory Creek and the Russian River

Status: Russian River Science Forum, begun May 2018, hosts science related information

exchange twice a year. The objectives of the Forum are to continue to coordinate on the

various science and monitoring activities in the watershed and help inform and reduce data

gaps identified in the lndependent Science Review Pane[. Topics include: hydrometeorotogy

and climate change, surface water hydrology, groundwater, habitat and restoration,

monitoring.

tnvolved Parties: Catifornia Land Stewardship lnstítute, Sonoma County Agricultural

Preservation & Open Space District, Fish Friendly Farmíng, NMFS, resource agencies,

community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Froject: Continue to evaluate the capacity and performance of the riverbank filtration system

Activity: Resea rch on su rface water/grou ndwater i nteraction.
Status: Continue studies and modeling of surface water/groundwater interactions in

coltaboration with LBNL, USGS and other research institutions to better understand flow

mechanics and naturalfíttration processes as they relate to production and water quality at

Sonoma Water's riverbank filtration facitities. Recent research activities include evaluation of
potentiaI impacts from post-wildfire burn areas. Recent work was presented by Sonoma

Water staff and partners at various conferences and periodicatly pubtish results of research in

peer-reviewed jou rnals.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, LBNL, USGS
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Timing: lmmediate

Action: Mo*itor änd prot€ct Sonoma Water's watçr rights

Projecü Maintain reliability of Sonoma Water's water rights
Activity: Submit annualTemporary Urgency Change Petitions to the SWRCB as requÍred by the
BiologicaI Opinion. Upon SWRCB approva[, compliance with orders approving the petitions requires
monitoring and reportíng.

Status: Since 2010, Sonoma Water has petitioned the SWRCB for temporary changes in

minimum instream flow requirements on the Russian River during the salmon rearing season,

as required by the Russian River BiologicaI Opinion. ln severalyears, Sonoma Water has

petitioned for temporary urgency changes due to drought conditions (2013-2015). The orders
approving the petitions require monitoring and reporting on a variety of items including water
quality in the Russian River, fisheries monitoring and water conservation activities.

lnvolved Part¡es: SWRCB, Water Contractors, MMWD, NMFS, CDFW, Russian River water users,

community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Prepare annual water rights reports, detailing totalwater use including local supplies, water
conservation savings and recycled water which offsets Russian River supplies.

Status: Sonoma Water submitted its annual water rights permit progress and licensee reports
for each Water Year.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, SWRCB, other Russian River water users under
contract with Sonoma Water

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Continue monitoring water rights-related activities in the watershed that could affect
Sonoma Water's water rights
Activity: Actively participate in water right filings with the SWRCB in the Russian River Watershed to
ensure Sonoma Water's water rights are protected.

Status: Ongoing. Amended rights Request terms be added to new and amended ríghts in the
Russian River Watershed.

lnvolved Parties: SWRCB

Timing: lmmediate

Action: lmprove the efficient use of water in Sonoma Water's sërv¡ce

area

Project lncrease recycled water storage, distribution, and use

Activity: Pursue expansion of recycled water projects involving Sonoma Water inctuding Windsor and

Santa Rosa (Airport Service Area) and Sonoma Valley (Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District)
Status: Windsor and Sonoma Water are working on prioritizing users and determining how to
proceed with determiníng the most cost effective way to suppty recycled water to the Airport
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Service Areas currently relying on potable water from Windsor. Santa Rosa Water, working
wíth Town of Windsor and Sonoma Water, is evaluating options for maximízing recycted water
in the Airport Service Area. Other reuse opportunities are being considered, in addition to, the
co[[aborations with Santa Rosa and Windsor.
ln Sonoma Valley, SVCSD constructed pipeline and storage facilities to offset potable water
use with recycled water based on current inflows. As effluent flows increase over time, SVCSD

willevaluate the potentialto expand the recycled water system. Recycled water may play a
role in complying with the requirements of SGMA in the Sonoma Valley (and other basins
requíred to implement SGMA).

Involved Parties: ln Airport area: Windsor, Santa Rosa Water. ln Sonoma Va[[ey: City of
Sonoma, NBWRA, SVCSD, VOMWD, Sonoma Valley GSA, and community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Project: Monitor and prevent water loss
Activity: Evaluate the devetopment of an operationaI tool to assess near real time meter zone water
balance for AMI meters.

Status: Utitizing software currently available and operationaldata to construct a daily water
balance tool.

lnvolved Parties: lnternal

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Support Water Contractors in implementation of Water Loss Management Reporting.
Status: Monitor, collect and disseminate system data for Water Contractors required annual
water loss reporting.

Involved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Track state regulations for whotesaler water supplier water loss reporting.
Status: SWRCB is developing and enacting water loss reporting requirements for wholesale
water suppliers. Sonoma Water staff are providing feedback to the SWRCB on the
methodology and willcontinue to voluntarily report on water loss.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors

Timing: NearTerm

Project Continue to promote water-use efficiency and the Sonoma-Marin Saving Water
Partnership through outreach and education
Activity: Encourage water use efficiency through outreach and education while supporting the
Partners through grant submittals, regional program implementation, tracking of impactful
legislatíon, and influencing state framework standards. Ensure engagement with the community and

water contractors to reduce demands through long term conservation strategies.
Status: Ongoing. ln June 2018 the Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership MOU was
extended for 10 additionalyears to assist the Partners in meeting statewide efficiency targets,
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ensure the region continues to increase water awareness and pursue demand reduction

opportunities that are cost effective.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, community groups

Timing: lmmediate
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Strategy 2:
Maintain and improve the retiabitity of the Water

Transmission System
Action: Assess, rnaËntai¡'r and upgrade Water Transs-níssi*n Syste rn

infrastructure

Proiec* Assessment of collector well capacities
Activity: Evaluate the performance and condition of co[lector we[[s under standardized hydrologic
and operationat conditions, and if needed, develop a plan to increase reliabitity of these facilitíes.

Status: Ongoing. Collector capacity program started in 2008 and is ongoing. Collector we[[s 3,

4, and 5 have had two rounds of analysis utilizing standardized conditions. Collector wells 1, 2,

and 6 had the second round of analysis completed in October 2018.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Projecü Evaluate condition of Water Transmission System aqueducts particularly in areas with
limited accessibility
Activity: Develop an implementation plan for pipeline assessment.

Status: An RFQ will be issued in 2018 to develop an implementation plan to assess the
condition of the transmission system pipelines.

lnvolved PaÉies: I nternal

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: lmplement condition assessment on priority pipelines based on implementation ptan,

Status: Pending development on implementation plan.

lnvolved Parties: lnternal

Timing: NearTerm

Proiect Develop a plan and schedule for replacing inflatable rubber dam
Activity: Replace inftatable rubber dam.

Status: lnflatable dam replacement is currently being designed with 600/o design completed.
Construction scheduled for completion in 2020.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Project: ldentify and replace obsolete Water Transmission System equipment, hardware, and
software
Activity: Continue planning new Water Transmission System projects to increase retiabitity of existing
system.

Status: Develop scope, cost, and schedule of transmission system projects required to meet

Sonoma Water's portion of UWMP-identified projected demands through the Urban Water
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Management planning horizon. Projects identified using Sonoma Water's transmission system

hydraulic mode[.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: SCADA u pgrade

Status: New SCADA software has been selected and training has been provided to appropriate

staff. A pitot project is in development utilizing the new software prior to any production

implementation.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Develop and maintain a prioritized WaterTransmission System equipment reptacement/

upgrade tist and a CIP priority tist to inform the Long Range Financiat Plan.

Status: Appendix 3 contains the current projects in the Long Range FinanciaI Plan.

Involved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Project: Evaluate and construct operat¡onal reliability and preventative maintenance projects

Activlty: Reservoir Recoat Program
Status: System-wide assessment of all tanks was completed Ëalt 2018 to determine the
priority reservoirs for recoating. Forestvi[[e and Kastania tanks are the top priorities, followed

by Cotati Tank 3. Forestville and Kastania are scheduled for 2019 and 2020, respectively.

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Petaluma Aqueduct Cathodic Protection Upgrade

Status: In construction, scheduled completion Fatl2018.

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Santa Rosa Aqueduct Cathodic Protection Upgrade

Status: Design ín progress. Phase l construction anticipated in 2019

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Upgrade Sonoma Booster Pump Station
Status: Design in progress with construction in Fatt2019.

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Witfred Booster Station Electr¡caI Upgrade
Status: Design in progress

Timing: lmmediate

Actlvity: M í rabeI I nfi ltration Po nd Fishery I m prove ments
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Status: Grade Ponds 2 and 3 at a slant to provide a refuge for fish captured in ponds during

extreme high ftow events.

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: M i rabel I nfi ltration Ponds Reh a bi Iitatíon
Status: Springtime pond prep is conducted each year in Pond 2 and 3 to ensure productive

infiltration.

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Ra Iphine Tan ks ftow-th rou gh conversion

Status: The Ratphine Tanks Flow-Through Conversion was substantially designed but is now

being further evaluated for the WQ benefíts. Currently conducting water quality modeling.

Timing: lmmediate

project: lmprove efficiency in managingthe water metering system including full
i m ple mentation of advanced meterin g infrastructu re (AM | )

Activity: I m plement AM I

Status: Over 110 biltíng meters have been converted to AMI reading. A new billing software
program has been developed to interface with the AMI system. Sonoma Water is waiting on

the availability of County of Sonoma Sheriff's Telecommunication Division to assist in the

deployment of a fourth base station. This wit[ allow the conversion of all but the most remote

meters to AMl. A radio path study or alternate technology may be necessary for those

remaining 10 remote meters.

lnvolved Parties: County of Sonoma

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Develop Water Transmission System Monitoring Master Plan

Status: Evaluate the existing monitoring network and devetop guídetines for design,

operation and maintenance of the equipment in the monitoring network. The master plan

would assess how operations are monitored at production facilities, pipelines, turnouts,

boosterstations, valve stations, and potabte storage tanks.

Involved Parties: lnternal

Timing: lmmediate

project: Evaluate opportunities at Mirabe[Wohler facility to develop additional diversion
facilities on existing footprint that increases and provides greater flexibility to divert water
Activity: Evaluate opportunities to increase efficiency of diversions.

Status: Due to the reduction in demands, alternate diversion systems are not needed in the

near future. lnitiat planning for refined hydrogeologic characterization/modeling is the first
phase to evaluate where opportunities exist to increase the efficiency of diversions within the

existing footprint of Wohler/Mirabe[.

lnvolved Parties: I nternal only
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Timing: NearTerm

Action: Påan for funding *rilprüvernents tc ensure Water Transrnåss¡tn

Systenn is maintained and retiable

Proiecü Develop Asset Management Program
Activity: Develop an asset management program to manage facilíty infrastructure and provide

document controlfunctions related to asset management.

Status: Sonoma Water currently uses Maximo to track preventative/ corrective maintenance

within Songma Water's water transmission, wastewater, fleet, facilities, and hydroelectric

enterprises. lnitial ptanning/scoping for a comprehensive asset management process is

anticipated by the end of 2019. Mobile tracking pilot began Fat[ 2018 to facilitate

preventative/ corrective maintenance in the field.

lnvolved Parties: I nternal

Timing: lmmediate

Projec* Continued Refinement of Long Term Financial Plan to Support Water Supply Planning

and Budgeting
Activity: Update and utilize of the WaterTransmission System Long Range FinancialPlan to inform

the budget process each budget cycte.

Status: The Water Transmission System Long Range Financial Plan model is designed to a[[ow

scenarios - combinations of 1) detívery levels, 2) capacity projects, 3) hazard mitigation

projects,4) large non-recurring maíntenance projects and 5) Biological Opinion

implementation projects and their associated costs - to be analyzed and optimized. lt
accounts for bond-fínancing, rising construction costs, and operations and maintenance

costs. The timeframe is from the current fiscal year to up to 30 years in the future. The basis for

atl calculations is the Restructured Agreement for Water Supply between Sonoma Water and

its contractors. Sonoma Water staff will continue using model on an annual basis to conduct

long-term financiat analysis to support evaluation and development of water supply,

conservation, demand management, and recycled water projects and programs.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors

Timing: lmmediate

16



Strategy 3:
Utilize regionat planning.to increase water supply

resttlency
Actíon: Strengthen an integrated wates'shed rnanagernent approach

Project: Update and maintain lntegrated RegionalWater Management Plans (IRWMP)

Activity: Actively participate in programmíng, policy development, funding, and planning of the two

regional IRWMPs: North Coast Resource Partnership and Bay Area lntegrated RegionatWater

Management Program.
Status: lmplementation of severaI funded projects and progrants from both IRWMPS is

ongoing.

Involved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, DWR

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect Update and maintain the Urban Water Management Plans (UWMP)

Activity: Prepare an UWMP every 5 years.

Status: Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) are prepared by urban water suppliers

every 5 years. Sonoma Water and most of the Water Contractors prepare UWMPs. These plans

support the supptiers' [ong-term resource planning to ensure that adequate water supplies

are available to meet existing and future water needs. The UWMP assess the reliability of
water sources over a 20-year planning time frame, describes demand management measures

and water shortage contingency plans, and discusses the use and planned use of recycled

water. The 2015 UWMP was developed, submitted and deemed accepted by DWR. The 2020

UWMP is due July 1,202I.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, DWR

Timing: NearTerm

Project: Support implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Agenc¡es (SGMA)

Activity: Support administration of existing Sonoma County GSAs and devetopment of GSPs. Provide

support for the administration of the three GSAs formed in Sonoma County in 2017 and lead

development of GSPs.

Status: Sonoma Water is providing administrative services to the GSAs through service

agreements with Petaluma Valley GSA and Sonoma Vattey GSA. Sonoma Water is also

providing community engagement, grant writing and management, and technicalservices for

development of GSPs through service agreements with a[[three GSA. (Retated work in

Strategy 1.)

tnvolved Parties: GSAs, GSA-member agencies, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Actively participate in the DWR Draft 2018 Basin Prioritization, which identifies three new

basíns as medíum príority basins whích, if finalized, wíll be required to comply wíth SGMA.
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Status: Sonoma Water coordinated with GSAs, the County, cities and other potentially

impacted entities related to the potentiaI reprioritization of the Alexander Area, Healdsburg

Area and Wilson Grove Formation Highlands basins/subbasins, including evaluating DWRs

ranking methodology, developing comments, and evaluating options. DWR fínalized

prioritization of AlexanderArea and HealdsburgArea as'low priority'and it is anticipated that
DWRwittreleasethefinalreprioritizationforWilsonGroveinspring2019. OncetheBasin
Prioritization is fina[, Sonoma Water wi[[ coordinate with other agencies to evaluate next steps

and approaches for complying with SGMA in any newly-added basins.

lnvolved Parties: DWR, GSAs, GSA-member agencies, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Participate in TechnicatAdvisory Committee to Ukiah Valtey GSA. The Ukiah Vattey GSA

formed in 201"7 to manage the Ukiah Valley Groundwater Basin in compliance with SGMA.

Status: Sonoma Water ís responsible for making releases from Coyote Valley Dam to meet

minimum instream flow requirements and downstream demands in the Russian Riverwhich

flows through the Ukiah Va[[ey, significantly interacting with the groundwater

basin. Consequently, Sonoma Water is coordinating with the Ukiah Valley GSA and is

participating in the TAC through an MOU. ln this role Sonoma Water wilt advise the GSA on

technicaI matters related to development of the GSP for the Ukiah Valley Groundwater Basin

to foster the sustainable management of surface water and grou ndwater resources.

tnvolved Parties: Ukiah Vattey GSA, Mendocino RCD, California Land Stewardship lnstitute,
community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Support and strengthen partnerships with Water Contractors and community
Activity: Continue ongoing coltaboration and input from the Water Contractors and the community.

Status: Ongoing co[[aboration through Water Supply Coordinating Council, Water Operations

RegionalTeam meetings, UWMP, IRWMP, RegionaI Resiliency Study, TAC/WAC, SGMA, and

other regionaI co[[aborations.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Negotiate and develop a new Agreement for Water Suppty between Sonoma Water and the
Water Contractors to reftect current conditíons and identify future transmission system

improvements.
Status: To be determined.

I nvolved Parties: Water Contractors

Timing: Long Term

Project Continue to collaborate on Russian River lntegrated Watershed Modeling
Activity: Participate in the devetopment of an integrated surface water-groundwater model (GSFtow)

coupled with a water demand/reseruoir routing mode[ (MODSIM).
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Status: Serve as local sponsor for the development of an integrated surface water-

groundwater model (GSFlow) coupled with a water demand/reservoir routing model
(MODStM). This model witt support severaI planning and assessment activities including

SGMA, PVP relicensing, and climate change.

lnvolved Parties: USGS, SWRCB, Mendocino County, City of Ukiah, Russian River Flood

ControlDistrict

Timing: lmmediate

Project: Work with Water Contractors to reduce peak demand on transmission system via

conservat¡on, groundwater banking, local supply, and recycled water
Activity: lmplement programs to reduce peak demand.

Status: Peak demand reduction is an ongoíng activity for the Sonoma-Marin Saving Water

Partnership and the water use efficiency team.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Local suppty provided by the Water Contractors is a regionalsolution to reducing peak

demand on the Water Transmission System.

Status: Appendix 4 contains the Water Contractor localsupply projects are currently

underway.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing:

Activity: Recycled water projects which offset potable demand, specificatly irrigation projects,

alleviate peak demand on the Water Transmission System.

Status: Appendix 4 contains the Water Contractor recycled water projects are currently
underway.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, [and use planning entities, sanitation districts

Timing: lmmediate

Project: Develop a water shortage resiliency plan
Activity: Update the Water Shortage Atlocation methodology.

Status: A Water Shortage Allocation methodology, per the Restructured Agreement for Water

Suppty, has been developed to apportion water during peak demand periods when Water

Contractor water demands exceed Sonoma Water's allowable diversions. The methodology

has been approved by the WAC to address summer months when diversions from the Russian

River may be constrained due to reduced flows or water availability. Water Contractors

accepted the methodology in 2014 attowing the modelto be in place through 2016. A model

needs further update, approval by Water Contractors and Board of Directors approval.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate
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proiect: Conduct assessment of local and sub-regional water supply proiects in coniunction with
Sonoma Water proiects
Activity: Compare actuaI gross demand, conservation, and source of water use with the UWMP

projection to ensu re projections represent actuaI conditions.
Status: Ongoing

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, [and use planning entities

Timing: lmmediate

proiect: Participate in integrated, multi-benefit water management plans and proiects with
conservation pattners, including updating and maintaining Storm Water Resource Management

Plans
Activity: Prepare and update a comprehensive, watershed based Storm Water Resource Plans

(SWRPs) which represents watershed resource planning and storm water runoff management through

a coltaborative effort with stakeholders and public to address specific needs and issues of effective

storm water management, including dry weather runoff'

Two SWRPs have been devetoped covering the watersheds of Russian River and Southern Sonoma

County (Petatuma River and Sonoma Creek). The main purpose of the SWRP is to identify and

prioritize storm water and dry weather capture projects using shared data and based on input
from water and resource managers and collaborating entities including NGOs and public.

A. Russian River Storm Water Resource Plan

Status: Russian River Storm Water Resources Plan is complete. Proposition 1 Storm

Water lmplementation funding will be avaitable in early 2019. Sonoma Water will
continue to study feasibítity of projects for implementation and seek partnerships to
implement multipte benefít projects with flood protection and other benefits, as

determined. Additionalgeotechn¡calfield investigations may be performed to
determi ne feasi bi lity.

lnvolved Parties: RRWA, County of Mendocino, County of Sonoma, Sonoma Water,

City of Cloverdale, City of Cotati, City of Healdsburg, City of Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa

Water, City of Sebastopol, City of Ukiah, and Town of Windsor, San Francisco Estuary

lnstítute, Sonoma Land Trust, Pepperwood Preserve, LBNL, Laguna de Santa Rosa

Foundation, NOAA, Mendocino County Flood Controland Water Conservation

lmprovement District, North Coast RWQCB, SWRCB and the North Coast Resource

Partnership.

B. Southern Sonoma Storm Water Resource Plan

Status: Southern Sonoma County Storm Water Resource Plan Public Draft was issued

August 2018. Completed SWRP anticipated December 2018. Proposition 1 Storm

Water lmplementation funding will be available in early 2019. Sonoma Water will
continue to study feasibility of projects for implementation and seek partnerships to
implement multipte benefit projects with flood protection and other benefits, as

determined. Additionalgeotechnicalfield investigations may be performed to
determine feasibitity.
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Involved Parties: County of Sonoma, City of Petaluma, City of Sonoma, VOMWD,

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District, Sonoma RCD,

Sonoma Land Trust, LBNL, Sonoma Ecology Center, San Francisco Bay RWQCB,

SWRCB, Daily Acts, private landowners

Timing (Both A and B): lmmediate

Activity: Maintain and operate the instatled ftood warning network to assist County of Sonoma and

NWS in detecting flooding conditions.
Status: A complete ALERT2'M flood warning network was designed and insta[[ed from the
ground-up to assist County of Sonoma and NWS in detecting flooding conditions following the

October 2017 fires. OneRain, a new fully functionalALERT2" flood warning network was

operationaI by the end of February 2018 providing rea[-time rainfall, river-stream and

reservoir data.

Involved Parties: NWS, County of Sonoma, County of Napa

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Integrate flood protection and storm water management strategies with sustainable
groundwater management plans and low impact development standards
Activity: lmprove hydrometeorologic forecasting

Status: A collaborative effort with state, federal agencies and Scripps to improve

drought/ftood prediction and response strategies for our locaI communities with decision

support tools, monitoring networks, and early warning systems. Various projects with NOAA,

DWR and Scrípps are focused on improved observationaI networks and modeling capabilities

to improve reservoir operations and drought/ftood response and planning.

lnvolved Parties: NOAA (NWS and Office of Atmospheric Research), Scripps, USGS, and DWR

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Maintain the Storm Water Resource Plans and conduct storm water

management/groundwater recharge feasibility studies in the three groundwater basins: Santa Rosa

Plain, Sonoma Va[[ey, and Petaluma VaItey.

Status: Coordination with the GSAs and Storm Water Resource Plans willcontinue to identify
projects and seek partnerships to implement multiple benefit projects with flood protection

and other benefits, as determined. Additionalgeotechnicatfietd investigations may be

performed to determine feasibility.

lnvolved Parties: Government agencies and municipalities, RRWA, GSAs, community groups,

land use planning entities

Timing: lmmediate
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Strategy 4:
Respond and adapt to ctimate change

Actíon: lnvest in cåimate science and tcchncåagy

Project: Work with federal and state partners such as the United States Geological Survey,

Scripps lnstitution of Oceanography, and National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration to
develop climate models for floods and droughts
Activity: Support development of Hydrometeorology Test bed for the Russian Ríver basin.

Status: This demonstration project will enhance pr:ecipitation monitoring and forecasting

through data collected by deploying additionaI on-the-ground weather stations soiI moisture

probes, and other observationaI equipment. lt witt also improve temperature forecasting in

Alexander Valtey by improving NOAA's models. NOAA and Sonoma Water are working on the

demonstration program. Current activities primarily consist of operations and maintenance of

equipment that was insta[[ed under previous phases of the project.

lnvolved Parties: NOAA, USACE, USGS, NWS

Timing: lmmediate

project: lncorporate downscale climate models into surface and groundwater models

Activity: Devetop a predictive modeI for Sonoma Valley and Russian River watersheds to downscale

large ctimate models to localwatershed scale. Modelto provide hydrology input to Sonoma Water's

model (ResSim) and to Sonoma Valley and Santa Rosa Plain groundwater modets.

Status: Downscaled gtobal-climate models (GCMs) developed by the USGS have been

incorporated into future scenarios modeled by integrated surface water/groundwater flow

models developed for the Sonoma Valley and Santa Rosa Plain. Twenty GCM scenarios are

being incorporated into the Russian River ResSim modelto evaluate potentiaI impacts of

climate change to the water supply reliability of Lake Mendocino and Lake Sonoma. Analysis

of modet results witt be incorporated in the climate vulnerability assessment and climate

adaptation plan that is currently being prepared. As new GCMs are developed they wil[ be

incorporated into the scenaríos modeled by integrated surface water/groundwater flow
models developed for the Sonoma Valley and Santa Rosa Plain.

lnvolved Parties: USGS

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Assess potential impacts to water quality and hydrology from wildfires in the Russian

River Watershed
Activity: ln coordination with USGS, participate in quantífying watershed response to wildfires.

Status: Partnering with the County, the Open Space District, Pepperwood Foundation, and

United States Geological Survey to conduct soiI hazard analysis and mapping, and measure

watershed response to fire-damaged [andscapes to help pubtic agencies plan ongoing

recovery efforts.

lnvolved Parties: County of Sonoma, Pepperwood Preserve, Sonoma County Agricultural

Preservation & Open Space District, USGS
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Timing: lmmediate

Activity: lmplement FíreSmart Lake Sonoma to address climate adaptation, community and

watershed resiliency.
Status: Actívities include community engagement workshops and planning to build

community resilience around fire hazards, fire protection and adapting climate change. PG&E

funded capacity building grant, ted by Ag lnnovations, with Sonoma Water as a partner.

lnvolved Parties: Ag lnnovations, PG&E, USACE, CalFire and locaI Fire Districts, County of

Sonoma, Sonoma County AgricutturaI Preservation & Open Space District, UCCE, Sonoma and

Mendocinco County RCDs, NSCAPCD, NGOs, Yorkville Community Benefit Association,

landowners

Timing: lmmediate

Actlon; tvah¡ate clirnate risk and vulnerabilities to our tperätions and

infrastructure

Proiect: Assess regional opportunities to increase resiliency
Activity: Facilitate construction of a network of high-definition cameras that wíl[ provide early fire

detection and situationaI awareness to protect the region's key water source from the threat of

witdfire.
Status: An eight-camera network of high-definition pan-tilt-zoom cameras for early fire

detection of the Lake Sonoma watershed is underway. The state-of-the-artsystem uses near-

infrared technology for night vision, and allows fire officials to take over control of the fire

cameras during wildfire emergencies to monítor fire and weather activity.

lnvolved Parties: County of Sonoma, Pepperwood Preserve, Fairfield Osborn Preserve,

Sonoma State University, The Regents of the University of California, Scripps, County of Lake,

County of Mendocino, County of Marin and the AlertWitdfire consortium of uníversities

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Evaluate Water Contractor's water supply and distribution systems in conjunction with

Sonoma Water's diversion and transmission system to prepare a workplan for developing a Decision

Support Too[ for regional planning of the interconnected water supply systems.

Status: A Regional Resitiency Study wíll be developed; a consulting firm was selected through

an RFP process in summer 2018. A workptan is anticipated to be compteted by early 2019.

Upon completion of the work ptan, it is anticipated that the Decision Support Tool wilt be

devetoped and used evaluate both operationalimprovements and capital projects to improve

the retiability of the water supply regionally.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Assess climate risks/vulnerabilities and identify adaptation strategies
Activity: Develop a Climate Adaptatíon Ptan.
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Status: Ctimate Adaptation Plan is in development to address climate change impacts on

water supply reliabitity based on advances in scientific understanding of climate processes

and predictive modeling. The Plan is anticipated to be complete by mid 2019.

lnvolved Parties: USGS, USACE, RCPA, County of Sonoma, Water Contractors, CalFire,

community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Action: lrnplem*nt c[ímate adapt*tion strategi*s

Proiect: lncorporate climate adaptation projects into LHMP

Activity: Ensure the Ctimate Adaptation Plan initiatives are incorporated into the LHMP.

Status: 20L8 update to LHMP is complete and was adopted by the Board of Directors in

October 2018.

Involved Parties: Water Contractors, County of Sonoma, FEMA

Timing: lmmediate

Åctior¡: Fartícípate in and form coltaboratlve pertnerships focused an

clinnate science *nd adaptatian

Projecü Continue to participate in the North Bay Climate Ready Program and NBCAI and

coordinate with RCPA

Activity: Solicit input from key partners are on the Climate Adaptation Plan.

Status: Co[[aboration with key partners is ongoing. lnput was received for Climate Adaptation

Plan results, NBCAI provided peer review, while RCPA acted as an information sharing
platform.

lnvolved Parties: RCPA, County of Sonoma, Pepperwood Preserve, NBCAI

Timing: lmmediate

Proiecü Continue to pafticipate in the Partnership for Resilience and Preparedness

Activity: Develop a Sonoma County Ctimate Resiliency Dashboard to explain the impacts of climate

change in the North Bay Region to decision makers and the public.

Status: With the support of severalfederal agencies and the White House Office of Science,

Technology, and Policy, a beta-version dashboard was developed and profiled in September

2016 at the UN Climate Week in New York City. Due to the change in the White House

administration, this project has been detayed. An evaluation of options for business models is

ongoíng and anticipated to be complete by early-mid 2019. Being able to communicate the

impacts of increased weather variabitity to the broader community is critically important as

both extreme wet years and extreme dry years are likely to become more frequent.

lnvolved Parties: RCPA, Peppennrood Preserve, USGS, Earth Knowledge, NBCAI

Timing: lmmediate
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Projecil Work with Groundwater Sustainability Agencies to evaluate climate change impacts to
groundwater
Activity: lncorporate future ctimate projections into Groundwater Sustainability Plans. lncorporate
downscaled Global-Climate Modets (GCMs) into modetsimulatíons for GSPs.

Status: ln development. Downscaled GCMs will be incorporated into modelsimulations
performed for evaluating the water budget and potentiaI projects and actions as part of the
development of GSPs in Petaluma Valley, Santa Rosa Plain and Sonoma Valley.

lnvolved Parties: GSAs, community groups

Timing: NearTerm
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Strategy 5:
lmprove the Energy Efficiency of the Water

Tranbmission System and lncrease Renewabte
Power Use

Action: Reduc* e[ectricity ccsts

Proiect: Procure cost effective carbon free power to meet Sonoma Water electricity needs

Activity: Explore other locatty availabte renewable energy potentiaI inctuding solar, wind, wave, geo-

therma[, solid waste, pyrolysis and biomass.
Status: Ongoing.

lnvolved Parties: PWPRA, North Coast IRWMP, County of Sonoma, Sonoma County

Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: I mplement Ftoating Solar.
Status: Evaluation of LMW of floating Solar at Oceanview Reservoir to serve 50 Sonoma Water

electricity accounts for both recycled water and water accounts is complete. Currently being

designed, construction anticipated in 2019. Project requires no capital investment and will
result in a reduction in power costs.

lnvolved Parties: PG&E, PWRPA

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Refi ne Solar Assets.

Status: Negotiate a mutua[[y beneficial transfer of solar assets to PWRPA to ensure Sonoma

Water benefits by both the reduction in costs and PWRPA's increase of their renewable energy

portfolio. Contract under consideration by Board of Directors in January 2019.

lnvolved Parties: PWRPA

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Explore energy load shifting and energy storage opportunities to reduce net power

consumption and costs
Activity: Load shifting may reduce energy costs through adjusting operations time of use.

Status: PG&E 2019 rate proposalincludes this incentive option, upon PUC approvalof PG&E

rates Sonoma Water willdetermine if load shífting is feasible.

lnvolved Parties: PG&E

Timing: NearTerm

Activity: Development of additional energy storage.

Status: Developing additionalenergy storage to allow operations to access a lower energy

rate regardless of time of use. PG&E 2019 rate proposal includes this incentive option, upon

PUC approval of PG&E rates Sonoma Water wi[[ determine if energy storage is feasible.
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lnvolved Parties: PG&E

Timing: NearTerm

Actíon: Pursue regiünaI coååaboration to sequester carbûn and reduce

ül-lG ernissions

Projecü Assist Sonoma Clean Power in developing and creating water and energy efficiency and
renewable energy programs
Activity: Collaborate wíth SCP to leverage mutua[[y beneficialwater and energy programs.

Status: The Sonoma Marin SavingWater Partnership, Water Educatíon Program and Energy

Resources Group collaborate with SCP as new opportunities are deemed feasible.

Involved Parties: Water Contractors, SCP

Timing: lmmediate

Project Partner with local and regional organizations and agencies to implement carbon
sequestration through improved land management, restoration, biomass recycling, biochar,
and/or other methods and implement feasible projects
Activity: Evaluate the effectiveness of biochar for drought resilience and carbon sequestration.

Status: Carbon sequestration is a naturaI or artificial process by which carbon díoxide is

removed from the atmosphere and held in solid or liquid form, such as biochar. Sonoma

County Biochar Demonstration Project was funded with USDA NRCS for drought resilience and

carbon sequestration. The biochar production unit worked welI and produced high quatity

char. Limíted field trials were hetd in three Sonoma County locations where soiltype and

agricultural productíon varied using USDA NRCS protocols. Results at one site proved

promising with increased plant yield and sígnificant reduction in water needs of the test plots

using biochar mixed with compost soil amendment. Cost of labor impacts the feasibitity of
using this as a commercial enterprise. The unit ís ideaI for demonstration purposes for study
or research, and is highty recommended for use in education of biomass utilization and

carbon cycling. Education programs will be ongoing based on additional regionalinterest.

lnvolved Parties: Sonoma Ecology Center, Gold Ridge RCD, North Coast Resource

Conservation & Development Counc¡1, USDA NaturaI Resources Conservation Service, New

England Biochar, Sonoma Biochar lnitiatíve, Sonoma, Mendocino and Napa county
communities

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Begin exploring what it would take to achieve Carbon Negative Water
Activity: Verífy carbon free status and assess opportunities to become Carbon Negative.

Status: Sonoma Water achieved Carbon Free Water in 2015 by cost effectively sourcing power

from various sources including hydropower, solar power, geothermaI power, and biogas
power. Carbon Negative Water would require carbon sequestration efforts such as

reforestation or producing biochar. Sonoma Water is exploring carbon sequestration
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approaches as part of the climate adaptation plan development. Continue annualvoluntarily
report carbon emissions to TCR.

lnvolved Parties: lnternaI Activity, TCR

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Register Renewable Energy Credíts with Western Renewable Energy Generation lnformation

System (WREGIS).

Status: Ongoing, annual reporting

Involved Parties: lnternaI Activity, WREGIS

Timing: lmmedíate

Activity: Participate in the development of the Water Energy Nexus Registry.

Status: TCR began working with CaIEPA on a 3-year program to develop the voluntary registry

and protocols for quantifying GHG emissions related to water management. TCR witl be

coordinating this work with water agencies and other stakeholders to design the protocols

and methodologies, which may then be used to estimate GHG reductions. Registry

membership witl be open to water agencies and other entities doing business in California.

Staff are participating in the Water-Energy Nexus Registry Working Group which wit[ play a key

role in shaping the Registry's reporting methodologies by resolving key technicaI questions,

providing detaited feedback on draft protocols and guidance, and hetping to frame discussion

topics for public stakeholder meetings.

Involved Parties: lnternaI Activity, TCR

Timing: lmmediate
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Strategy 6:
lncrease emergency preþaration and improve

respoñse to naturaI disasters
Actíon: Update cr cg'eate critical effiergency prûpäredness planning

docuffients

Proiect: Develop a system to provide critical information on location, timing and intensity of
expected rainfall.
Activity: Utilize Advanced Quantitative Precipitation lnformation system to provide more precise

rainfallforecasting for atmospheric rivers which can be coupted with a modeling system that will
provide decision support for a variety of stakeholders such as flood controI managers, water supply

managers, emergency responders, transportation officials, and media outlets by providing more

precise information on location, timing and intensity of expected rainfall'
Status: DWR awarded $19.34 million from Proposition 84 to Sonoma Water for the San

Francisco Bay Area AQPI system. Four X-band and one C-band radar units will be installed

throughout the Bay Area. The project is currently being implemented. lt ís anticipated that by

late 2019, two X-band radar units will be installed: one in Santa Clara County and one on

Sonoma Mountain. An additionaI mobile X-band unit may be placed in the East Bay by 2019. A

temporary c-band radar unit may be placed at a location yet to be determined in the Bay Area

with a permanent location anticipated to be installed before December 2021.

lnvolved Parties: DWR, NOAA, Colorado State University, Scripps, USGS, Cooperative lnstitute

for Research in the Atmosphere, Contra Costa Water District, Contra Costa Ftood Control and

Water Conservation District, San FrancÍsco Public Utilities Commission, Santa Clara Valley

Water District, ZoneT Sonoma Agency, County of Alameda, County of Santa Cruz, East Bay

M unicipal Utitities District

Timing: lmmediate

Proiecü Update Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)

Activity: Revise and update Sonoma Water's planned response to all hazards. lmplement annual

review and revision process following ahazard which triggers the use of the EOP.

Status: Update is 950/o complete.

lnvolved Parties: I nternaI activity

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect: Update existing emergency response and action plans regarding releases of pollutants
into the Russian River that could impact water supply operations
Activity: Develop a Source and Treated Water Contamination Response Plan.

Status: Source and Treated Water Contamination Response Plan was developed to address

specific steps that will be taken if po[[utants impact water supply operations. The Plan was

approved by SWRCB in October 2017. An annuaI review of the plan witl atign with SWRCB

Reporting.
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lnvolved Parties: SWRCB

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Participate in a coltaborative pilot project to refíne response actions if a petroleum spillwere

to occur on the Russian River.

Status: The pitot project wilt provide a Russian River Geographic Response Plan in 2018 and

outcomes wilt be added to the Source and Treated Water Contamination Response Plan.

lnvolved Parties: County of Sonoma, Tribes, CDFW, EPA, County of Mendocino, SWRCB

Timing: lmmediate

Actíon: Upd*te Locaä þiaeard Mitigation Påan {l-þ{MP} and ir*pternent
natural haz*rd rnitigation projects

Proiect: Regularly update LHMP

Activity: Update and renew the LHMP every five years to understand risks from natural hazards and

devetop long-term strategies to reduce the impacts of disasters.

Status: FEMA approved Sonoma Water's LHMP update in October 2018. The LHMP provides a

comprehensive ptanning strategy to evaluate feasible projects prior to apptying for grant

funding.

Involved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, County of Sonoma, FEMA

Timing: lmmediate

Proiecü lmplement projects to mitigate highest natural hazard risks
A. Activity: Address Wohler/Mirabel Liquefaction Mitigatíon

Status: The issue of liquefaction at Wohler/ Mirabel is a recognized hazard and should

be addressed prior to other site improvements occurring. Consultant analyzed

alternatives (infrastructure hardening and ground stabilization) to address

vulnerabitity of the collector we[[s at Wohler/ Mirabel. The assessment concluded that
vulnerability may remain high so alternative paths (emergency response, system

redundancy, etc.) should be considered to minimize regionalimpacts and manage the

risks. Seismic ground improvements at the new fish screen/ladder and RDS were

completed in20t4.

Timing: lmmediate: Develop and implement a seismic risk mitigation strategy for
Collectors 3 and 5 to address the liquefaction and lateralspread hazard. Evaluate

additionat response measures to decrease vulnerability of the collector wells. Long

Term: Develop and implement a seismic risk mitigation strategy for Collectors 6

agai nst liquefaction a nd latera I spread hazard.

B. Activity: Construct Russian River Crossing
Status: ln design, waiting for FEMA's comptetion of NEPA review and obligation of the

funds. Pending progress with FEMA construction anticipated 2020.

Timing: lmmediate

C. Activity: Construct Santa Rosa Creek Crossing (Santa Rosa Aqueduct)
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Status: ln design, waiting for FEMA's completion of NEPA review and obligation of the

funds. Pending progress with FEMA construction anticipated 2021-

Timing: lmmediate

D. Activity: Construct Mark West Creek Crossing

Status: ln design, waiting for FEMA's completion of NEPA review and obligation of the

funds. Pending progress with FEMA construction anticipated 2020.

Timing: lmmediate

E. Activity: Construct Bennett Va[[ey Fault Crossing (Sonoma Aqueduct)
Timing: LongTerm

F. Activityr Construct Petaluma River Crossing (Petaluma Aqueduct)
Timing: LongTerm

G. Activity: Construct Sonoma Creek Crossing (Lawndale/Madrone)

Timing:LongTerm

F. Activity: Construct Sonoma Creek Crossing (Verano Ave)

Timing: LongTerm

H. Activity: Construct Calabasas Creek Crossing
Timing:LongTerm

Action: lrnprove ernergency rîânagement !rnplementation skills

Projecü Continue multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional planning, outreach and training
activities, and include partner agencies in field-level training with water contractors
Activity: Preform emergency dritts/ exercises internatly, in coltaboration with Water Contractors, and

other tocaI agencies to improve response and recovery activitíes.

Status: Cottaborative and internalexercises training are held annually. These drills/ exercíses

identify areas of improvements to the EOP.

Involved Parties: lnternal activity, Water Contractors, MMWD and other locaI agencies,

County of Sonoma

Timing: lmmediate
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Strategy 7:
Seek federat and state funding

Action: Proactívely pursut sustainab{e funding t* support water suppåy

projects and progräã"t1s to offs*t impacts tc ratepayers

Proiect: lmplementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Funding

Activity: Pursue grant funding opportunities to support SGMA imptementation'
Status: Ongoing effort. A total of 53 miltion in grant funding has been awarded to the three

existing GSAs in Sonoma County ($1 miltion per GSA) for the development of GSPs through the

Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainability Plans and Projects Solicitation. Additiona[[y, a

5250,000 Stressed Counties Grant under Proposition L was awarded to develop a data

management system to be applied to each of the three SGMA medium priority basins in

Sonoma County and facilitation services for the GSAs have been partially funded through

successful apptications through DWRs Facilitation Support Services program. Additional

opportunities for grant funding will continue to be explored including DWRs Technical

Support Services program and other outside funding entities'

lnvolved Parties: GSAs, State agencies, legislators, North Coast and San Francisco Bay

IRWMP, DWR

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Support establishment of fair and equitabte funding sources for GSA activities. ldentify local

funding sources for GSA activities not covered by outside grant funding.
Status: Ongoing effort. The initialtwo years of GSA actívities (FY L7/18 and FY 18/19) have

been supported by member agency contributions. Efforts are ongoing to identify local

funding sources through establishment of GSPs in2022. Such efforts have included
performance of rate and fee studíes to explore options. The Petaluma Va[[ey and Sonoma

Valley GSAs have determined to continue member agency contributions through FY 2L122 and

the Santa Rosa Plain GSA is exploring options for establishing a broader fee setting

mechanism to cover its anticipated costs through FY 2L122.

Involved Parties: GSAs, GSA-member agencies, community groups

Timing: lmmediate

Projecü ldentify and secure federal, state, and grant funding for implementing water use

efficiency projects
Activity: Pursue grant funding to offset current regional program as opportunities arise.

Status: Ongoing effort. The fotlowing grants are in place, benefiting the region: Prop 84 North

Coast Resource Partnership - Drought Round, Prop 84 North Coast Resource Partnership -
2015 Round, and DWR Water/Energy Grant

lnvolved Parties: State funding agents, federalfunding agents, foundation funding, various
partners that can leverage matching funds

Timing: lmmediate
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Project: Procure funding to mitigate highest natural hazard risks, implement water supply

operational relia bility and preventative m a inten a nce projects

Activity: Advocate for funding of projects and initiatives that improve Sonoma Water's planníng

actions, retiabitity of operations, and aging infrastructure.
Status: Continue to work with partners (DWR, other water agencies, academic institutions) to

advocate for funding of projects and initiatives that improve the Sonoma Water's planning

actions and retiabitity of operations including season to season forecasting research, FIRO,

AQPI, seismic and climate risks.

lnvolved Parties: State funding agents, federalfunding agents, foundation funding, various

partners that can leverage matching funds

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Advocate and pursue funding of infrastructure projects and initiatives to support Sonoma

Water's LHMP and pre-disaster mitigation.
Status: Continue to appty for grant funding and work with partners to obtain funding for pre-

disaster m itigation, LH M P projects a nd i nfrastructu re i m provements.

lnvolved Parties: State funding agents, federalfunding agents, foundation funding, various
partners that can leverage matching funds

Timing: lmmediate

Activity: Proactively work with Water Contractors to ensure their timely assistance in supporting

funding efforts and reporting activities at WAC meetings.

Status: Biannual discussions on legislative activities witt be scheduled for WAC and TAC

meetings.

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD

Timing: lmmediate

Proiect tdentify and secure federal, state, and grant funding for implementation of Russian

River Biological Opinion
Activity: Pursue funding for studies and projects required by the Biological Opinion in Washington,

D.C. and Sacramento.
Status: Funding has been provided for fish screen/[adder/viewing gallery and the Dry Creek

Continuing Authorities Program (CAP) restoration project. Federal activities have been

focused on USACE funding for Dry Creek habitat enhancement projects. USACE received 56

mi[[ion forthe CAP project.

lnvolved Parties: NMFS, USACE, CDFW, Water Contractors, MMWD, community groups

Timing: lmmedíate

Proiect: Pursue grant funding for emergency preparedness
Activity: Advocate for emergency preparedness funding in Sacramento and Washíngton, D.C.

Status: Ongoing

lnvolved Parties: Water Contractors, MMWD, state/federal agencies, community groups
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Timing: lmmediate
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Appendix 1: 2013 WSSAP Completed Activities

Strategy 1:

Protect drinking water supply and promote water-use
efficiency

Action: lncrease the water supply relåabiååty of l-ake fvlend*cin* anei

Lake Sonoma
Proiect Support Forecast lnformed Reservoir Operations research and implementation

2073 lmmedíate Actíon: DemonstrøtÍon Project
Frost and Heot Event Forecost Demonstrotion Project: Provide funding and supportto NOAAto develop

improved temperature forecast modeling tools. Focus will be on AlexonderVolley, with goal of improving
forecasts of frost and hotspel/s. Studywilldownscole ond correct models and integrote weother station
dato provided by the Winegrope Commission ond other porties.

OUTCOME: NOAA developed a regional bias-corrected temperature forecast modelthat
leveraged the 45-50 public and private weather stations in Sonoma and Mendocino counties
to supplement the NationalWeather Service forecast models. These models were bias

corrected, meaning that they "[earned" by comparing the temperature forecasts to the actual
and then correcting the errors in a continual process so that over time the model accuracy

improved and was able to provide superior temperature forecasts from72 hours compared to
NWS and other more regionaI forecasts. The purpose of this pilot project was to determine if
leveraging locaI data to improve regional models in anticipation of frost events and heat
waves could: (1) altow farmers to use this information to better coordinate their diversions;

and (2) a[[ow Sonoma Water to better anticipate these events and manage reservoir re]eases

to account for the spikes in diversions. NOAA and Sonoma Water provided matching funds. An

outgrowth of the project was the installation of meteorologicaI towers (10.7 m poles wíth
temperature sensors) to determine where temperature inversion layers may form, as areas

with inversions are prone to experiencing frost events. Atthough the project was successful, it
has been discontinued due to lack of fundingto convert it from research to operational.

2073 Immediate ActÍon: Wøter Supply ReliabilÍty Analysís
Conduct water supply reliobility onolysis of the upper Russion River. Evoluote existing information
regording demond/use; gother new informotion from users; updote demond onolysis; model possib/e

future scenorios; ond evoluote impocts on reliobility of Loke Mendocino

OUTCOME: Submitted the Lake Mendocino Water Supply Retiabitity Evaluation Report the
SWRCB with the 2015 Temporary Urgency Change Order (Order 5lIl20L5) reporting. The

Reliability Study evaluated the long-term relíability of Lake Mendocino to meet water supply
and environmentalwater demands, including informed perspectives on how Lake Mendocino

is affected by climate change and PVP operations.

2073 ImmedÍate Action: Formation of Scíence Psnel
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Work with interested porties to form an independent science review ponelto evoluote existing data ond

develop a conceptuol model regording the hydrologic system upstreom ofthe confluence of Dry Creek

ond the Russion River

OUTCOME: The Russian River lndependent Science Panet (ISRP) was formed in collaboration

with California Land Stewardship lnstitute, NMFS, AlexanderValley agriculture (RR Water

Conservation Council), and the Mendocino Farm Bureau. ISRP held several meetings and

produced a comprehensive report providing a conceptuaI modeI for surface and groundwater

flow and interactions and the influence and impacts on habitat. The ISRP led to the formation

of the Russian River Science Forum.

Action: Insure compl¡ance with the Russian River BåologãcaI tpi*ion
Proiect Habitat Enhancement Resulting in Adequate Dry Creek Flows

2073 lmmediote Actíon: Demonstration proiect
Build Mile One of Dry Creek habitat enhoncement by 2014.

OUTCOME: Construction occurred overthree construction seasons in20L2,2073,and20L4.

20 73 I mmedíote Action : Development of success measu res

Develop criterio for meosuring success of Dry Creek habitot enhoncement program.

OUTCOME: The Dry CreekAdaptive Management Plan (AMP) was finalized in2014. Creation of
the AM P was a facilitated process to develop and implement specific success criteria for the
Dry Creek habitat enhancement efforts.

2073 I mmedÎote Action: TrÍbutøry Restoration
Construct Grope Creek, Willow Creek and Wolloce Creek fish possage projects ond tributary Grape Creek

ond Crane Creek restorotion projects.

OUTCOME: Construction is complete for these five tributary restoration projects required

under the BiologicaI Opinion. The Grape Creek Habitat lmprovement Project was constructed
in 2009 and 2010. The Willow Creek Passage Enhancement Project was constructed in 2011.

The Crane Creek Passage Project was constructed ín 2011, The Grape Creek Passage Project

was constructed in 2012. The fifth project was going to be the Wallace Creek Passage Project;

however, due to the inability to secure the necessary right-of-way from the private property

owners in the project area, Sonoma Water refocused the effort. lnstead, with the permíssion of
NMFS and CDFW, Sonoma Water contributed funding towards the Mítl Creek Passage Project

as the fifth tributary project. The Mitt Creek Passage Project was constructed in 2016. The

monitoring of the tributary restoration projects began in 2011.

2073 Immedíate Action: Build enhanced fish barrier passage facilíties at intake for infiltrqtíon
ponds

Design ond construct enhanced fish borrier passoge facilities, including new screens ot intake, fish

ladder ond viewing gollery at inflatoble dom.

OUTCOME: Construction of new screens, fish ladder, and viewing gallery at the MirabeI rubber

dam was completed in 2016. Grant funding from CDFW was received to fund portions of the
project.
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Action: Support science-based manägeme *t *f grcundwater and

su nface wate¡' res*u rces
Proiect: Support the implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

2073 Immediøte Actìon: Continue with Sonoma Valley program ond ìnitiote progrdm ín Santa Rosa

Plaìn.
Develop non-regulotory AB 3030/SBL93B monogement plans that emphosize locol control. Emphosize

development of diversified woter supply "portfolios" for eoch bosin.

A. lmplement Sonoma Valley groundwater management plan.
OUTCOME: lmplementation of the non-regulatory Sonoma Valley Groundwater Management
Plan has ceased, as the basin ís now being managed by the Sonoma Valley Groundwater
SustainabilityAgency under SGMA. Activities and information developed as part of the non-
regulatory GM P witl form the foundation for development of the GSP being developed by the
Sonoma Valtey GSA.

B. Develop groundwater management plan for the Santa Rosa Plain.
OUTCOME: A non-regulatory groundwater management plan for the Santa Rosa Plain was

developed in2074, which willform the foundation for development of the GSP being
developed by the Santa Rosa Plain GSA.

Proiect Support the continued evaluation of conjunctive water use

2073 I mmedÍate ActÍon: Storage - Groundwater Banking Feosíbility Study
Develop Phase L regional study ond Phose 2 site-specific work plans to implement pilot studies for each

Woter Controctor.

OUTCOME: The Regional Groundwater Banking Feasibility Study was completed in 2013 and
provided an evaluation of the regionaI needs and benefits, source water availabitity and
quality, regionaI hydrogeologicalconditions, and alternatives for groundwater banking. The

study recommended the performance of Aquifer Storage and Recovery Pilot studies to further
assess the feasibility and support design of future projects. Pilot project is underway in
collaboration with the City of Sonoma.

Action: lmprove the efficient use of water in Sorrenna Water's serv¡ce

area
Project: Monitor and prevent water loss

2073 lmmedíate Action: Leok detection
Conduct research in development of advonced analytics toolto evoluate the system flow and pressure

monitoring dato to help detect leaks in transmission and distribution systems.

OUTCOME: The pressure management component of the project was completed in August
2012. IBM developed a web-based application toolfor balancing pressures and minimizing
pressure spikes. VOMWD has incorporated the pressure recommendations into its operational
decision making, and has found significant benefits (inctuding a reduction in pipe breaks).

2073 ImmedÍate ActÍon: DemonstrøtÍon project - collaboration platform
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Develop systerns using advance technology to improve the interoperobility ond transparency of dota
between Sonoma Woter ond Contractors, with the goolof improving operations and planning.

OUTCOME: The start-up phase of the project was completed in summer 20L2in co[[aboration
with IBM and three Water Contractors. This project was discontinued after the pilot was

developed and operated on a trial basis, due to lack of funding.

2073 Near Term Action: Extend Automøted Meter lnfrastructure demonstration project and
collaboratÍon platform to other Woter Contrsctors
The initial pilot project intended to integrated monitoring copabilities of SCADAsystems for Cotati, Sonto
Rosa, Rohnert Park ond Sonomo Woter to improve communications, increose water ond power
efficiencies.

OUTCOME: Pilot demonstration was deemed not cost effective and is no longer being
pursued.

Strategy 2:

Maintain and improve the reliabitity of the Water
Transmission System

Actíon: Assess, rnaintain and ilpgrade Waten Transmiss¡ûn System
infrastructu re
Proiecü Evaluate and construct operational reliability and preventative maintenance projects
2073 lmmedÍote ActÍon: In consultation with Water Contrsctors, develop plan to provide consistent
fundìng for naturøI hazard and operational reliabilÍty capítol projects.

A. System wide in-line meter replacements
OUTCOME: Meter replacement wit[ be complete in 2018.

Action: Plan for fr.¡nding ¡mprovements to ensure Water Transrniss¡tn
System is maintained and reliable
2073 Immedíate Action: Consult wíth Woter Controctors to evaluate feasibility of bose demond
system insteod of continued peok summer demand system.
Specific project wos dependent on implementotion of peok reduction meosures su ch os conservotion,
reuse,locolsupplies ond groundwater bonking. Financialimplications of bose demand system willbe
evaluated os part of long-term finoncial modeling and rote study.

OUTCOME: lnitial phases of study were completed, but subsequent phases have been put on

hold due to the decline of annual and peak demands over past several years.

2073 lmmedíate Actíon: Evaluate alternotÍve røte strategies
Evoluate alternotive revenue models such os seos onol rotes and fixed versus variable costs.

OUTCOM E: A technical memo prepared and presented to TAC in 2013 outlining the alternative
rate strategies based on interviews with the TAC ad hoc. Rate calcutations are specified in the
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Restructured Agreement for Water Supply, changes to the rate calculations may be included in
a Restructured Agreement Update.

Strategy 3: Utilize reg¡onal planning to increase water
suppty resiliency

Action: Strengtlren ail integnated watershed r-vranagement apprcach
Project: lntegrate flood protection and storm water management strategies with sustainable
groundwater management plans and low impact development standards

2073 lmmediate ActÍon: Develop countywíde guídance manuøl and support the development of
í n díviduø I woter Smd rt Dev elop me nt (W SD ) sta n da rd s.

The goal of the countywide guidebook wos to monoge storm woter quontity ond quality while reducing
potable woter required by new development. The guidebook olso portially addressed requirements of
storm woter permit jointly held by Sonomo Woter, Sonomo County, ond Sonta Roso.

A. Complete Countywide manual
OUTCOME: The Water Smart Development Guidebook was published ín December 2013

covered three primary components: water conservation, water reuse and storm water
management. The Guidebook was a reference to avoid and minimize potentialwater resource

impacts from new development.

B. Supportthe developmentof WSD into local jurisdiction plans
OUTCOME: WSD Guidebook was developed and presented to localjurisdictions for theír
consideration. Project was terminated due to [ack of interest by Sonoma County land use

planning entities.

Proiect: Participate in integrated, multi-benefit water management plans and projects with
conservation partners, including Storm Water Resource Management Plans

2073 lmmedÍate Action: ldentífy projects thdt reduce floodìng and ínueøse groundwoter recharge,
Determine oppropriote projects in the Flood Control Zones to reduce flooding and increase groundwater
rechorge.

A. Scoping and Feasibility Studies
OUTCOME: Scoping studíes were completed and stakeholder meetings were held to devetop
flood control project concepts to reduce ftoodíng and increase groundwater recharge. This

work lead to the development of the Storm Water Resource Plans.

B. Seek funding for implementation of proiects
OUTCOME: Followingthedevelopmentof projectconcepts,therewasasuccessfulgrant
application for the design of two detention basins. One located in Petaluma and the other in
Rohnert Park.

2073 Near Term Actíon: InítÍote efforts to obtaÍn property ríghts for project sÍtes ídentified în
ÍmmedÍote dctÍons.
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Proiect lmplementation
OUTCOME: Project partners were secured for design and construction of a detention basin in

Rohnert Park and in Petaluma.

2073 Long Term Actìon: Design and construct multípurpose stoítt water detentíon focilíties.

Design and Construction
OUTCOME: The Petaluma project is anticipated for completion in 2020. The Rohnert Park
project reached 900/o design and a construction date has not been set.

Strategy 5:

lmprove the Energy Efficiency of the Water Transmission
System and lncrease Renewable Power Use

Action: Reduce e{ectricity costs
Proiect Procure cost effective carbon free power to meet Sonoma Water electricity needs

2073 lmmedÍate Actíon: Implement Farms to Fuels project.
Develop ond implement Sonomo Woter renewoble energy generation proiects.

OUTCOM E: Project was deemed not cost effective and is no longer feasible.

2073 lmmedîote Action: Implement Sonoma County Effíciency Fínancing (SCEF) program to audít
Sonomø Wøter pumpìng operatìons, wastewater treotment operations, and facÎlìtìes for
ineffÍcîencÍes.
Develop and implement Sonoma Woter energy efficiency proiects.

OUTCOME: Audits occurred at Sonoma Water facilities in2012 and findings deemed the
project was not cost effective.

Action: Pursue reg¡Ðnal colåaborät¡CIn to sequestes'carbon and reduce

GþlG emissions
Partner with local and regional organizations and agencies to implement carbon sequestration
through improved land management, restoration, biochar, and/or other methods and
implement feasible projects

2073 Immediøte Action: Implement Sonomo Woter's Energy Policy regardíng development of
programs and projects of regÍonal benefit,

A. Community ChoiceAggregation
OUTCOME: Sonoma Clean Power [aunched in2014 providing clean energy from renewable

resources-geotherma[, water, wind, solar, and biomass-to residents and businesses

throughout Sonoma and Mendocino counties.

B. Renewable Energy Secure Communities (RESCOI
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OUTCOME: RESCO project developed a renewable energy portfolio for Sonoma County
provided valuable information which assisted in the creation of Sonoma Clean Power.

C. Sonoma County Efficiency Financing (SCEF)

OUTCOME: SCEF, a program designed to bundle large energy efficiency projects for local
governments and non-profits, was evatuated for our region and it was determined there was

not enough ínterest to launch program.

D. Solar at Sonoma CountyAirport
OUTCOME: An airport solar project was deemed not cost effective.

E. Sonoma County Energy lndependence Program (SCEIP)

OUTCOME: Successfullaunch and implementation of SCEIP resulted in a County program

which continues to reduce energy and water use.

Strategy 6:

lncrease emergency preparation and improve response

to natu ra I d isasters
Action; Update Locaå Hæzard Mitigation Plan {Ll-lMP} and imp[enrent
näturäå hazard mitigation projects
Proiect: lmplement projects to mitigate highest natural hazard risks

2073 ImmedÍøte Action: tn consultotion wÍth Water Contractors, develop pløn to provÍde consistent
fundíng for notural høzard and operatÍonal relÍobility capítal proiects.

A. Rodgers Creek Fault crossing mitigation
OUTCOME: Project was successfully completed ín 2013.

B. lsolation valves
OUTCOME: The highest priority valves were replaced utilizing FEMA funding with completion
in 2018.

C. River Diversion System liquefaction mitigation
OUTCOME: Seismic ground improvements at the RDS and fish screen/ladder were completed
in 2014.

Action: lmprcve ernergency nlänagernent implementatíon st<!tts
Proiect: Continue multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional planning, outreach and training
activities, and include partner agencies in field-level training with water contractors

2073 lmmedÍate Action: Pursue ISO 9000 and 1.4000 certÍfÍcotÍon
tSO 9001 and ll00l was pursued to ossure o progrom of constant improvement in Sonomo Water's

quolity of work and environmental monagement.
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OUTCOME: Pursuit of ISO certification lead to an updated and revised emergency disaster
preparedness program. The draft Emergency Response Plan is due for completion in early
2019.
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Appendix 2: Summary of Completed, lmmediate, and Near Term Activities

1: Protect water and wâter-usc

X

New

X

X

X

X

Reprioritized

X

X

X

Ongoing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Completed

X

X

X

X

Partic¡pate ¡n PVP Ad Hoc Comm¡ttee

Engage in PVP re-licensing proceeding

Pursue funding for ongoing inspections at Lake

Sonoma and Lake Mendocino

Modify estuary management program

le 1of Dry Creek Demonstration Project

Development of success measu res

Tributary Restoration

Build enhanced fish barrier passage facilities at
intake for infiltration ponds

Construct Miles Two and Three of Dry Creek

Habitat enhancement

Construct Miles Four, Five and Six of Dry Creek

Habitat enhancement

Prepare EIR to modify Decision 1610

Develop contingency ptan for funding and

construction of Drv Creek bvpass pipeline

Conduct engineering and water qualiÇ analysis

for Drv Creek bvpass pipeline

Activity
FIRO technicaI studies, finat viabitity
assessment, maior deviation demonstrations

Frost and Heat Event Forecast Demonstrat¡on
Proiect
Water Suppty Reliability Analysis

Formation of a Science Panel

Modeling and development of new hydrotogic
index

lmplement new hydrologic index with Fish Flow

Proiect

Facilitate quarterly upper river water managers

meet¡ns

Evaluate and publish the Russian RiverValley's
future risk to drought

Monitor and part¡c¡pate in PG&E's PVP

hyd roelectric relicensi ng process

Continue quagga mussel quarantine
program and pursue funding for
monitoring
Estuary Adaptive Management

Habitat Enhancement Resulting in

Adequate Dry Creek Flows

Fish Habitat Flows and Water Rights

Pro¡ect EIR

Continue to implement the RPA for the
Russian River Biological Opinion

Project

Support Forecast lnformed Reservoir

Operations research and

implementation

Complete and implement actions to

estabtish new hydrologic index

Continue to monitor and evaluate issues

related to the reliability of Lake

Mendocino

Action

lncrease the water
supply reliability of
Lake Mendocino and
LakeSonoma

Ensure compliance
with the Russian River
Biological Opinion
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Strategy å: Fnoteat drinleing water suppty and prornote u¡ater-use

X

X

X

New

X

X

X

X

X

ReprioritizedOngoing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Completed

X

X

X

X

X

Activity
lmptement Sonoma Valley Groundwater
Management Ptan

Develop groundwater management plan for the
Santa Rosa Plain
Participate in and support Sonoma Valtey GSA

Participate in and support Santa Rosa Plain GSA

Participate in and support Petaluma Vattey GSA

lmplement CASGEM program

Groundwater Banking Feasibility Study

lmplement Aquifer Storage and Recovery Pilot
Stud ies

Russian River Science Forum

Resea rch surface water/grou ndwater interactio n

Submit annual interim change petitions

Prepare annual water r¡ghts reports

Monitor and track water right holders on the

Russian River

Pursue expansion of recycled water

Leak detection pilot w/ IBM

Extension of AMI demonstration project

Operationaltoolto assess near realtime meter
zone water balance

Support Water Contractors in implementation of
Water Loss Management Reporting

Track state regulations for wholesater water
supplier water loss reportine

Outreach and Education

Project

Supportthe implementation of the
Sustainable Groundwater Management

Act

Support the continued evaluation of
conjunctive water use

Continue to evaluate the capacity and
performance of the riverbank filtration
system

l,4aintain retiability of Sonoma Water's
water rights

Continue monitoring water rights-
related activities in the watershed that
coutd affect Sonoma Water's water
rights

lncrease recycled water storage,
distribution, and use

Monitor and prevent water loss

Continue to promote water-use
efficiency and the Sonoma-Marin Saving

Water Partnership through outreach and

ed ucation

Action

5$pport $eienee-based

rnanagement of
gror*ndwater and

su rfaee water rese g.rrees

Me¡'lit*r and prste{t
Serårffiê Waterug waten
¡iahfc

Bmprove the efficient
c¡se of water'[¡r Son*ma
Wate¡"s service area
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Sti"ategy 3; $*aintsån and i;npr*ve the reålahi cf tlre Water Transmission steN'n

New

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Reprioritized

X

Ongoing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Completed

X

X

X

Upgrade Sonoma Booster Pump Station

Activity
Evaluate performance and condition of
co[[ector wells
Develop implementation plan for pipetine

assessment
lmplement cond¡tion assessment

Mirabel dam bladder replacement

Continue planning new transmission system
proiects

SCADA upgrade

Develop and maintain a prioritized system

equipment replacement/ upgrade list, 5-yr CIP

priority list and the LRFP

System wide in-[ine meter replacements

Reservoi r Recoat Program

Petaluma Aqueduct Cathodic Protection Upgrade

Santa Rosa Aqueduct Cathodic Protection
U perade

Wilfred Booster Station ElectricaI Upgrade

Mirabel lnfiltration Pond Fishery lmprovements
Mirabel lnfiltration Ponds Rehabilitation

Ralphine Tanks flow-through conversion

lmptementAMl

Develop Meter Master Plan

Initial planning for refined hydrogeologic

cha ra cterizatio n/mod e tin g

Develop an asset management program to
manage facility infrastructure and document

control

Evaluate alternative rate strategies

Evaluate feasibitity of base demand system

Conduct [ong-term financiaI analysis

Project
Assessmént of our collector well
ca pacities

Continued Refinement of Long Term
FinanciaI Plan to Support Water Suppty
Planning and Budgeting

Evaluate condition of Water
Transmission system aqued ucts
particularly in areas with limited
accessi bitity
Develop a plan and schedule for
replacinq inflatable rubber dam

ldentify and reptace obsolete water

transmissio n system eq u ipment,

hardware, and software

Evaluate and construct operational

retia bi lity and preventative

maintenance projects

lmprove efficiency in managingthe
water metering system inctuding full
implementation of Alr4 I

Evaluate o pportunities at
M ira bet/Woh ler facitity to develo p

alternate diversion system on existing
footprint that provides greater ftexibitiþ
to divert

Develop Asset Management Program

Action

Å,sses$, ¡'naintain amd

u.'pgnade fifãater

Transrv¡içsisß'r 5y$tefil
ãtlfrastrè¡ct$re

Fåare fon funding
impnovements to
eFÌs[¡Íe lÅfater

Trançvnission Systerm

is c"¡"raintailxed a$d
ne&üah[e
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Strateg1r 3: Utiåize regionaI påanni t* ir¡crease Hrater sr¡p resiåiency

X

X

X

X

New

X

X

Reprioritized

X

X

X

X

X

X

Ongoing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Completed

X

Activity

Participate in two regionat IRWMPs

Prepare UWM P every 5 years

Support administration of GSAs and
development of GSPs

Comply with SGMA in three new basins if
fina lized
Participate in TAC to U kiah Vatley GSA

Continue ongoing collaboration and input

Develo p i ntegrated su rface water- grou ndwater
model coupled with water demand/ reservoir
routing model
Reduction of peak demand

Locat supply projects provided by the Water
Contracto rs

Recycled water projects provided by the Water
Contracto rs

Update Water Shortage Allocation methodology

Compare actualgross demand with UWMP

ldentify projects that reduce flooding and
increase groundwater recharge

lnit¡ate efforts to obtain property rights for
proiect sites
Design and construct multipurpose storm water
detention facilities
Marntarn websrte provrdrng reat-trme ralnlattJ
river-stream and reservoir data.

Storm Water li4anagement Ptans (SWRPs)

Countywide manual
LocaI jurisdiction plans

Im prove hyd rometeorologicaI forecasting

Coordinate GSAs and Storm Water Resource

Plans

Project
Update and maintain lntegrated
RegionaI Water lvlanagement Plans

(IRWMP)

Update and maintain the Urban Water
Management Ptans (UWMP)

Support implementation of the

Sustainable Groundwater lr4anagement

Agencies (SGMA)

Support and strengthen partnerships

with Water Contractors and communiÇ

Continue to co[[aborate on Russian

River Integrated Watershed Modeting

Work with Water Contractors to reduce

peak demand on transmission system

via conservation, groundwater banking,
localsupply, and recycled water

Develop a water shodage resiliency
plan

Conduct assessment of locaI and sub-

regionaI projects in conjunction with
Sonoma Water proiects

Participate in integrated, multi-benefit
water management plans and projects

with conservation partners, including

Storm Water Resource Management

Plans

lntegrate flood protection and storm
water management strategies with
sustaina ble groundwater ma nagement
plans and low impact development
sta nda rds

Action

StrqångtBxen a$'t

Entegnated wætenshecl

manðgeËne&t &ppnoaetr
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Stnategy 4: and adapt te s{ürnate ehange

X

X

X

X

New

X

X

X

X

Reprioritized

X

X

X

Ongoing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Completed

FireSmart Lake Sonoma

Develop a decision support tootfor regional
planning of interconnected water systems

Facilitate construction of a network of high-
definition wildfire cameras

Climate Adaptation Plan

lncorporate Climate Adaptation Plan initiatives
into LHMP

Ongoing coItaboration

Refine Sonoma County Climate Resiliency

Dash boa rd

lncorporate downscated Global-climate models
(GCMs) into mode[ simulations for GSPs

Activity

Support development of
Hydrometeorotogy Test bed for the
Russian River basin

lncorporate predictive model with ResSim and

to
Sonoma Valley and Santa Rosa Plain

roundwater models

Quantify watershed response to wildfires

Continue to participate in the North Bay

Climate Ready Program and NBCAI and

coordinate with RCPA

Continue to participate in the
Partnership for Resilience and

P re pa red n ess

Work with Groundwater Sustainabitity
Agencies to evaluate climate change

impacts to groundwater

Project
Work with federaI and state partners
such as the United States Geotogical

Survey, Scripps lnstitution of
Oceanography, and NationaI Oceanic

and Atmospheric Administration to
develop climate models for floods and

d roughts

lncorporate downscaled climate models

into surface and groundwater modets

Assess potential impacts to water
quality and hydrology from wildfires in

the Russian River Watershed

Asses regional opportun¡ties to increase

resiliency

Assess ctimate risks/vulnerabilities and

identifv ada ptation strategies

lncorporate ctimate adaptation projects
into LHMP

Eva{uate c[ïÈnate nisk

and vu*nenahitities to
eur operaÈÈoms and

ir'¡fraFtrå{etu re

ênrp[ernent c&iraate
adaptation stretegie$

FantieÊpate iR a*d fçnrcÌ

cç[åaborative
p a nt¡re yså'¡i ps f o c ru sed

ecr cti*late sciençe and

adaptatien

Action

ãnvest i¡'¡ cåimate

scier'Èce and
tee ã'laroå*gy
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New

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Reprioritizedongoing

X

X

X

X

Completed

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Act¡v¡ty
lmplement Sonoma County Efficiency Financing
(SCEF) program

lmplement Farms to Fuets project

Explore other locally available renewable
enerÊv potential
Implement Ftoating Sotar

Refine SolarAssets
Load Shifting

Energy Storage

SMSWP, Water Ed and Energy Resources

collaborate with SCP

lmplement Community Choice Aggregation

lmplement Renewable Energy Secure
Communities

lmplement Sonoma County Efficiency Financin¡
(SCEF) program
Solar at Sonoma County Airport
SCEIP Supporl

Sonoma County Biochar Demonstration Project

Voluntarily repod carbon emissions to TCR

Register Renewable Energy Credits with
WREGIS

Participate in the development of the Water
Energy Nexus Registry

Project

Procure cost effective carbon free

power to meet Sonoma Water

electricity needs

Explore energy load shifting and energy
storage opportunities to reduce net
power consumption and costs

Assist Sonoma Ctean Power in

developing and creating water and
energy efficiency and renewable energy
programs

Partner with local and regional

organizations and agencies to
implement carbon sequestration

through improved land management,

restoration, biochar, and/or other
methods and implement feasibte

projects

Begin exploring what it woutd take to

achieve Carbon Negative Water

Action

Red$çe e{eetrãeity
€est$

Pere'süe regienaf
eç[Èahoration to
5gq{!ç$Ècr {arl¡qn a*'¡d

redã.{çe 6*'*& emissions

Strafegy 5: lrnprcve Èke Ë sf the Water Tra¡rsmissiorx 5 m'! arrd trncrease Renewable Powen {.!se
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6: and to natural
New

X

X

Reprioritized

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Onqoins

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

CompletedActivity

Advanced Quantitative Preci pitation
lnformation system (AQPI)

lmplementation

Revise and update planned response to all
hazards

Source and Treated Water Contamination
Response Plan

Participate in collaborative petroleum response
pilot project

s-year LHMP Update

lsolation valves

River Diversion System liquefaction mitigation

Rodgers Creek Fault crossing mitigation
Wohler/M¡rabel Liquetact¡on Mit¡gation

Russian R¡ver Cross¡ng

Santa Rosa Creek Crossing (Santa Rosa

Aqueduct)
Mark West Creek Crossing

Bennett Valley Fault Crossing (Sonoma

Aqueduct)
Petaluma River Crossing (Petaluma Aqueduct)

Sonoma Creek Cross¡ng (Lawndale/Madrone)

Sonoma Creek Crossing (Verano Ave)

Calabasas Creek Crossing

Pursue ISO 9000 and 14000 certification

Annual emergency drills and exercises

Regularly update LHMP

Develop a system to provide

critical information on location,

timing and intensity of expected

rainfall.

Update Emergency Operations Plan
(EOP)

Update existing emergency response

and action plans regarding releases of
pollutants into the Russian River that
could impact water supply operations

lmptement projects to mitigate highest

natural hazard risks

Continue multi-agency and mutti-
jurisdictional planning, outreach and

training activities, and include partner

agencies in field-level training with
water
contractors

ProjectAction

UpdateorcrÇatc
crltlcal cnrergen(y
preparedness
planning documents

Updatc Local Hazard

Mitigation Plan {LHMP}
and implcment natural
hazard mitigation
projccts

lmprov€ emergcncy
managcment
imptcmentation skills
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?: Seelc federaå and state funding
NewReprioritizedongo¡ng

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Completed
Pursue SGMA implementation grant funding
Activity

Support establishment of fair and equitable
funding sources for GSA activities

Pursue grant funding to offset current regional

SMSWP programs

Advocate for funding of projects and initiatives

that improve planning and reliability

Advocate for infrastructure projects, LHIVP and
pre- disaster mitigation funding

BiannuaI discussions on legislative activities at
WAC and Tac meetings

Pursue funding for studies and projects

required by the Biotogical Opinion

Advocate for emergency preparedness funding

Project

lmplementation of the Sustainable

Groundwater Management Act Funding

ldentify and secure federal, state, and

grant funding for implementing water

use efficiency projects

Procure funding to mitigate highest

natural hazard risks, implement water

supply operational retiability and

preventative mai ntenance projects

ldentify and secure federal, state, and

grant funding for implementation of
Russian River Biological Opinion

Pursue grant funding for emergency

prepa redness

Action

Fr*activety pur$¡Je

sustainabÉe fundiwg to
s*ppert water suppÍy
pr*jecÈs and programs
te
offset Inlpacts to
ratepayers
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end ix 3: LonA Ran e Financiat Ptan Pro ect List FY 18-19

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Active
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
)o20
2021

202r
2021

2021

Construc
- t¡on

FY Stert

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2019

20L9

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2079

2019

20L9

2019

2019

2019

20L9

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

t.306.435

;.075.000

1775.000

.095.000

;38.000

t0.000

r.360.000

1.725.700

r..483.790

1.853.923

356.000

30.000

i60.000

t.875.091

r1,795,000

Cost
Project

Totals

1.670.000

r.000.000

r00,000

r20.000

r60.000

r70.000

¿8s,000

t78.500

r..785,375

t.125.000

;80.000

f50,000

t.250.000

t00.000

t50.000

+,734,576

t05,000

t06.000

r.790.000

745.000

+,704,296

1.349.979

¿.543.385

i86,000

305,000

;50,000

¿76.000

¿lm,000

;00.000

;.800.000

North
Marin

)

)

)

)

)

l
)

)

)

)

l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

4,704,296

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Sonoma

l
l
l
l
l
l.
l
l
170,000

l
l

l
l
l

Petaluma

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

r.60,000

)

)

)

)

)

)

l
)

t80,000

)

)

)

l
l
l
l
l
l
745.000

l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
5.800.000

l

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

ianta Rosa

t 20,000

l
)
l
l
l
)
l
l
l
l
l
l

4-853.923

l
l
l
)
)

Storage

t0.000

t.483.790

l
l
l
l
l
l

t.349.979

1.543.385

;86,000

!05,000

;50.000

t.306.435

t76.000

;,095,000

ìs6,000

¿40,000

;00.000

t.875,091

r.1.795.000

;.075.000

+,775,000

Total Pro¡ect Cost f2018 Dollarsl

Common

1.670.000

¿30,000

160,000

1.000.000

100.000

l
l
l
l
1.360.000

¿8s,000

378-500

1,725,700

1.785,375

l
r-,12s,000

150.000

t.250.000

r00.000

¿50,000

+,734,576

305,000

506.000

538,000

1.790.000

l
l

76.27o/o

82.90o/o

80.180/o

98.880/o

29.L5o/o

100.000ó

77.27o/o

33.330/o

24.640k

81.840/o

100.000Á

100.000Á

9L.67o/o

86.2lo/o

84.5lo/o

93.22o/o

74.24o/o

95.290k

ohof

Project

100.000/6

100.000/6

100.000/o

100.000/6

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.00%

100.000/6

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

0.000/o

0.000/o

0.000/o

23.02o/o

82.760k

47.73o/o

50.000/o

0.000/b

40.000/6

89.4lo/o

100.000ó

36.560/0

82.7lo/o

65.080/o

92.620k

Haz Mit¡sat¡on / Reliabititv

Haz ¡¡itieation / Reliabititv

Haz M¡t¡sât¡on / Reliabititv

BiotogicaI Opinion

Haz Mitieation / Retiability

Category

Haz Mitieation / Reliabitity

Requlatory

Haz N4itisation / Reliabilitv

Haz Mitisation / Reliabititv

Haz ¡¡itieation / Reliabititv

Haz Mitigation / Reliabitity

Haz ¡/¡t¡sat¡on / ReliabitiÛ

Haz [4ltlsation / Reliabititv

Haz N4itisation / Reliabititv

Haz Mitieation / Retiabitiw

Haz Mitisation / Reliability

Haz Mitieation / Retiabilitv

Haz Mitipation / Retiabilitv

Efficiencv

Haz Mit¡eat¡on / Reliabititv

Haz Mitisation / Reliabilitv

Hãz Mitisation / Reliabilitv

Haz M¡t¡qation / Retiabilitv

Haz Mitisat¡on / RetiabiliW

Local Hazard Mitieatìon ILHM) Prosram Des¡sn - Storase

Petaluma Aoueduct Cathodic Protection - O&M

System-wide Meter Replacements - O&M

MirabeI Chlorine L¡nes Replacement

Â/ohler Motor Replacements (Cotlectors 1&2)

Local Hazard Mitieation (LHM) Proeram Desiqn - Common

Local Hazard Mìtìgation (LHM) Program Design - SR Aq

Local Hazard Mitisation (LHM) Proeram Desisn - Pet. Aq

[ocal Hazard Mitisation ILHM) Prosram Desisn - Son. Aq

Russian River Embankment Repair (Riverfront Park)

¡1/ohler Access Road Retainine Wall

,1/TS Equipment Storage Building
Russian River Crossinq - net of S2.9 from FEMA

Mark West Creek Crossins - net 52.8 from FEMA

Ralohine Tanks - Flow Thru Conversion

Forestville Tanks - Exter¡or Recoat - O&M

Elv BPS Flood Control and ElectricaI Upgrade

SCADA software and hardware

SCADA Uoerade

Caisson 5 Motor & Discharse Head Replacements

Mirabel Chlorine Buitdine Water Line

[¡¡rabel Dam Bladder Replacement

oH PumD ReÞlacement

RDS PumD Reolacement

RDS MCC Replacement

Warm Sor¡nss Dam Hvdroturbine Retrofit

Wilfred Booster Station

Santa Rosa Creek Crossing - net of S3M FEMA grant (pending)

Sonoma Booster PumÞ Station Upgrade

Kastania Tank Recoat - O&M

lvlirabelSuree Tanks

Itiirabet- Rìver Road F¡ber Optic L¡ne

Caisson 6 Valve Replacement and Vault
¡,'l ira bel Ma¡ntenance Bui ldi n g

Non-recurrine Ma¡ntenance Proiects - Phase 1

Wohler Road Fiber Ootic Cable

Santa Rosa/RR-Cotati Aqueducts Ca pthod¡c Protection

It¡laintine Va lve at Vinehill Ra nch

Wohler-Forestvilte Pipeline Throttling Valve

Mainline Valve at Jenninss

Mãrin Sonoma Narrows (MSN) Sesment C-2

River Diversion Structure L¡quefact¡on M¡tigation - structural

Collectors 3 and 5 Liquefaction Mitigation

Drv Creek Habitat Enhancement (Corps) Mite 4 - net of Corps

Cotãti 3 Tank Recoat - O&M

Project Name

A-17



Active

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

Construc
- t¡on

FY Start

2022

2022

2Q22

2022

2023

2023

2023

2023

2024

7024

2024

2074

2025

2025

2025

2029

2030

2030

2030

2035

2040

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

Project
Cost

lotãls

;,080,290

1,266,663

t,105,000

1,760,000

i.315.000

r,888,586

r.440,000

¡8,000,000

;,105,000

18.895.410

ì.266.663

11,040,000

.178,939,832

+.272.795

1.844.058

)9,306,552

;,909,798

r.5,836,782

].844.058

3,844,058

|,423,463

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

Total Project Cost (2018 Dollars)
NOnn
Marin

;.356.404

76.840.975

t83.646

12.909,852

l
¿.549.722

l
l
l

TBD

TBD

Sonoma

t,266,663

,_,444,793

1,266,663

TBD

TBD

Petaluma

;.080.290

l
)

l
)

)

)

)

)

26.403.52t

)

)

l
l
l
i3,625,538

l
l
l
l
l

TBD

TBD

Santã Rosa

l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
IBD

IBD

Storage

¿,444,293

;.105.000

+1.040.000

t.423.463

ÏBD

Common

)

)

;,105,000

1.760.000

),315.000

1,440,000

¿8,000,000

)

16,135,485

)

152.098.857

t.589.149

1,844,058

12,77),,L62

t.909.798

r3.287,060

1,844,058

1,844,058

)

ÏBD

ô/o ol

83.640/o

78.000/o

79.280/o

95.I70/o

84.01%

80.000/o

6\.944/o

100.00%

90.99%

90.330/o

78.004/o

98.670/a

89.970/o

89.600/o

20.000/o

90.000/o

80.000/o

89.44o/o

20.00o/o

20.004/a

3.05%

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

Category

Haz N4itisation / RetiabilitV

Haz N4it¡satìon / Reliabilitv

Biotoeica L Ooinion

Haz N4ìtisation / Retiabilitv

Haz Ì\4itiEation / Reliabilitv

Biologica I Opinìon

Capacitv/ CIP Planning

lapacity / CIP Plannine

Haz l'4itipation / ReliablliW

Capacity / CIP Plannine

CaÞacitv / clP PLanninÊ

Caoacitv / CIP Ptannine

Haz Mitisation / ReliabiliW

Capac¡tv / CIP Planning

CaDacitv / CIP Plannins

Haz N4itisation / ReLiabiLiW

Project Name

Petaluma Rìver Crossing (Petaluma Aq)

Calabasas Creek Crossing

Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement (Corps) Mile 5 - net ofCorps
Ralohine Tank 2 Recoat

CoItector 6 L¡quefaction Mitigation
Bennett ValLev Fault Crossins (Son. Aq - Oakmont Pipe)

Dry Creek Habitat Enhancement (Corps) Mile 6 - net ofCorps

Tank Recoâting Program

Kawana-Ralohine-SBS Pioeline, Phase 1

cotati-Kastania Pipeline Sectìon l(Cotati to EBS)

Sonoma Creek Cross¡ng (Verano Ave)

{awana-Ralohine-SBS Pipeline, Phase 2

)rv Creek Bvoass Pioeline

Russian River Wellfi eld U oerade (Ootimizat¡onl

!on-recurring Maintenance Proiects - Phase 2

:otat¡-Kastania Pipeline Sections 2 (EBs to Kastania)

:mersencv Wells (Hazard Reliabilitv Water Supply)

ivater Production Facility (Mirabel/Wohler Wetls)

\on-recurring Maintenance Projects - Phase 3

\on-recurrine Maintenance Proiects - Phase 4

3entral Reliabiliw Booster Pump Stat¡on (DesiFn TDH: 35')

Santa Rosa Aqueduct Replacement

Petaluma Aqueduct Replacement

Sonoma Aqueduct ReDlacement

LocaI Hazard Mitigation Projects
365,414,726 54,546,546 4,973,923 93,394,349 15,811,91 49,340,599 583,482,055

3
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.,1

A endix 4: Water Contractor LocaI Su and Re cled Water Pro ects

Rohnert Park

Rohnert Park

Rohnert Park

Rohnert Park

Groundwater Wells Replacement and Upgrade

Groundwater Banking

Conceptual

Conceptual

Des¡gn/Construction

Conceptual

Conceptual

Feas¡b¡l¡ty

Conceptual

Conceptual

Feasib¡l¡ty

Design/Construction

Feasib¡lity

Des¡gn/Construcl¡on

Designrconstruct¡on
Conceptual

Design/Construction

Conceptual

Feasibility

Design/Construction

Design/Construction

202.0 2035

Requ¡res GSA leadership

System trânsfeffed from
santa Roså to Rohnert
Park in 2015. Extensions

to serve University District

and Southeast SPA

complete
ln construct¡on

Shares site with Tank 8

Completed DWR grant

funded study with
Agency. Design

opt¡mìzat¡on underway

Supports Northeast SPA

Ëunding

Technical Feas¡b¡l¡ty

Timing of Development

None

Timing of Development

Financial Feasibility

Technical and Financial
Feas¡bil¡ty

Funding

Funding

Funding

Financial

None

F¡nancing

Fìnancing/Caltrans

2013

201 1

2076

2022

20t4
2074
201 1

2024
20L7

2027
201L

¿ot7
20r7
2OII
20L2

2010
2008

2016

203s

TBD

2019

2025

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Rohnert Park Multi-Benef¡t Stormwater Basin - Copeland Watershed

Rohnert Park Recycled Water System Expansion

Gravity Water Tank 8

Grav¡ty Water Tank 9

Rohnerl Pârk Mult¡-Benef¡t Stormwater Bas¡n - Hinebaugh/Crane Watersheds

Off River Wells Water Supply Phase 1

Off River Wells Water Supply Phase 2

Recycled Water Expansion

Phase I West Recycled Water Project

AMI Full Scale Deployment

Stafford Lake Sediment Survey

Aqueduct Energy Effic¡ency Project

Central Recycled Water Project

Well 4

Cypress Storage tank and Booster Station

Recycled Water to Thomas Page School

G roundwater Bank¡ng Project

33 San Pablo Recycled Water Project

Las Gallinas RW Facility Ëxpansion

Recycled Water Area A

Recycled Water Area C

Recycled Water Area E

Recycled Water Area G

SDC Conjunctive Use

SCWA Russian River Water Rights Diversion lncrease

Groundwater Well #9 (replacement of ex¡sting well)

Groundwater Well #10 {replacement of existing well)

Sonoma Valley Recycled Water Project

Advanced Metering lnf rastructure

SDC Conjunctive Use

Add¡tional Ground Water Wells

Windsor
Windsor

Windsor

Sânta Rosa

North Mar¡n

North Marln

North Mar¡n

North Marin

Cotatì

Cotat¡

Cotatì

Marin Municìpal

Municipal
Peta luma

of Sonoma

of Sonoma

of Sonoma

of Sonoma

of Sonoma

of Sonoma

Design/Construction zO]'Z 2030

Des¡gn/Conslruction 20L0 2022 Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

None

None
None

Feas¡bil¡ty

None

None

N one

None

None

None

Agreement

Environment¿l

CEQA and Financial

CEQA and Financial

Feasibility

Feasibil¡ty

Conceptual

Conceptual

Feasib¡lity

Feas¡bi l¡ty

Ðes¡gn/Construction

20t7
2015

2024

2026
2025

2018
2017

2017

2020

2024

2025

2025
2079

2022

zo!5
2018

2035

2022

2076
2030

20t2
2020

2015

TBD

TBD

TBD

2025

2035

2027

2079
2035

20zL
2025

2020

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Agreement
Feaslbility

IiIlIEIifftTFFIiIïFfiEñE:t
BÏft'iIç'fEtr ramnry ÑETtFFIETNB

\YJÞtllN
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ånd consumer

Feasibility

Portal
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MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Subject: Point Station Community ng Workshop No. 3 - October 3,2019
t:\gm\bod rayês stat¡on county ws#3 memo 1 1-15-19,doc

November 15,2019

Reyes
misc 201g\pt

RECOMMENDED AGTION:

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

lnformation

None

On Thursday night, October g'd,2019, lattended thethird and final Point Reyes Station

community meeting hosted by Marin County Environmental Health Services (see agenda in

Attachment 1). The purpose of these workshops was to obtain input from the community regarding

issues primarily related to water supply and on-site septic treatment concerns. Funding for this

program is from a Prop 1 Bay Area lntegrated Regional Water Management Program (IRWMP)

grant. The EnvironmentalJustice Coalition forWater (EJCW) isthe BayArea Program Managerfor

a portion of the IRWMP grant and Marin County is one of 10 BayArea partners participating in

outreach services in support of disadvantaged and under-represented communities. As part of this

effort, the County received a $49,000 grant last summer to study water related issues in both Dillon

Beach Village and Point Reyes Station. As reported to the Board earlier, Marin County recently

completed a similar process for the Dillon Beach Village area adjacent to our Oceana Marin Service

Area.

Approximately 25 residents attended the meeting. County staff gave a presentation on the

final survey results. The county received 105 survey responses which represents about 25% of the

total number of property owners in the Point Reyes Station area. The top ranked issues from

respondents were additional restrooms and development of a community wastewater system

feasibility study. lt was acknowledged that the survey response rate was not as high as had been

hoped for. There was a general consensus from the workshop attendees that there was not

sufficient local support for additional studies related to a community wastewater system at this time.

The focus for the near term will be on what can be done to add additional restrooms in the

community. This work will occur as part of working group convened by Supervisor Rodonito focus

on this specific task.

Based on comments received at the meeting, county staff will not be proceeding with a grant

application at this time for a community wastewater system feasibility study.



Point Reyes Station
Creatinq a Communitv Water Storv

Thursday, October 3t 2or.g

Agenda

6:oo Welcome and lntroductions
Recap Project Objectives

6:ro Summary survey results

6:4o More Downtown Public Restrooms Downtown
Supervisor Dennis Rodoni, Working Group Subcommittee
Marin County Environmental Health Services

6:45 Flooding Concerns --. Disaster planning and drainage
Supervisor Dennis Rodoni

6:5o Recap Concerns On-site Wastewater Systems
Becky Gondola, Environmental Health Services

7:OO What is a Feasibility Study?

7:40 Next Step?

B:oo Closing

Lorene Jackson

Marin County E'nvironmental Health Services

4:.5-473-7t46
I ajacl<son @ m a ri n county, org

ATTACHIVENT 1



Workshops set for two Novato housing projects

Housing

DESIGNS

By Will Houston at a maximum height of 38 feet. Project plans
show areas dedicated as "community green

whouston@,marinii.com @Wll*$_Houston on space" and show pathways rather than roads
Twitter running in between the homes. The commercial

pubric workshops on rhe design ortwo rarge i#lfilå.ä:iJ.",Ï;ffiäffi'r"*'îåî,"å1"t
housing development projects at opposite ends of undernàaththe properry, ac-
Novato are set to take place next week.

Habitat for Humanity Greater San Francisco plans
to build 80 units of for-sale homes as well as a

1,600-square-foot commercial building on a
commercial site at 8161 Redwood Blvd. owned
by Pacific Gas and Electric Co.

The second project, the Hamilton Village by the
San Francisco-based City Ventures, would
construct 73 townhomes on a nearly 5-acre plot
known as the Hamilton Commissary parcel at 802
State Access Road. City Ventures beat out three
other developers'proposal at the start ofthe year
to build on the parcel.

The Design Review Commission is set to hold
workshops on both projects at7 p.m. Wednesday
atNovato City Hall, 901 Sherman Ave.

Both efforts are in the very beginning stages of
the planning and design phase. The workshops
are being held to allow local residents and city
staff to weigh in on the initial proposals.

The Habitat for Humanity homes would range
from one to three stories tall

A rendering shows how a building in the
proposed Hamilton Village project might look.

PROVIDED BY CITY OF NOVATO

H

ffi

tr

Workshops set for two Novato housing
projects

Housing

FROM PAGE 3

a workforce housing development it was also
considering for the site in January. City Ventures'
$6.16 million offer was picked over the $8.5
million offer by the San Rafael-based EAH
Housing nonprofit organization to build about



cording to the plans

This would not be the affordable housing
nonprof-it's first project in Novato. The
organization has also built housing on the 1100

block of Fourth Street.

City Ventures' Hamilton Village project proposes

townhomes ranging from two-bedroom to four-
bedroom units, with a third or fourth bedroom
optional. The maximum building height proposed
would be 40 feet. Each unit would also include a
two-car attached garage, according to the project
plans.

The Novato City Council chose City Ventures'
townhome proposal over

150 units that would be rnarketed toward local
government employees.

City Ventures told the council that their
townhomes would be priced at about $600,000
and would include $200-per-month homeowners
association dues that would fund maintenance
around the property. About 16 of the units would
be below market rate as required by city code.

More information on the Hamilton Village project
can be found at bit. lyl2JI7e9u. Habitat for
Humanity project information is at

bit.lv/2.1F419G.

Saturday, 1110212019 Page .,A03 Copyright Terms and Tet'tns of Use. Please review new arbitration language here.



District elections debut in Novato

Elections

TUESDAY BALLOT

Council races, tax measures in several cities face

voters

By Richard Halstead

r h u I s t e atl(Ø,m a r i n i i . c: o m @H al s t e ad Ri c hard o n

Twitter

Residents in Novato, San Anselmo and Fairfax
will go to the polls Tuesday to choose new
council members, and voters in San Anselmo,
Fairfax and Tiburon also will vote on tax
initiatives.

It is in Novato, however, where the stakes appear

to be the highest.

The Novato council has for some time now split
along ideological lines with Mayor Eric Lucan,
Mayor Pro Tem Denise Athas and former
councilman Josh Fryday aligning on most issues

and councilwomen Pam Drew and Pat Eklund

uniting in dissent. Fryday's sudden resignation in
early September to become the state's chief of
volunteer programs, and Drew's decision not to
seek re-election has put the balance of power on

the council up for grabs.

Add to that: Lucan's term is ending and he is

seeking re-election, and Novato has just switched
to district elections.

Lucan and the two candidates most likely to join
his voting bloc - Susan Wernick and Amy Peele

- hold a substantial advantage in the amount of
campaign donations collected.

All three have raised more than $25,000. In
addition, a political action committee formed in 2
017 to back the successful re-election ofAthas is
backing V/ernick and Peele. Most of the PAC's
funding has come from Novato businessman Ken
Casey, who contributed $10,000 to the PAC.

ELECTIONS >> PAGE 2

District elections debut in Novato

Elections

FROM PAGE I

"The business community is obviously standing
behind the incumbent Lucan, Wernick and Peele,

said Brian Sobel, a North Bay-based political
analyst.

"At the end of the day, money in a campaign is
awfully important because it allows you to use

more tools to reach voters," Sobel said. "Money
always equates to votes."

The sale of cannabis and affordable housing are

also key issues in this race. Goddard and Hellman
both support the town's current ordinance, which
allows two retailers in town to sell medical
cannabis from a storefront and recreational
cannabis to be sold by delivery. Swift said she

,, would vote to allow the unfettered sale of
recreational cannabis.

On housing, Goddard said that support for
Victory Village, the 54-unit affordable housing
project for seniors approved by the Fairfax Town
Council in2017, was a "moral imperative."
Hellman said she would have voted against its



Wernick, who has served on Novato's planning
commission since 2014, is competing with Jim
Petay, a certified public accountant, to take
Drew's District I seat on the council. Petray
chose not to accept campaign donations and
loaned his own campaign $5,000.

Wernick has said Novato needs to consider
raising its sales tax from a quarter- cent to a half-
cent to generate lnore revenue for the city; Petray
has said he would consider a tax hike only as a

last resort.

Peele, who oversaw transplant operations at the
University of California at San Francisco before
retiring in2014, is competing with Marie Hoch, a
Hamilton resident and real estate agent, for the
District 5 council seat.

Like Wernick, Peele has said the city needs to
take a look at increasing the sales tax; Hoch has

said that if elected she would call for an

independent auditor to assess the city's finances,
develop a revenue forecasting plan and identif,'
ways to bolster reverlues and identify areas to cut
costs.

In District 3, Kevin Morrison, who describes
himself as an environmental and educational
nonprofit consultant, is trying to unseat the
incumbent Lucan. Morrison has criticized the
city's district map for being "gerrymandered to
favor incumbents" and advocated for a "Green
Novato" initiative under which the city would
forgo taxes and fees for green development and
businesses. Lucan has campaigned on his
experience and a track record of getting things
done, focusing on such issues as the need to build
more senior housing and pay down the city's
unfunded pension liability.

San Anselmo

approval; Swift said any new housing needs to fit
with the town's existing character.

Measures

Fairfàx voters will also weigh in on one of the
three tax measures on the ballot.

Measure F would renew Fairfax's municipal
services tax and extend it for 11 years. Measure F
would continue the $195 tax on each dwelling
unit and business occupancy that was put in place

by Measure J, while also allowing for $5 annual
increases in the tax to a maximum of $250 per
unit. Measule J generates about $710,000
annually for the town; with the incremental
increases, it is estimated that Measure F could
bring in as much as $912,500 annually.

Measure M, another high-profile initiative on the
November ballot, would levy an annual tax of
$98 on each residential unit in the town of San

Anselmo, or in the case of commercial properties
per 1, 5 O0-square-feet of nonresidential property,
for the next 30 years. It's estimated the tax would
generate $500,000 annually, which would be used

to restore and perform ongoing maintenance for
93-yearold Memorial Park.

The other initiative on the November ballot,
Measure E, would renew the existing $589 annual
parcel tax benefiting the Reed Union School
District for the next 12 years. With a 3o/o annual
increase, the fee would reach about $840 by the
end of 12 years.It is estimated the tax would
generate about $2.5 million annually.

Marin Registrar of Voters Lynda Roberts ls
projecting about a 41 percent turnout for the Nov
5 election. The county has responded to 35,000
requests for voteby- mail ballots and received
back about 8,700 vote-bymail ballots. Roberts
said there arc 43,486 registered voters in Marin.

In San Anselmo, incumbent Ford Greene, a

lawyer; Kim Pipkin, a former San Ansehno The polls on Election Day will open at 7 a.m. and

planning commissioner; Steve Burdo, a public close at I p.m.

information offlrcer for Contra Costa CounW and a

member of the San Anselmo parks and ' 
'oThe business community is obviously

Recreation Commission; and rom King, a writer; !!l"din-g behind the incumbent Lucan,

are competing for two seats on the council. King wernick and Peele'"



ran unsuccessfully for the council in20l7, and
Burdo previously struck out in both 2013 and
20lT.Incumbent Matt Brown did not file for re-
election.

- Brian Sobel, a North Baybased political
analyst.

The candidates have taken different positions on
whether to allow the sale of recreational cannabis
in SanAnselmo and whether SanAnselmo should
promote the building of more affordable housing.

Greene has said he favors the sale of recreational
cannabis to boost the town's revenues. King said
he favors allowing the sale of recreational The Novato City Council holds a hearing on a
car¡rabis as long as the outlets are not located in proposed minimum wage incre ase Aug.17.
the downtown. Both Burdo and Pipkin have said
they oppose any sale of cannabis in SanAnselmo. JEREMy pORTJE 

- MARIN INDEpENDENT
JOURNAL

On housing, Pipkin favors rezoning and smart
development to create more housing. King said he
would support only the building of units for
seniors and the disabled. Greene and Burdo have
said granny flats are the best way to address the
lack of affordable housing.

Greene, who has raised more than $19,000 in
campaign contributions, has much more money
than any of his competitors.

Fairfax

In Fairfax, incumbent Councilwoman Renee
Goddard, a sustainability educator who has
served on the council since 2012; Cindy Swift,
who heads the town's planning commission; and
Stephanie Hellman, who describes herself as a

nonprofit volunteer coordinatoro are competing
for two open seats.

Sunday, lll03/2019 Page.A0l Copyright Terms and Terms of Use. Please review new arbitration language here.



Election bullies strike again in RP

EDITORIAI,

Add Rohnert Park to the growing list of cities and
school districts bullied into switching from at-
large to district elections.

The city capitulated after receiving a letter fi'om a
Malibu law firm that appears to have found a
pro fi tab le niche : al le gin g " r acially p olarized
voting" and threatening a lawsuit under the
California Voting Rights Act.

Defending a case in court can run into seven
figures, but a "safe harbor" amendment to the law
enacted in 20 17 limits plaintiffs to collecting
$30,000 in legal fees if a city or school district
agrees within 45 days to change its election
system.

Since then, dozens ofjurisdictions have switched
without folcing attorney Kevin Shenkman and his
client, the Southwest Voter Registration
Education Project, to prove that minority groups
are disenfranchised by their election systems.

Rohnert Park is the fourth to do so in Sonoma
County, following Vy'indsor, Santa Rosa and the
Santa Rosa City Schools.

District-based elections make sense in large
communities. But many of the cities receiving
letters are quite small. Fort Bragg, for example,
has barely 7,000 residents.

Moreover, evidence of racially polarized voting is

scant in a number of the targeted cities, including
Rohnert Park.

And there's little evidence that switching to
district elections is producing more diverse city
councils and school boards.

California's elected officials ought to reflect the
state's diversity, and the state needs a tool to
ensure that at-large election systems don't dilute
minority votes. But there are key differences
between the state and federal voting rights act.

Second, the U.S. Justice Department enforces the
Íbderal Voting Rights Act, while the state law
allows lawsuits filed by individuals and
organizations. There may be no one more prolific
than Shenkman and the Southwest Voter
Registration Education Project.

Nonpartisan at-large local elections were among
the Progressive reforms adopted in California in
the early 20th century. Abandoning them should
involve more than weighing a long-shot trial
against paying a $30,000 toll to stay out of court.

Elections are the foundation of our dernocratic
system. Lawmakers owe it voters to assess the
irnpact and effectiveness of the California Voting
Rights Aot, perhaps through a series of oversight
hearings or by assigning the state auditor to
review the law.

In addition to considering conformance with
federal law, lawmakers should consider
establishing a threshold for plaintiffs to
demonstrate that a violation has occurred before
starting the 45-day clock for a city or school
district to switch or risk a lawsuit.

Meanwhile, residents of Rohnert Park will have
an opportunity in the coming weeks to determine
the shape of the city's government - how and
where boundary lines will be drawn and whether
to have five districts or four with a mayor elected
citywide, as Windsor chose.

The clock also is running for Santa Rosa, which
switched to district elections under duress in
2018. Residents didn't get a say, but they should
be allowed to decide whether they want to elect a
mayor before new lines are drawn after the 2020
census.



First, under the federal law, a group of protected
voters must live in a geographically compact or
concentrated area. In other words, there needs to
be an opportunity to draw a district with a

concentration of minority voters. No such
requirement exists under state law, which may be

why no city has successfully defended itself
against a California Voting Rights Act lawsuit.

Sunday, 1110312019 Page .l)10 Copyright O 2019 PressDenrocrat.com All rights reserved. Restrictecl use only. ll13120'19
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Police chief gets cify manager post

NOVATO

By Will Houston to the city's administration.

v,ltouston(ii),mariniÌ.cr¡m @Will_$-flouston on After the city was thrown into what he called
Twitter ' c'crisis mode" following the sudden dismissal of

city manager Regan Candelario in August,
The Novato City Council has appointed police McGill was appointed acting city manager with
chiefAdam McGill to become city manager with the goal of stabilizing the city administration after
the hope he will restore stability the "shock."
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In an interview after his appointment Tuesday
evening, McGill said he didn't begin considering
a longterm stay in the job until September afier
talking it over with his family and the council.
The most difficult part of the decision, he said,
was leaving behind a2\-year career in law
enforcement, including nearly three years as

Novato's police chief.

"I'm excited, yet have some real mixed emotions
about leaving 909 Machin across the street and
the profession in general," Mc-Gill said, referring
to the police department's address. "I think
they're some of the best people I've ever worked
with in policing. They're entirely focused on
serving others which is essential in a police
officer and aprofession in general. It's been my
entire life since childhood. To now leave that
behind was difficult for me, so I'll miss being a
part of what I think is the noblest profession on
earth."

Under the fîve-year contract the council approved
in a unanimous vote on Tuesday, McGill will be

paid an annual salary of $248,000. This starting
salary is significantly higher compared to his
predecessors.

The city did not conduct a nationwide search for
candidates. After making the appointment, all

In the past three months, McGill has already
made several changes to his administrative staff,
with more on the way. Next week, McGill plans

to announce his successor as police chief. He
strongly hinted that this will be Capt. Matthew
McCaffrey, who has been serving as acting police
chief and who has served in the department since
2015. The city is only searching internally for
oandidates, he said, and the only other captain in
the department is Jim Correa.

"There won't be an outside person," McGill said.

"You can figure it out."

Another major appointment will be the city's new
finance director. who will run the city's newly
created finance department. McGill recently
appointed longtime North Marin Water District
auditor-controller David Bentley to serve as

interim director. Bentley is retired, however, and

said he is not seeking a longer-term appointment.
McGill described the appointment as his first
priority, especially as the city begins its early
budget discussions.

"Then as we go into 2020 we can starl
identifying, fulfilling the council's items that they
want implemented policy-wise," McGill said.



four council members praised McGill's work
during the intervening months, and also voiced
their strong expectations.

ool know this isn't an opportunity you were
looking for or searching for, but it found you and
I'm glad that it found you," Mayor Eric Lucan
said. "You've proven yourself as a leader in this
community with leaders at the police department
and really won over the staffthere, the council
here, the community as a whole."

"You have no idea what high expectations we all
have for you," Councilwoman Pam Drew said.

'ol'm really excited for our city under your
leadership," Mayor Pro Tem Denise Athas said.

"Just the few things you have done have indicated
to me that you embrace the council involvement
and you are keeping us informed and engaged,"
Councilwoman Pat Eklund said. "My stress level
has been significantly reduced."

If saying it wasn't enough, these expectations are

recorded in McGill's contract.

In one section of the contract titled "City
Manager's Commitments" McGill commits to
avoiding ooundue influence on policy
development;" ensuring all council members
receive the same information and that "surprises
will be avoided;" treating council members fairly,
respectfully and not disparaging council members
either in private or in public; and providing
regular updates to the council as well as timely
answers to council member questions.

The city manager contracts for McGill's recent
predecessors - Candelario and Michael Frank -did not contain this section.

Other benefits McGill will receive as part of his
contract include the city offering up to a $750,000
loan to Mc-Gill to help pay offthe first deed of
trust on his Novato residence. If McGill is
dismissed without cause, he would receive 18

months of severance pay based on his salary.

ool'm very grateful for the council support and the
confidence they have in me," McGill said. "I love
Novato. I live here, my children are here, I'm
about to have another child, raising a child here.

I'm committed to Novato. I'm all Novato and I'm
proud to work for this city."

McGitl
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